
1

CO
N

TE
N

TS

Contents

Message from the chairman 2

Operational organization 4

Organization & Distribution 5

Organs of the Group 6

Development of the Swatch Group 10

Watchtes & Jewelry 11

Retailing 62

Jewelry production 64

Watch production 66

Electronic systems 75

General services 80

Swatch Group in the world 87

Social policy 105

Safety & Environment 106

Corporate Governance 108

Financial statements 119

Consolidated financial statements 120

Financial statements of the holding 164



2

M
ES

SA
G

E 
FR

O
M

 T
H

E 
CH

A
IR

M
A

N

Swatch Group | Annual Report 2005

This annual report recounts important events and develop-
ments that have taken place within the Group. It provides a
wide variety of figures – higher turnover and sales, increased
profits, a significant cash flow, considerable investments,
expansions in production, and the founding of new companies
– relating to our Swatch Group. These figures are not simply
the result of impersonal arithmetic operations, but the fruits of
the efforts of a multitude of creative, talented and emotional-
ly committed men and women. This report tells the story of the
Swatch Group’s victories and successes in the past year.

But what lies at the heart of this success? What is the reason
for it? Why, year after year, does this Swatch Group, with the
hundreds of highly gifted men and women who manage it,
consistently achieve unrivalled successes that few large enter-
prises in the economy are able to show?

When we founded this Group, we put in place a basic
structure analogous to that of Switzerland as a federal state.
We laid down its strategies for the future centrally, with the
participation of everyone and, just as in Switzerland, we
delegate authority and decisions to the local companies of the
Swatch Group, be they in New York or Los Angeles, Mexico or
Buenos Aires, Paris or Milan, Shanghai or Abu Dhabi, or Tokyo,
Sydney, Kuala Lumpur, Mumbai, New Delhi, Munich, Zurich 
or Geneva… in other words, in all the cities and in all the
countries where we offer our customers beautiful watches
and attractive jewelry. Through its organization and its culture,
and the open-mindedness and the mentality of its employees,
the Swatch Group is close to the market and therefore close to
the people who love and buy its products. And it’s also for this
reason that it keeps on offering them beautiful products that
are of a high quality, revolutionary, and unexpected. I’ll say
this again and again – and on this point, nothing has changed
to this day – we produce beauty, beauty, and yet again
superior-quality beauty. This enables us not only continuously
to occupy the number one position in the watch industry 
for years on end, but also proudly to count amongst our
customers practically every section of society on this earth. 

Let’s start with Swatch. In 2005, this brand once more gained
in strength, dynamism and attractiveness, and won the hearts
of millions throughout the entire world thanks to its beautiful
products. Once again – just as when we created it over 
twenty years ago – it is the watch of the poor man just as
much as it is the watch of kings and queens. Today, it is still
the world’s highest selling watch. During the twenty-three
years of its young life, over 333 million Swatch watches have
been sold! Millions of items of Swatch jewelry and watches
are sold each year. They are just as popular in Shanghai,
Beijing, Tokyo, Manila and Mumbai as they are in New York,
Berlin and Munich, and of course Milan, Paris, Zurich, Geneva
and Biel. Not only 2005, but equally the first few months of
2006 have shown that, thanks to a young, motivated Swatch
team working closely with the public, we have achieved an
unusually high growth in turnover and results despite strong
competition from cheap Asian watches.

LADIES AND GENTLEMEN, FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS,

Message from the Chairman

From a different angle, there’s Omega – a brand that is in no
way less important. Of course it produces far fewer watches
and items of jewelry than Swatch, but it exhibits a higher
turnover in Swiss francs; it has established itself more and
more firmly, and is once again one of the world’s greatest
watch brands. Owing to the extremely strong growth it is
recording in all countries of the world, and also thanks to good
leadership, it has been able to make a significant positive
contribution to the Swatch Group’s 2005 results.

Breguet too, at the top end of luxury brands worldwide – many
experts today consider it to be the absolute Number One – has
succeeded in impressing the markets with its wonderful
innovations and new products, and in opening up new
markets, achieving very strong global growth in terms of 
both sales volumes and results. 

After Swatch in the basic segment come Tissot in the mid-
range segment, which sold several million watches thanks 
to its very committed team, and ck watch & jewelry, 
whose extremely motivated team under equally motivated
management sold over 1.5 million watches and items of 
jewelry in 2005. These two brands were also able to hold 
their own despite all their cheap Asian competitors, and 
both were rewarded with high growth rates.

Nor should we forget high-end brands Longines and Rado,
whose strong product development and high-quality teams
enabled them to record wonderful growth rates and make
excellent progress.

Hot on the heels of Breguet in the top-end luxury segment
comes Blancpain, a very strong and fascinating luxury brand.
Its enthusiastic team and talented management achieved in
2005 one of the highest growth rates ever. The brand invested
considerable funds in its new expanded production facility.
Glashütte Original, Jaquet Droz and Léon Hatot, also active in
the luxury segment with their high-quality teams, played a
very important role in this fine overall result, thanks to some
stunning new products and with substantial growth rates. This
also applies, although with considerably smaller volumes, for
all the other brands – Union, Certina, Mido, Hamilton, Balmain
and Flik Flak. Each of them has actively contributed to the
good results obtained in 2005, albeit in a more modest way.

Thanks to their commitment and the quality of their personnel,
the entire international distribution organization, as well as
the important network of the many Swatch Group companies
which are responsible for customer relationships, have formed
a solid basis to ensure the continuous growth of our business
activity and therefore of our Group. In so doing, they have laid
the foundation stone for the future dynamics of the Group, be
it Swatch Group Japan, whose domestic market has under-
gone significant development in recent years, or Swatch
Group organizations in the US or in the many European
countries or those located in other Asian countries and in
Dubai in the Middle East.
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The pillars of these foundations are being consolidated by the
opening of numerous boutiques in strategic locations, run
either by franchisees or joint venture partners, or managed 
in-house. Together, they ensure the continuous steady growth
of the Group, even if the economy in particular countries or
continents shows signs of temporary weakness. 

The huge, powerful production machine that supports the
enterprise is functioning more and more efficiently, primarily
in Switzerland, thanks to sustained investment as well as
intensive research and development, and with multi-facetted,
dynamic creativity. It secures for us the superior quality and
the quantity (volume) of our products, and consequently also
the continuity and dynamics of our growth. A production
machine on this scale and with such efficient production 
cost structures is only possible on condition that the basic
segment, with its millions of items, guarantees it regular
operation at full capacity.

What many observers consider to be a weakness or a
hindrance are those watch brands that are not active in the
luxury segment and that currently yield a margin that is high,
but nevertheless lower than that of luxury watch brands.
However, it is precisely these watch brands that, together with
the luxury brands, constitute the factor that strengthens the
soundness of the foundations by an order of magnitude. So,
far from being a weak spot, they are one of the Group’s
strengths. Since it was established in the early 1980s, we have
been demonstrating this strategically important conclusion
year after year.  

Just imagine for a moment what would happen if, for one
reason or another, the growth we’ve seen in the luxury
segment were to run out of steam! How important would the
strong growth of the big brands in the basic and mid-range
segments (Swatch, Tissot and ck watch & jewelry) be then? 
It is synonymous with security and dynamism, it safeguards
increasing turnover and profits, and therefore guarantees the
future of the Group. Let’s start from this solid position of
strength, and also consider the major investments made
worldwide not only in production and distribution but also in
research and new product development, and in the training,
recruitment and job security of the Group’s personnel. In
addition to these facts, let’s also recognize that, with an
annual cash flow of one billion Swiss francs and thanks to 
our cash reserves totaling several billions, we are able to carry
out acquisitions at any time should a suitable opportunity

present itself. All these factors make our Group not only a
booming enterprise with products that are both beautiful and
perfectly appropriate, and with a huge cash flow capacity, but
also a Group benefiting from unassailable security, capable of
withstanding any crises that may occur without too much dis-
ruption. This, ladies and gentlemen, together with the sense
of security and dependability imparted by dynamism and a
strong capacity to innovate, this is what ultimately lies at the
heart of our Group’s success. You can’t put a price on security.

The first few months of 2006 have shown very positive growth
and we hope that we will be able to maintain this course in
the months to come. The necessary preconditions are there,
particularly if exchange rates remain more or less stable. They
could even fluctuate somewhat without affecting growth,
because the Swatch Group remains a group that generates
wealth for all.

With this in mind, and on your behalf, I would like to thank the
top management of this Group, the members of the Executive
Group Management Board and the Extended Group
Management Board, all our employees and the Board of
Directors for this solid and strong position. And you, dear
fellow shareholders, I thank most sincerely for your loyalty.
You can continue to be proud of your Group!

Nicolas G. Hayek
Chairman and Delegate of the Board of Directors
of the Swatch Group.

On the occasion of its 
traditional annual excursion,
on June 30, 2005, the Federal
Council traveled to the
Bernese Jura (Switzerland),
where it was invited to visit
the Compagnie des Montres
Longines Francillon in St.
Imier. The Swiss government
was received by Nicolas G.
Hayek, Chairman and Delegate
of the Board of Directors of the
Swatch Group, Nayla Hayek,
member of the Board of
Directors of the Swatch Group,
and Walter von Känel, CEO of
Longines. 
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Breguet, Blancpain, Glashütte Original, Jaquet Droz, Léon Hatot, Omega

Longines, Rado, Union

Tissot, ck watch & jewelry, Balmain, Hamilton, Certina, Mido

Swatch, Flik Flak

Endura

ETA, Frédéric Piguet, Valdar, Nivarox-FAR, Rubattel & Weyermann, Comadur, GHHH (Groupe Habillage Haute Horlogerie), 
Favre & Perret, Ruedin, Lascor, Meco, Universo

Swatch Group Distribution

Swatch Group Les Boutiques, Tech Airport

Dress Your Body (DYB)

EM Microelectronic, Micro Crystal, Renata, Microcomponents, Sokymat Automotive, Oscilloquartz, Omega Electronics, LasagELECTRONIC 
SYSTEMS
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Operational Organization (as at December 31, 2005)

WATCHES

RETAILING

DISTRIBUTION

PRODUCTION

Prestige and Luxury Range

High Range

Middle Range

Basic Range

Private Label

Watches

Jewelry

Swatch Group Research and Development (Asulab, CDNP, Hi-Tech) Swiss Timing, ICB, Swatch Group Real Estate, 
Swatch Group Quality Management, Swatch Group Customer Service
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Organization & distribution 
in the world (as at December 31, 2005)

Swatch Group Subsidiaries
Austria, Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Greece, Italy, Luxembourg, Netherlands, Norway, Poland, Portugal, Spain,
Sweden, Switzerland, United Kingdom

Distributors
Andorra, Azerbaijan, Belarus, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Bulgaria, Croatia, Cyprus, Czech Republic, Estonia, Gibraltar, Hungary,
Ireland, Kazakhstan, Lithuania, Malta, Poland, Portugal, Republic of Moldova, Rumania, Russia, Slovakia, Slovenia, Turkey,
Ukraine, Uzbekistan, Yugoslavia

Swatch Group Subsidiaries
Canada, USA

Filiales Swatch Group
Mexico, Virgin Islands

Distributors
Bahamas, Bermuda, Costa Rica, Cuba, Dominican Republic, Dutch Antilles, El Salvador, Guatemala, Jamaica, Nicaragua,
Panama, Puerto Rico, Virgin Islands

Swatch Group Subsidiaries
Brazil

Distributors
Argentina, Bolivia, Chile, Colombia, Ecuador, Paraguay, Peru, Uruguay, Venezuela

Swatch Group Subsidiary
Australia

Distributor
New Zealand

Swatch Group Subsidiaries
China, Hong Kong, India, Japan, Malaysia, Singapore, South Korea, Taiwan, Thailand

Distributors
Brunei, Cambodia, China, Indonesia, Pakistan, Philippines, Sri Lanka, Vietnam

Swatch Group Subsidiary
Middle East – Dubai

Distributors
Bahrain, Irak, Iran, Israel, Jordan, Kuwait, Lebanon, Oman, Qatar, Saudi Arabia, Syria, United Arab Emirates, Yemen

Distributors
Algeria, Angola, Cameroon, Egypt, Ghana, Ivory Coast, Kenya, Libya, Mauritius, Morocco, Nigeria, Seychelles, South Africa,
Tunisia

Europe

North America

Central America 
and the Caribbean

South America

Oceania

Far East

Middle East

Africa
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Board of Directors (as at April 1, 2006)

DR H.C. NICOLAS G. HAYEK
Meisterschwanden, Chairman and Delegate of the Board of Directors

Company Secretary
Roland Bloch, Biel-Bienne

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers
St. Jakobs-Strasse 25, CH-4052 Basle

Administrative Headquarters
Seevorstadt 6, CH-2501 Biel-Bienne
Tel. +41 32 343 68 11
Fax +41 32 343 69 11
E-mail: info@swatchgroup.com
Internet: www.swatchgroup.com

Registered Offices
Faubourg de l’Hôpital 3, CH-2000 Neuchâtel

At the Ordinary General Meeting held on May 18, 2005 Mr Claude Nicollier was elected a new member of the
Board of Directors of The Swatch Group Ltd.

The function descriptions and responsibilities of Board of Directors members by December 31, 2005, are outlined
in the Corporate Governance chapter on page 111 of the present Annual Report.
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DR PETER GROSS
Zollikon, Vice-Chairman

ESTHER GRETHER
Bottmingen

NAYLA HAYEK
Schleinikon

DR PETER F. BAUMBERGER
Küsnacht

ERNST TANNER
Erlenbach

PROF. DR H.C. 
CLAUDE NICOLLIER
Houston

JOHANN NIKLAUS
SCHNEIDER-AMMANN
Langenthal
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Executive Group Management Board (as at April 1, 2006)

NICK HAYEK JR
President of the Group Management Board

ARLETTE-ELSA EMCH
Léon Hatot, ck watch & jewelry,
Dress Your Body, Swatch Group
Japan, Swatch Group South Korea

EDGAR GEISER
Controlling/finance, quality
assurance, investor relations,
Swatch Group UK 

MARC A. HAYEK
Blancpain, Swatch Group Middle
East, Panama

DR HANSPETER
RENTSCH
Legal, licences, strategic projects,
real estate (except Engineering),
patents (ICB), Swatch Group Greece,
Swatch Group Poland

ROLAND STREULE
Rado

FRANÇOIS THIÉBAUD
Tissot, Certina, Mido, Swatch Group
Brazil, Portugal, Switzerland

DR MOUGAHED
DARWISH
EM Microelectronic, Micro Crystal,
Renata, Microcomponents, Sokymat
Automotive, Oscilloquartz, Omega
Electronics, Lasag

FLORENCE OLLIVIER-
LAMARQUE
Swatch Group France, Swatch Group
France Les Boutiques, 
Swatch Group Italy, Swatch Group
Spain, Flik Flak
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Extended Group Management Board (as at April 1, 2006)

WALTER VON KÄNEL
Longines

KEVIN ROLLENHAGEN
Swatch Group China, Swatch Group
Hong Kong, Swatch Group Taiwan

RUDOLF SEMRAD
Swatch Group Austria

JERRY SIMONIS
Balmain

DR PETER STEIGER
Swatch Group Distribution

STEPHEN URQUHART
Omega

DR FRANK MÜLLER
Glashütte Original, Swatch Group
Malaysia, Swatch Group Singapore

THOMAS MEIER
ETA, Swatch Group Thailand

MATTHIAS BRESCHAN
Hamilton, Endura, Swatch Group
Mexico

YANN GAMARD
Swatch Group Germany, Swatch
Group Belgium, Swatch Group
Netherlands, Swatch Group Nordic, 
Swatch Group Australia

MANUEL EMCH
Jaquet Droz, Eastern Europe, Russia

EDMOND CAPT
Frédéric Piguet, Valdar, Universo

The function descriptions and responsibilities of the members of the Executive Group Management Board and of the Extended Group Management Board 
by December 31, 2005, are outlined in the Corporate Governance chapter on pages 113 to 115 of the present Annual Report.
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2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

4 497 4 152 3 966 4 063 4 182

8.3 4.7 –2.4 –2.8 –1.9

4 292 3 981 3 828 3 933 4 048

7.8 4.0 –2.7 –2.8 –2.0

735 645 594 632 644

17.1 16.2 15.5 16.1 15.9

621 512 492 494 504

14.5 12.9 12.9 12.6 12.5

21.3 4.1 –0.4 –2.0 –7.7

790 683 627 566 623

18.4 17.2 16.4 14.4 15.4

4 603 4 276 4 006 3 541 3 261

69.9 71.1 71.3 74.0 70.0

6 588 6 011 5 615 4 783 4 660

20 650 20 949 20 700 20 545 19 665

20 730 20 831 20 707 20 568 20 087

1 315 1 283 1 262 1 269 1 251

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

374 291 271 289 321

398 295 275 193 269

1 770 1 738 1 949 1 849 1 740

135 137 137 137 140

2 043 1 895 1 685 1 474 1 534

75.8 71.7 65.4 62.4 62.9

2 695 2 642 2 577 2 363 2 439

150.1 100.8 84.5 64.2 58.3

111.1 73.6 61.7 46.9 44.0

Development of the Swatch Group

Swatch Group consolidated

Gross sales CHF million

– Change from previous year %

Net sales CHF million

– Change from previous year %

Operating profit CHF million

– As a % of net sales %

Net income CHF million

– As a % of net sales %

– Change from previous year %

Cash flow from operating activities CHF million

– As a % of net sales %

Equity CHF million

– As a % of total assets %

Total equity and liabilities CHF million

Personnel as at 31.12. *) Employees

Annual average Employees

Personnel expense CHF million

*) Since 2002 according to the new definition of personnel – headcount includes home workers, trainees and additional helpers.

The Swatch Group Ltd

Dividend income CHF million

Net income CHF million

Investments CHF million

Share capital CHF million

Equity CHF million

– As a % of total assets %

Total equity and liabilities CHF million

Dividend *) CHF million

– As a % of share capital %

*) No dividend paid on own shares held by the Group.

In May 2006, proposal by the Board of Directors at the Annual General Meeting.
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Watches & Jewelry
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Shake the world

TRENDS
• In 2005, Swatch watches firmly established themselves in

the lifestyle market, becoming accessories that are 
worn according to one’s moods and fancies. Freshness,
vivacity, colors, originality, a love of life, humor and youth
characterized the 2005 collections. Product range launches
were replaced by subject-based seasonal launches – notably
fashion and sport – except for special models for which the
driving force is art, or which celebrate particular dates such
as Valentine’s Day and Christmas.

• The Swatch Bijoux family, developed and produced by the
Group’s jewelry company Dress Your Body (DYB), also con-
quered the planet. The two seasonal lines launched in 2005
brought about stunning worldwide success in terms of sales
and gains in market share.

• Both Asia – with India, China, Japan and South Korea – and
Europe – with France and Switzerland – recorded positive
results. The United States showed very encouraging progress.
Swatch and its Russian distributor have agreed to transfer the
sale of the brand’s watches to a new entity, which will begin
operations during the first semester of 2006. Its objectives will
be to manage the distribution of its own products in that
country via a network of independent retailers, to manage its
own stores, and to open additional stores.

• One very strong point in the second half of 2005 was
undeniably the launch of a new advertising campaign. Its
message to the people of the world is none other than Shake
the World, which is expressed primarily through a new
multi-media advertising campaign that is being extended
into 2006 due to its huge success with the public. The use of
flash mobs – spontaneous gatherings, where people get
together and engage in playful, amusing performances –
has revealed a simple yet powerful synergy with the Swatch
brand, which has consequently become the watch of choice
for followers of such events.

• The Swatch Internet site has been remodeled in line with
the Shake the World campaign, and the online sale of
models on the www.store.swatch.com site, reserved for
American and Japanese customers, has continued to
expand. Sales are up thanks to an increase in the number of
models on sale and a new navigation interface.

• No less than 82 Swatch stores were opened or renovated
during 2005, bringing the total number of Swatch stores
worldwide to 595. In addition, 320 sales areas opened this
year. The latest innovation was the Bora Bora kiosk,
launched in mid-October. This new concept combines design
and functionality, giving the brand a striking visual impact.

• As regards direct sales, an original and revolutionary idea
has been created: the concept of Instant Store points of sale.
This involves assembling and dismantling a store in super-
fast time, enabling Swatch to relocate rapidly and easily so
as to reach its public in unexpected places. Numerous
Swatch Instant Stores have sprung up around the world: in
Berlin, Zurich, Madrid, Amsterdam, Barcelona, London,
Shanghai, Montreux, Paris, etc., and they will continue to
appear and disappear wherever the action is. Thanks to
these guerilla tactics and its flexible infrastructure, Swatch
is able to react rapidly and take advantage of the most
unexpected opportunities. If need be, a point of sale can be
assembled for a single day or an evening. An Instant Store
can therefore be erected on site immediately whenever
there’s a festival or an organized or ad-hoc event that fits
with its Instant Style concept. But they can also remain in a
particular place for a month, a year, or exceptionally even
longer – provided they remain true to their ideal.
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NEW PRODUCTS
Four collections were launched in 2005: spring-summer
fashion, summer sport, fall-winter fashion, and winter sport.
Drawing their inspiration from fashion trends, sport and the
latest technology, these watches are characterized by their
colors, their materials and their originality. 
The launch of new special models to mark the year’s major
celebrations added to the Swatch product range: a watch 
and an item of jewelry to celebrate Valentine’s Day, a watch
for Mothers’ Day, and a whole collection of watches and
jewelry for Christmas. In addition, some wonderful creations
enhanced the two exclusive 2005 collections of Via della Spiga
and Place Vendôme, available in Milan and Paris respectively.
Swatch is enlarging its famous Irony family with a new set of
products. The Petite Seconde combines traditional values with
modern style. Steel and leather feature strongly in a design
with clear-cut lines. And four Irony watches have been
masculinized to the extreme. The new Irony The Chrono
models have been designed specially and exclusively for men.
They are solid, virile, made of steel and uncompromising, and
their success has taken the whole world by storm.
Four Fun Boarder models were launched at the end of
September. These new watches with snowpass and altimeter
functionality are attracting the interest of aficionados of
mountains and high places.
Among the most glamorous products to make their appear-
ance were three new Swatch Skin Lustrous Bliss watches,
adorned with either 174 rubies, 174 blue sapphires or 174 pink
sapphires in a worldwide limited edition of 1000 items each.
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PRESENCE
Fun Boarder
Fun was the name of the game in 2005, and still is, thanks to
the international launch of the Swatch Fun Boarder by Nicolas
G. Hayek in Bürgenstock, Switzerland, at the end of September.
Four new watches, whose fascination is just as convincing in
the lowlands as in the mountains, were introduced by Swatch
to some 250 journalists from the international press, members
of Swatch The Club, and distributors. Géraldine Fasnacht, the
extreme snowboarder and member of the Swatch ProTeam,
delivered an outstanding performance by jumping out of a
helicopter equipped only with her flying suit. 

Instant Stores
Several exceptional and unexpected events livened up the
streets leading to Instant Stores. In Berlin, noise was on the
agenda – several shows of street fighting accompanied by
mariachi musicians attracted crowds of young people into the
new store. In Zurich, a freak show (a grotesque, surreal
theatrical performance) held the attention of a good number
of passers-by. In Amsterdam, Madrid and Barcelona, live
music created an ambiance that lived up to the expectations
of young city-dwellers.

Xtreme Verbier
In its capacity as a partner, Swatch actively participated in 
the 10th Verbier Xtreme Freeride Contest, and sponsored its
ProTeam members Géraldine Fasnacht, Ueli Kestenholz, Xavier
De Le Rue and Philippe Meier. 

Swatch-FIVB World Tour
For the third successive year Swatch sponsored FIVB, the
International Volleyball Federation, taking on the role of
principal partner of the Swatch-FIVB Beach Volleyball World
Tour 2005. This partnership will extend until the end of the
2008 season, and will include the qualifiers for the Beijing
Olympic Games. In 2005, there were no less than 20 stages
around the globe with some, such as those in Rio de Janeiro,
Berlin and Klagenfurt, giving rise to local Swatch events.
Through its ProTeam, Swatch is also continuing to sponsor
four of the world’s best teams. The increased media coverage
in 2005 demonstrates once again that beach volleyball is
attracting more and more interest, and has a glowing future
ahead of it.

Swatch The Club
All the members of Swatch The Club, who adore the brand and
the message it conveys, continue to live to its beat, and large
numbers of them take part in the Swatch events to which they
are invited, often as VIPs.
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SWATCH BIJOUX www.swatchbijoux.com

Swatch jewelry met with remarkable success in 2005. This
product line is continuing to forge ahead with very strong
global growth in double digits, and even in triple digits in
some regions. The predominant markets are still in Europe,
headed up by Italy and followed by France, Germany, Spain,
and Switzerland. Sales are increasing across the entire
distribution network. Specially dedicated areas for Swatch
Bijoux are appearing in the majority of Swatch boutiques as
well as in some department stores.
The imaginative nature of the spring-summer and fall-winter
2005 collections is enthralling, as is their profusion of colors
and their explosive mix of avant-garde design, fashion and
materials. A farandole of vibrant colors for the Samba Colore
family, a hymn to nature for the Flowerlyric family, a bouquet
of iridescent crystal pearls for the Love Explosion ring, a
cascade of stars for Starissim, a ceramic lotus flower for the
Moon Illusion family and, finally, an explosion of music 
and rhythm for the Feel the Beat family – all bear witness 
to this fact.

Swatch Bijoux Boutique
For the opening in Munich of the very first boutique in the
world dedicated exclusively to the Swatch Bijoux line, the
famous MTV presenter Anastasia along with several beauty
consultants held a Swatch Bijoux Style Attack session during
a cocktail party complete with music. In Cannes, on the
Boulevard de la Croisette, the second Swatch Bijoux boutique
is already making a star figure and attracting the crowds.
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Synonymous 
with perfection

TRENDS
• Omega has always been synonymous with perfection, as

epitomised by the last letter of the Greek alphabet. This
pursuit of excellence, guided successfully by Omega’s 
CEO Stephen Urquhart, remains an intrinsic element of all
aspects of the brand’s activities. By rigorously implementing
its strategic plan, Omega continued to dominate an
extremely competitive world market in the high-end
watchmaking sector.

• Distribution – Omega focused its policy on improving the
distribution network, with the objective of positioning the
brand only in those points-of-sale which corresponded to the
strict selection criteria. Significant progress was achieved
following specific spotlight on the USA and in Europe.
Retail expansion continued apace with the opening of 10
more Omega Flagship boutiques with an innovative design
concept in strategic locations worldwide. The world’s 
largest flagship boutique was officially inaugurated by
Omega in Shanghai in December, emphasising the brand’s
commitment to the emerging market in China and show-
casing a complete range of the company’s products,
including the Bijoux jewelry line. A flagship boutique was
opened in Mexico City in December, signalling the brand’s
first directly-operated venture in Latin America. At the end of
the year the number of flagship boutiques had risen to 25
bringing the total number of mono-brand (including
franchise operations) boutiques to 100.

• Olympics – The Olympic message was a recurrent theme
which intensified throughout the year: in April, swimming
legend and Omega ambassador Alexander Popov
inaugurated the first Olympic exhibition at the prestigious,
luxury department store KaDeWe in Berlin. The brand thus
made a bold statement regarding its allegiance to the core
values and exceptionally high standards set by the Olympic
movement, and commending sporting achievements and
timekeeping technology.

• Product – Significant emphasis continued to be placed on
Omega’s proprietary Co-axial escapement, now incorporated
in all four of the main collections, and included in the new
men’s watch Planet Ocean, the latest addition to the
Seamaster collection. Launched during Baselworld 2005,
this model combines elegance with innovation and technical
expertise, making a strong impact.

• Events – As title sponsor of the European Masters golf
tournament in Crans Montana, Switzerland, Omega had
double cause for celebration in 2005; not only did its ambas-
sador Sergio Garcia win the event, but the brand was also
proud to announce renewal of the title sponsorship for an
additional five years. Omega also renewed its partnership
with the Fédération Internationale de Natation (FINA) to run
until 2009, and will be the Official Timekeeper of the major
World Championship swimming events.

• John F. Kennedy – The end of 2005 was crowned with 
the wonderful news that the Omega ‘Ultra Thin’ wristwatch
in 18 carat gold worn by John F. Kennedy during his
inauguration ceremony as US President, would be returning
to its origins and take pride of place in the Omega Museum.
This unique and historic timepiece was bought for 350 000
USD during an auction of Kennedy’s personal effects in New
York in December.
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NEW PRODUCTS
Constellation
The timeless elegance of this collection saw the addition of
the Double Eagle Co-Axial Chronograph, a new sportier
version for men, with a black bezel highlighting the Roman
numerals and a specially-designed black rubber strap. The
ladies’ timepieces were luxurious with two softer models
available in two different case sizes, 24 mm and 31 mm, with a
choice of diamonds and a mother of pearl dial.

Seamaster
Making a real design statement Omega introduced the
Seamaster Planet Ocean, incorporating its proprietary Co-Axial
Escapement movement in this divers’ watch collection. Planet
Ocean is a contemporary version of the first-ever Seamaster
300 models originally launched in 1957 and is available in 
two case sizes (45.5 mm and 42 mm in diameter). The
chronometer with orange bezel and orange leather bracelet
was undoubtedly the one presenting the color of predilection
for this eye-catching timepiece.

Speedmaster
Omega also presented «The Legend» Collection in recognition
of Michael Schumacher’s unsurpassed contribution to 
the world of motor racing. This collection consists of 
three Speedmaster chronographs combining Omega’s 
high-end column-wheel chronograph movement with sporty 
Formula 1-inspired dials in red, silver and black. Each model
has a 42mm diameter stainless-steel case with the familiar
curved Speedmaster stainless-steel bracelet and safety clasp.
The exclusive Omega calibre 3301 is also an officially certified
COSC chronometer.
To commemorate the 40th anniversary of the first space walk,
Omega produced the Speedmaster Professional in a limited
edition of 2005 numbered pieces. The unique Gemini 4 mission
patch was also etched on to the sapphire crystal case back of
the legendary Moon Watch.

De Ville
Omega introduced the De Ville Co-Axial Rattrapante, a
distinctive new model for men with a revolutionary design.
This self-winding chronograph movement is equipped with the
unique Omega Co-Axial Escapement. The split-seconds
chronograph mechanism is controlled by two column-wheels,
which ensure precision start, stop and reset functions for the
chronograph hand, the split-seconds hand and the hour and
minute totalisers. A limited edition version is also available in
polished platinum 950.
The De Ville product portfolio for men in the luxury segment was
further extended, with the X2 Big Date and the X2 Small Seconds,
both of these models available exclusively in white gold.
De Ville also presented a seductive new jewelry model for 
the ladies, aptly named Chocolate, reflecting the color of 
the dial and contrasting smooth brown calfskin leather strap.
This chronograph model also houses the prestige Co-Axial
escapement.

Olympic Collections
To commemorate Omega’s return to its role of official
timekeeper of the Olympic Games, two collections were
designed to highlight the brand’s long-standing association
with this event: the Timeless Collection consisting of four
models for men and two models for ladies and the Torino 2006
Collection, comprising three limited edition chronographs. 

Omegamania
An entirely new ladies’ watch was introduced called
Omegamania, to complement the Bijoux jewelry collection 
and create strong brand identity. The design focus for this
delicate and distinctly feminine watch was the Greek letter
which defines the brand, resulting in a case of either red or
white gold, in the shape of a stylised Omega symbol, the
upper surface of which is set with 41 diamonds, accentuated
by the unusual yet impressive domed sapphire crystal. The
slim, elegant lacquered calfskin strap is available in red, white
or black.
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PRESENCE
Events & Ambassadors
As an integral part of the brand’s communication strategy,
Omega’s family of ambassadors, all leaders in their respective
fields, continued to provide invaluable support throughout 
the year.
Omega continued to dominate the world stage and made a
spectacular entrance in January in Tokyo by officially
welcoming Nicole Kidman to the family of celebrity
ambassadors. The Oscar-winning actress made her first public
appearance for the brand by launching the new Omega
Quadrella watch, which she signed for auction to benefit
Unicef Japan for the victims of the Tsunami.

Capturing the essence of the Bijoux collection with her 
beauty and elegance Cindy Crawford, one of the brand’s more
longstanding ambassadors, officially launched the range with
her inimitable style to a magnificent reception in the capitals
of Spain and Malaysia.
The Omega Celebrity Bobsleigh Cup in St Moritz took place
under the theme of Swimmers on Ice with famous competitors
including Alexander Popov and Ian Thorpe. Omega was proud
that A. Popov chose this occasion to announce his retirement
from international swimming.
In keeping with the brand’s philosophy of partnering only the
world’s most prestigious sporting events, Omega once again
sponsored the Abu Dhabi Endurance 2005 President’s Cup,
one of the most challenging and arduous international
equestrian competitions, for both horse and rider.
On 10 February 2005 in Turin Minus One was the event which
signalled the official countdown to Omega’s return to Olympic
Games timekeeping at the XX Olympic Winter Games – Torino
2006. A press conference was organised in the presence of
Nick Hayek Jr, CEO of the Swatch Group, Stephen Urquhart,
CEO of Omega and Jacques Rogge, President of the
International Olympic Committee, together with other high-
ranking Olympic officials and a whole host of Olympic Winter
Games legends. During the press conference, these sporting
personalities started Omega’s official countdown clock.
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On the occasion of the launch of the Constellation Double
Eagle Chronograph, Pierce Brosnan was invited to India where
a high-profile event was organised in Mumbai to unveil this
prestigious model to an audience comprised of leading
entrepreneurs and celebrities from the world of cinema.
Omega confirmed its commitment to the Bijoux collection 
with a fashion show which took place during Baselworld 2005.
The new Omegamania ladies’ watch together with the 
jewelry collection were presented to stunning effect by inter-
nationally-renowned top models including Esther Cañadas
and Carmen Kass. Visibility for the brand was maximised as
this show was broadcast by television channels around the
world.
Sailing was ever-prominent in 2005 beginning with Ellen
MacArthur’s record-breaking solo round-the-world exploit;
Omega was immensely proud to have been the official
timekeeper for this truly spectacular achievement.
The brand extended its nautical association when yachtsman
and current America’s Cup champion Russell Coutts became
an ambassador in May.
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Omega Bijoux, whose collections are created and produced by
the Group’s jewelry production company Dress Your Body
(DYB), experienced dynamic growth throughout the entire
year. Moreover, taking account of the potential represented by
emerging markets, Omega Bijoux expanded its presence in
China and launched its collection in India. In order further to
increase its visibility, an Internet site entirely devoted to
Omega Bijoux came into being in 2005.
In 2005, the Omega Bijoux collection was further expanded
with the introduction of an elegant and contemporary new
line named Aqua. Feminine and masculine, it consists of rings,
pendants, earrings and cufflinks. Its launch was a success,
and sales have been very encouraging. Establishing a strong
connection with the Omega Seamaster collection, Aqua

perpetuates the brand’s existing links with the ocean. It
combines gold and diamonds with fluidity and undulation. Its
innovative design outlines the curls of a wave, inspiring
tranquility and sensuality.
The existing lines, such as Griffes, Omegamanie and Sedna,
are currently consolidating their presence and position in a
rapidly expanding international market. The Omega brand,
synonymous with reliability, desire and quality, continues to
assert its profile. Experience today shows that the world of
jewelry was ready to welcome creations as audacious and
imaginative as those already developed by the Greek-letter
brand. 
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In June Omega invited Anna Kournikova to Valencia (E) where
she started a special countdown clock that will record every
second remaining to the first day of the America’s Cup
Challenger Series regattas in 2007. To acknowledge the
importance of this event Anna trained with the Emirates Team
New Zealand crew and received a short introduction to match
race sailing by the Kiwi skipper and brand ambassador Dean
Barker. In addition to the brand’s role as official watch 
supplier for Emirates Team New Zealand, Omega extended its
partnership with the team into 2007, therefore upholding the
legacy which began in 1995 with the late Sir Peter Blake.
During the year Omega was privileged to welcome three of its
sporting ambassadors to its Headquarters in Bienne: fresh
from her round-the-world victory Ellen MacArthur made an
informal visit to the company where she met employees 
and talked about her record-breaking triumph. As the inter-
national face of the Seamaster Professional diving range of
watches, it was a pleasure to see Ian Thorpe, who took an
active interest in the design and product development
process. To celebrate ten years of partnership with Omega,
Michael Schumacher came to the company’s Headquarters;
the brand was honoured that he chose to formally sign the
extension of his agreement in Bienne and take time out to
greet all of the company’s employees.
In November 2005 Omega chose the Olympic Museum in
Lausanne as a fitting location to launch its 1932 Pocket
Watch, an enhanced replica of the chronograph used to time
all disciplines at the 1932 Los Angeles Olympic Games. The
first gold pocket watch in a limited edition of 300 (100 pieces
in red, white, and yellow gold, respectively) was presented to
the museum as an exclusive addition to its collection, and as
a testament to Omega’s unique relationship with the Olympic
Games.
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European culture, beauty
and watchmaking art TRENDS

• Once again, Montres Breguet under the leadership and
impetus of Nicolas G. Hayek experienced an exceptional year
in 2005, illustrated by an increase in its turnover and the
number of items sold that was unrivalled by the rest of the
high-end Swiss watchmaking industry.  

• In terms of distribution, the brand strengthened its presence
in China, Korea, Taiwan and Turkey, and opened up new
markets including India and South America.

• The company placed further emphasis on the fundamental
mission of its teams: the continuing pursuit of quality in 
line with the brand’s culture, the evaluation of the needs
and the satisfaction of a clientele which is, quite rightly,
increasingly demanding. Working in close collaboration with
the Group’s technical and research resources, Montres
Breguet has proposed around twenty innovations that are
currently the subjects of patent applications. 

• Manufacture Breguet is also benefiting from an impressive
injection of capital destined for the renovation and
expansion of its premises, the installation of ultramodern
manufacturing equipment, and three-dimensional design
software for movements; in parallel, it is strengthening its
teams of master watchmakers, designers, operators,
programmers, mechanics, chamferers and on-the-rose-
engine-turners.
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NEW PRODUCTS
The policy of innovation established by the Executive
Management is bearing fruit and, under its direction and
impetus, the Research and Development team has been
considerably strengthened in terms of both human resources
and technology. The results of this policy are manifesting
themselves in the beauty of the new models being introduced,
as well as the number of patents applied for, which will go
down in the history of watchmaking. According to the
specialist press, Breguet is once again recognized as one of
the most creative brands in Haute Horlogerie.
In 2002, the Executive Management asked its creation and
development teams to draw a line under what had been 
done so far, and to define the DNA for a line of completely
revolutionary movements and watches with Breguet
characteristics and a very strong brand identity. Three years
later, the first model of the new Tradition line, designed and
manufactured entirely at Breguet, was introduced at
Baselworld with great success. The Tradition 7027, which 
has already been awarded several first prizes, succeeds in
combining the avant-garde with tradition. The absolute
restraint and visual equilibrium that characterize it contrast
with its highly technical nature. Another achievement for
Manufacture Breguet was that initial deliveries to some
markets commenced as early as September 2005, with a view
to meeting the extremely high demand. As of 2006, the new
Tradition line will be supplemented by three additional
models, all equally surprising, interpreted in the same vein, 
in the frequently repeated words of the company’s CEO:
beauty, beauty and beauty. 
Amongst numerous other innovations in 2005, the new
Échappement à détente was launched and was the subject 
of a patent. This once again confirms that Breguet is working 
on all three dimensions of watchmaking development, namely
the external parts, the movement and the regulating apparatus.
A second completely new movement created in-house is 

the Grande Sonnerie Tourbillon pocket-watch, featuring two
major Breguet inventions: the Tourbillon and the gong spring
for repeaters.
Répétition minutes et quantième perpétuel, Tourbillon et
quantième perpétuel squelette, Extra-plate, Tourbillon et
réserve de marche, Marine Chronographe, Marine Dame,
Reine de Naples Haute Joaillerie… The spectacular innova-
tions introduced this year make the 2005 Breguet vintage a
marvel of esthetic interpretation and technical design.
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THE OUTSTANDING EVENTS OF 2005
Breguet in Geneva
On December 15, 2005, Breguet opened its new boutique on
the rue du Rhône in Geneva, boasting a sales area of over
200m2, in line with its new concept. This showcase is
endowed with a manufacturing cell composed of master
watchmakers, an engine-turner and an engraver. 

The Tradition is rewarded
On November 2, 2005 in Lausanne, the Tradition watch was
declared Watch of the Year 2005 by a panel of professionals. This
watch also captivated the public, who awarded it third place in
the Prix du Public for its overall technical qualities, esthetics, the
care devoted to its finish, its wearability, and its originality. On
November 11, 2005 in Geneva, the same watch took the jury’s
special prize at the Geneva Grand Prix de l’Horlogerie.

Breguet and culture
At the 60th Geneva International Music Competition, Montres
Breguet reaffirmed its desire to support talented young
musicians and hence culture and art. It had the pleasure of
presenting the special Coup de Cœur Breguet prize to Louis
Schwitzgebel-Wang, who was able to arouse the public’s
enthusiasm and impress the judges with his emotion, expres-
siveness and remarkable interpretation during the piano final
on November 18, 2005. Launched in 2002, the Coup de Cœur
Breguet prize also includes long-term support from the brand:
the winning artist gets the opportunity to record a disk in the
year following the presentation of the prize.
Breguet has teamed up with the prestigious Lucerne Festival
to form an exceptional partnership, which will commence in
2006. In becoming the main sponsor of the Lucerne Summer
Festival, the brand is bringing together the intrinsic beauty of
watchmaking and the emotions of classical music. At the
tribute to be paid in 2006 to Wolfgang Amadeus Mozart,
Breguet will be sponsoring the Requiem evening, directed by
Philippe Herreweghe.

On June 27, 2005, Breguet had the pleasure of sponsoring 
a prestigious Mozart concert in the superb Palau de la Música
Catalana in Barcelona. During this evening performance, 
the Freixenet de la Escuela Superior de Música Reina 
Sofía orchestra was directed by the famous conductor 
Sir Colin Davis.

Only Watch 2005, Monaco
Montres Breguet is raising awareness of muscular dystrophy
by taking part in an international charitable project organized
by the Muscular Dystrophy Association of Monaco under the
patronage of His Most Serene Highness Prince Albert II.
Aware of the severity of this condition and keen to maintain its
commitment to sick children, Manufacture Breguet has, in the
purest tradition of watchmaking craftsmanship, designed and
created a limited edition of seven watches in pink gold and
platinum as part of the Marine line. The first of these items
went on sale at the special Only Watch 2005 auction in
Monaco on September 22.
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BREGUET AND WOMEN
Breguet’s jewelry collection, created and produced by the
Group’s jewelry entity Dress Your Body (DYB) is once more
reconnecting with the genius of its creator.
Inspired by the first wristwatch that the brand’s founder
created for Caroline Murat, the Reine de Naples collection
was enriched this year with the Petites Reines line: elegant
models with a refined design that bring to life the brilliance of
precious stones. 
Introduced at Baselworld 2005, the new Fleur de Soleil line
pays tribute to woman: delicate sunflowers set with
diamonds, sapphires, tourmalines, spinels, tzavorite and
aquamarine, with iridescent opal pistils under the luminous
rays of the sun.
To celebrate the 250th anniversary of one of the most 
fervent admirers of Breguet watches, Queen Marie-Antoinette
of France, the Brand has created two sumptuous items 
of jewelry.
Firstly, the Marie-Antoinette Fleurs ornament, featuring
mysterious orchids completely set with diamonds, blue and
violet sapphires, and aquamarine on an embroidery of
diamonds, inspired by the English gardens in which the 
queen loved to daydream. 
Secondly, a veritable diamond filigree of extraordinary
brilliance emphasizes sumptuous Burmese rubies in the
Marie-Antoinette Dentelle ornament, paying homage to the
great femininity of the wife of King Louis XVI of France.
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TRENDS
• Under the leadership of Marc A. Hayek, Blancpain achieved

an unprecedented increase in turnover in 2005.
• The brand brought in exceptional results in China,

confirming the very strong sales potential there. The Far
Eastern, American and Spanish markets also recorded very
strong increases. Switzerland is back in the news, and
Germany is confirming its recovery.

• A growing interest in grandes complications models and
special series became evident, notably at Baselworld 2005,
where several limited editions dedicated to the brand’s
anniversary achieved immediate success. Consumers are
very alive to the visual beauty of mechanisms and the
decoration of movements, as is shown by the phenomenal
success of the Tourbillon Transparence model.

• Two new Blancpain Boutiques were opened, in Munich and
in Geneva. Located at the heart of key centers of luxury, they
will measurably increase the reputation of the brand in
those markets.

• The year 2005 was filled with numerous celebrations to mark
the 270th anniversary of the establishment of the Blancpain
brand. An anniversary crowned by the reopening of the
company’s magnificent workshops at Le Brassus, which
have been completely renovated and enlarged. They 
offer Blancpain’s master watchmakers a more functional
working environment that reflects almost three centuries of 
savoir-faire. The increased space obtained through the
enlargement of the factory will enable the company to
centralize by moving all production to Le Brassus in the
coming months.

• The book «A Tradition of Innovation», published to coincide
with the launch of the exhibition of the same name, 
is already a great success among enthusiasts and
connoisseurs of haute horlogerie. 

A tradition of innovation
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NEW PRODUCTS
Valentine’s Day 2005
Each year Blancpain celebrates the 14th of February by
presenting a limited edition of 99 pieces, dedicated to love.
The Villeret Saint-Valentin model is adorned with a sparkling
heart-shaped diamond at 12 o’clock. Setting off the radiance
of this dazzling declaration of love, 48 white diamonds sparkle
brilliantly on the bezel. Inimitable hallmark of the Villeret
collection, the restrained lines of the steel case marry
harmoniously with the purity of a white dial. The 175 parts
which make up the self-winding mechanical movement
regulate this subtle timepiece with sparkle and precision. 

The Quantième Perpétuel Ultraplat Dame 
To mark the inauguration of the Le Brassus factory, and in
keeping with its tradition of innovation, Blancpain introduced
the thinnest manual perpetual calendar watch in the world.
Just 2.91 mm thick, the Caliber 5621 is a jewel of miniaturiza-
tion. Its size is not the only outstanding thing about the Caliber
5621. From the very beginning, it was conceived and
developed for a clientele which benefits only too rarely from
original developments: women. Underneath its finery marked
with simplicity and restraint – characteristic of the Villeret
collection – the Blancpain Quantième Perpétuel Ultraplat
Dame is a remarkable summary of horological engineering,
allied to the discreet expression of a major mechanical
complication. The Quantième Perpétuel Ultraplat in 
18-carat grey gold is produced in a limited edition of 20
numbered examples.

Apotheosis Temporis
As a tribute to the watchmakers who have worked to
perpetuate the traditional crafts, the Blancpain company has
unveiled an exceptional set of eight major complications of 
the watchmaker’s art in the Apotheosis Temporis, limited to
eight examples. Ultra-slim, Time zone, Moon phase calendar,
Perpetual calendar with correctors under the horns, 
Single-press flyback chronograph, Tourbillon, Pure équation
marchante, and Minute repeater are brought together for the
first time in a sumptuous presentation box. Equipped with a
movement with automatic winding mechanism, these pieces
display the entire spectrum of the company’s mechanical,
technical and human genius. Embracing the lines of the
Villeret collection, and provided with a subtle matt-black dial
with applied hour-markers in gray gold, the eight pieces of the
Apotheosis Temporis set, made from Platinum 950, have a
diameter of 38 millimeters. Their sapphire back cover allows a
view of a platinum oscillating weight, varying according to the
model, made exclusively for the Apotheosis Temporis. A
sumptuous compartmentalized case with a cabinet of
Macassar ebony, set off by meticulous marquetry work, has
been handcrafted to display the Apotheosis Temporis set. This
case, a work of art in itself, offers display positions equipped
with rotary motors to ensure that the eight watches are
continuously wound up. 

Tourbillon Transparence
For the first time, Blancpain reveals the inner workings of an
exceptional movement: the Caliber 6925A. To give maximum
visibility to this extraordinary timepiece, Blancpain has given it
a 0.40 mm thick sapphire dial, pierced by 33 tiny holes to
expose the indexes and other decorative and functional
elements. By exposing that which is normally hidden,
Blancpain highlights all the decorative workings of the
movement – true added value and the hallmark of haute
horlogerie. A tribute to the master watchmakers, creators and
craftsmen, the Tourbillon Transparence comes in an exclusive
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limited edition of 27 examples. Water resistant to 100 meters,
the case of the Tourbillon Transparence is made of Platinum
950.

Quantième Perpétuel with correctors under the horns
The complex mechanism which makes up the quantième
perpétuel or perpetual calendar occupies a special place in
the Blancpain collections. In 2005, the brand devised,
developed, perfected and patented a system previously
unknown in the world of horological complications: correctors
under the horns. The four correctors are placed one under
each of the horns of the timepiece, guaranteeing optimal
comfort for the user, providing maximum ease of use, and
preserving the perfectly flowing lines of the case. 

Réveil Anniversaire
Produced in a limited and numbered edition of 270 examples,
the Réveil Anniversaire in brushed 18 ct red gold, with black
dial, has many useful indicators that reflect the complexity of
the automatic Caliber 1241. This mechanical movement with
two barrels is made up of 407 parts, and offers several
functions which are integrated in a novel way: the automatic
winding mechanism also rewinds the alarm ringer, and the
progress of this may be observed in an indicator on the dial. In
another useful innovation, the alarm timer is linked to the
display of the journey time zone, that of the temporary place
of residence that is shown by the large hour and minute
hands. In a most unusual feature, the date is also linked to the
journey time zone, and so is automatically adjusted for the
temporary place of residence.

Aqualung Grande Date
Produced in a limited and numbered edition of 2005 examples,
this timepiece is distinguished by its large date display in a
double aperture at 6 o’clock. Its strong personality, perfectly in
the tradition of the Léman collection, allies a contemporary
esthetic to a restrained sporting appearance. At the heart of
this watch lie the 283 components of the caliber Blancpain
6950, a self-winding mechanical movement with a 70-hour
power reserve. 

Flyback Grande Date
A successful complication from the Le Brassus factory, the
Chronographe Flyback was combined in 2005 with a resolutely
contemporary Grande Date. The column wheel and vertical
coupling, hallmarks of traditional top-of-the-range chrono-
graph mechanisms that are indispensable for precision release
and the measurement of short time intervals, are included in
all Blancpain chronographs.
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PRESENCE
Chess tournament in Russia
At an outstanding chess tournament held on November 24 in
collaboration with Mercury, around thirty haute horlogerie
enthusiasts were able to pit their wits against the world chess
champion and Blancpain ambassador Vladimir Kramnik. 
Marc A. Hayek, who attended this event in Moscow,
presented him with a remarkable Time Zone from the Villeret
collection, featuring a personalized oscillating weight
depicting the prestigious champion’s profile. 

Arab Horse Championships
Accentuating a common passion for beauty and the quest 
for perfection, Blancpain sponsored the Arab Horse
Championships, which took place in France in Menton in 
June and in Paris in December, in Borgloon (Belgium) in
August and in Frauenfeld (Switzerland) in September. The
Official Blancpain Prize is awarded to an exceptional Arab
thoroughbred, and highlights the constant quest for perfec-
tion and the philosophy of excellence that link the equestrian
world with that of its watchmaking partner. The owners of the
winning horses were presented with a «Chasse» watch with
full calendar, specially engraved for the occasion.

Monaco Yacht Show
Taking part in the prestigious Monaco Yacht Show for the sixth
time, Blancpain lived up to its tradition. It unveiled a limited
series of 150 exclusive numbered timepieces, the Léman
Aqualung Monaco Yacht Show 2005, distinguished by a
delicate engraving of the Monaco lighthouse on its back 
and the Monegasque coat of arms that adorns its ebony-black
dial. Each watch comes complete with a portfolio on

lighthouses illustrated by the artist Jean-Benoît Héron,
numbered and signed by the artist himself. As part of the
celebrations of the Monegasque maritime heritage, this sixth
partnership was marked by an official visit to the Blancpain
stand by Prince Albert II of Monaco, who recognized artist
Jean-Michel Folon for his lifetime’s work by presenting him
with a Léman Aqualung Monaco Yacht Show 2005 timepiece. 

Blancpain Charter Captain Award 2005 
Intended to honor the spirit of initiative and creativity shown
by charter cruise captains, the Blancpain Charter Captain
Award recognizes the perfection of performance, the quality of
service, the behavior and the skill of a captain and his crew.
Voted by his passengers and officially recognized as the
season’s best charter cruise captain, Aaron Clark of Four
Wishes was presented with a Léman Aqualung Monaco 
Yacht Show 2005 watch during a ceremony organized at the
Monaco Yacht Show. 

Only Watch 2005, Monaco
As part of the premiere charitable event Only Watch 2005 
that brought together Antiquorum, the famous watch auction
house, and 34 of the most renowned watch brands, Blancpain
revealed the unique nature of a self-winding timepiece in
brushed red gold with an astounding sapphire dial. The entire
proceeds have been donated to research into Duchenne
muscular dystrophy.
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October 6 and 7, 2005 were two exceptional open days that saw over 300 people, collectors and
media representatives arrive from the four corners of the earth to celebrate the reopening of the
company’s renovated workshops. The Farm, as it is affectionately known within Blancpain,
expresses the soul of the brand, and the respect that it accords to traditional methods. In
parallel with the inauguration of the workshops at Le Brassus, Blancpain presented its new tra-
veling exhibition A Tradition of Innovation, which recounts the history of the pioneering move-
ments and the numerous world firsts achieved by Blancpain. This year, Blancpain demonstrated
the constant inspiration of its watchmakers by achieving a new world record: the introduction
of the caliber 5621 Quantième Perpétuel Ultraplat Dame, so slender that it does not exceed a
thickness of 2.91 mm. A Tradition of Innovation began its world tour on November 3, with its first
stop in Taiwan.
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TRENDS
• The PanoMaticChrono model continues with its success story.

Following its very successful launch in 2004, this innovative
timepiece has just carried off three highly coveted honors on
a national and international level: Uhr des Jahres 2005
(Germany), Sächsischer Staatspreis für Design (Germany), and
iW International Wristwatch Award (United States).

• Strengthening its global market presence, under the leader-
ship of Frank Müller, the manufactory Glashütte Original
inaugurated a boutique in KunMing Jinlong (China). The
brand’s image was reinforced by the introduction of shop-in-
shop concepts and specially fitted-out corners, particularly
in Asia. The factory also has an exclusive corner at the Hotel
Adlon in Berlin, located close to the Brandenburg Gate.

• This year, Glashütte Original started a promising partnership
with duty-free companies in Singapore, Okinawa and Guam. 

• For this German company, practising watchmaking culture
and the art of craftsmanship means creating links with
traditional arts and crafts in the widest sense. With this in
mind, the glass atrium of the factory at Glashütte (Germany)
regularly acts as a venue for concerts and conferences. But
Glashütte Original’s cultural commitment goes well beyond
just those events taking place within its four walls. This 
year, at a concert given at the Semperoper in Dresden, the
American choreographer John Neumeier was awarded the
most coveted Saeculum-Glashütte Original-Musikfestspiel-
Preis for his work in the world of music.

NEW PRODUCTS
In 2005, Glashütte Original totally redefined two of its previous
lines, Senator and Sport Evolution. It also created and
launched the Star collection with its stylish accents. 
Since its launch onto the market, the Senator line has
experienced great success. Following its in-depth remodeling,
it is fitted with the new caliber 100, which introduces a 
very innovative construction. For the first time, the mechanism
of the new Senator models has been equipped with a 
device for zeroing the second hand. The Sport Evolution
Chronograph and Sport Evolution Panoramadatum variants
link functionality, precision and estheticism, in the spirit of
Handmade in Germany. It should be noted that the Sport
Evolution Panoramadatum watch is the brand’s first sports
model to feature the traditional panoramic date, a hallmark of
the company.
WhiteCrystal, PinkPassion, BlackSecret, SunRay and
SummerNight… The five models of the new Star collection
sparkle in the luxurious, highly stylized firmament of the
Glashütte Original company. In this firmament of quality,
modern women aware of their own worth are discovering
luxury mechanical timepieces that convey a message of class,
nobility and sensuality.

Handmade in Germany
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PRESENCE
German year in Japan
Glashütte Original introduced itself at a very exclusive evening
event at the Tokyo National Museum during the Berlin
Museum Exhibition. It was the first time ever that a watch
brand has been honored in this way. The event gave rise to a
special edition in pink gold limited to 25 copies, baptized
Kronentor, with a Meissen porcelain dial. 

The Frauenkirche watch
There has always been a desire to rebuild the Notre Dame
cathedral in Dresden. The reunification of Germany enabled
this wish to be fulfilled with the founding of the Verein zum
Wiederaufbau der Frauenkirche association. On October 30,
2005, after eleven years of work, the new Dresden
Frauenkirche was solemnly inaugurated. As a German compa-
ny, Glashütte Original had the reconstruction of this remark-
able building very much at heart, and dedicated a special
model to it: a watch depicting the rebuilt Frauenkirche on the
dial and the ruins on the back. These two images are painted
on fine porcelain produced by the Meissen State Porcelain
Factory. This original and exclusive chronometer was
presented to the association for subsequent sale by auction.  

Singapore 1965
In tribute to a nation which has experienced unparalleled
economic success during the 40 years since its independence,
Glashütte Original created a commemorative watch limited 
to 40 copies. Its ultra-fine porcelain dial displays the old 
national map of Singapore, painted with absolute perfection
by an artist at the Meissen State Porcelain Factory. One of the
two platinum watches was presented by the brand’s
president, Dr Frank Müller, to the President of the Republic of
Singapore, Sellapan Rama Nathan, as a gift to the nation.

The Alfred Helwig watchmaking school in Kuwait
For the first time since its foundation, Glashütte Original’s
Alfred Helwig watchmaking school left Glashütte, where it has
scored a huge success. For four days, it held its lessons in the
Salhiya Mall in Kuwait. In front of the exclusive Behbehani
jewelry store, master watchmaker Uwe Bahr presented his
lessons several times a day to three of his apprentices, as he
regularly does at the Glashütte watchmaking school.
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TRENDS
• Under the guidance of its CEO Manuel Emch, the perform-

ance of Jaquet Droz took off in 2005. Strongly reinforcing its
position in the luxury watch segment, it conquered not only
new areas within its existing markets, but also completely
new markets. Its reputation increased considerably
following significant advertising investments made in the
key markets of Asia, Russia, and the US.

• The project of bringing production techniques in house has
been pursued. It effectively seeks further to emphasize 
the quality of the knowledge and skills of the master 
watchmakers and craftsmen in the company, whilst
simultaneously aiming to bring together all its production
sites under one roof.

• Conscious of the need to maintain a direct link with its
clientele, Jaquet Droz has undertaken an in-depth redesign
of its web site, transforming it into a perpetually evolving
showcase. In June 2005, it broke new ground with the
launch of an electronic newsletter.

• The excellence of Jaquet Droz’ master watchmakers won
pleasing international recognition when the jumping-hour
Les Douze Villes model received the official prize of the
Revue des Montres 2004, awarded in June 2005 by 
Editions Jalou.

Visionary
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PRESENCE
The year 2005 saw the opening of the first two Jaquet Droz
own-name boutiques in the world. One, in Japan, was set up
in November in an exceptional area, Roppongi Hills, the
prestigious Tokyo quarter reserved exclusively for luxury and
fashion. The other, in Switzerland, was opened in December in
the center of a city that has shaped the history of the 
company: Geneva. It was here that Pierre Jaquet Droz
established the city’s first ever watchmaking factory over 
two centuries ago.
The brand’s presence in retail outlets is growing strongly. New
corners have been installed, notably in the US, Japan, and
France. In Paris, the brand made a conspicuous entrance in
that cult residence of urban design, Magasin Colette on the
rue Saint-Honoré.
Various events marked the private viewings of its traveling
exhibition, with launches of its collection taking place in
Taipei, Bern, Bucharest, and Paris.
These topical events were the forum for encounters with the
media, particularly in Asia. In Hong Kong and Tokyo, numerous
journalists took part in two press conferences organized in
April. Together with the renowned Japanese magazine Tokei
Begin, Jaquet Droz also organized a major competition 
which saw three Japanese winners awarded a journey to
Switzerland in the footsteps of Pierre Jaquet Droz.

NEW PRODUCTS
Hommage Genève 1784
Dedicated to the classic models of the collection, the
Hommage Genève 1784 line has been extended to include
several new models. For example, the Grande Date model is
the first Jaquet Droz creation to display the day of the month
in a window with a generous 5.4 millimeters opening. It is
available in a circular-grained version, and an enameled
limited edition of 88 copies. The Grande Seconde Émail Noir
ardoise offers the fiery combination of a case in red gold and,
a world first, a dial in slate-black colored Grand Feu enamel. In
a limited edition of 88 examples, it is a passionate declaration
of the brand’s savoir-faire. Also in a limited edition of 88, the
very striking Grande Seconde Carbone pays vibrant homage to
vigor, dynamism, and inventiveness. 

Hommage Londres 1774
The first model of the Hommage Londres 1774 line, the Grande
Heure Minute features a small subdial for the seconds at 9
o’clock, a raised dial, and a 43 mm steel case – the first time
that this metal has been used in the history of the company.
With this line Jaquet Droz perpetuates not only the innovative
spirit of its founder, but also his entrepreneurial spirit, by
paying homage to the brand’s second factory established in
1774 by Pierre Jaquet Droz and his son Henry-Louis in this key
point of embarkation for expeditions towards new horizons in
China and the Indies.

Hommage La Chaux-de-Fonds 1738
Made up solely of grandes complications models, the
Hommage La Chaux-de-Fonds 1738 line welcomed two new
models introduced at Baselworld 2005. The Quantième
Perpétuel plays delicately with its hands in blued steel: wavy
hands are used for the calendar, whilst straight hands are
used for the time. Available either with a ring or in an
enameled limited Numerus Clausus edition of 88, this model is
equipped with a movement presenting an extreme complexity.
Also available in the same two versions, the Les Deux Fuseaux
watch unites innovation and tradition, technical prowess and
esthetic refinement. The seconds are on a small subdial at 6
o’clock, and the date window for local time is at 3 o’clock. The
large and centered hour and minute hands display the local
time and a 12-hour second counter, off-center at midday, is
subtly coupled with a 24-hour counter at 9 o’clock.
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TRENDS
• In 2005, Léon Hatot, the youngest member of the Swatch

Group family, recorded numerous successes in terms of
growth under the dynamic guidance of Arlette-Elsa Emch. Its
turnover saw double-digit growth, and its market share is
increasing steadily.

• The brand succeeded in strengthening the presence of the
Swatch Group in the luxury sector. In particular, it developed
its distribution network by opening a dozen points of sale
spread throughout the entire world, with a more marked
presence in Europe (Spain, Germany and England). As a high
point, it is worth noting the advent of the third Léon Hatot
boutique, and the first in Switzerland, in Geneva.

• Baselworld 2005 marked an exceptional turning point for the
Haute Joaillerie segment. At the event, Léon Hatot sold its
magnificent sets of jewelry, thus demonstrating that it has
succeeded in distinguishing itself in this niche market.

• In March 2005, the company celebrated the centenary of the
opening of its first boutique by its founder with a private
showing at Christie’s salerooms in Paris. In this historic loca-
tion, the company welcomed over two hundred people, who
had come to celebrate a creator who dedicated his entire
works to the beauty of women. They admired the Éventail
collection, which was specially created for the event.

• The brand introduced to the public its first ambassador in
the person of Parisian prima ballerina Marie-Agnès Gillot.
She also played the leading role in Léon Hatot’s new
advertising campaign.

NEW PRODUCTS
Spread over three segments – Haute Joaillerie, Joaillerie and
Bijouterie – the current collections all draw their inspiration
from the abundant imagination of the master.
In 2005, Léon Hatot notably expanded its products in the
Haute Joaillerie category. These are adorned with exceptional
stones, and flamboyant colors emphasizing diamonds and
sapphires. The Pompon line harmonizes diamonds with pink
sapphires or, in an alternative version, diamonds with
emeralds and yellow sapphires. Unique items, veritable
treasures, are reflected in the poetry of the Nuage items, set
with diamonds and blue or pink sapphires. The specific
expertise of today’s master jewelers enables haute joaillerie 
to be presented from a new, dreamlike perspective.
In the Joaillerie segment, the unique Éventail collection,
which celebrated the jeweler’s centenary, subtly combines
chalcedony, blue sapphires and diamonds. Inspired by a 
100-year old drawing of a fan by Léon Hatot himself, this
collection has touched the hearts of women around the world,
meeting with unimagined success. 
The brand launched its first circular watches, which perfectly
combine the elegance of Haute Joaillerie with current trends.
The Ailes du Désir, Pompon and Nuage models, introduced 
at Baselworld 2005, honor the spirit of art deco and the 
Belle Époque.
The Vertige watch enabled the company to gain its first
distinction: a nomination in the Prix du Public category of the
Geneva Grand Prix de l’Horlogerie. Over a thousand diamonds,
totaling 13 carats, decorate the spiral motifs of this jewel,
giving it a hint of eternity. When delicately brushed with the
touch of a hand, the cover pivots, revealing the time… as if to
recall reality. 
In addition to these new models, the brand continued to
develop its classic collections: Zélia, Aimay, Mae, Luela and
Kimay. Crowned with a «Coup de Foudre» diamond that is the
indispensable hallmark of every contemporary creation, these
five watch and jewelry lines are true to the spirit of their
master: the sublimation of feminine beauty. 

PRESENCE
By stepping up its international PR activities, Léon Hatot
increased its coverage in terms of editorial articles in the
international and national press.
It promoted the openings of its new points of sale by
organizing events to which customers and personalities were
invited. In addition to the centenary celebrations held at
Christie’s in Paris, the brand also celebrated this anniversary
by successfully reviving the spirit of the era in Switzerland,
Japan and Malaysia. 

Être femme
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Elegance is an attitude

TRENDS
• The year 2005 was an excellent vintage for Longines under

the expert leadership of Walter von Känel. The brand
benefited from sustained growth in Far Eastern markets
such as China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Japan, as well as in
its key European markets.

• Despite the particular attention paid to the US market, it has
not yet taken off, although there are signs of an upward trend.

• With regard to new products, Longines has this year high-
lighted its solid watchmaking expertise, as well as the
extraordinary heritage handed down throughout the years
by its craftsmen, by launching the new The Longines Master
Collection and product lines aimed at an ever more
demanding clientele.
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NEW PRODUCTS
The Longines Master Collection
It is with justifiable pride that Longines is introducing this new
collection of classic watches with complications. Consisting of
ten basic models, with nine different versions of mechanical
movements, The Longines Master Collection is in keeping with
the purest horological tradition. Its restrained design and 
the harmony of its lines, which combine classicism and
modernism, give these timepieces a character that is strong,
essential and naturally elegant.

Longines evidenza
Since its launch in 2003, the Longines evidenza collection has
been enthusiastically welcomed everywhere. Applauded as
much for the elegance of its tonneau case as for its 
horological qualities, it demonstrates that technology can
express itself with a distinctive refinement. Its success has led
Longines to supplement it with mini-size versions, models set
with diamonds, and models with complicated mechanisms 
– moon phase, double-aperture date, and power reserve – for
both ladies and men. 

Longines DolceVita
The refined lines of the Longines DolceVita collection’s
rectangular case continue to catch the eye of enthusiasts of
objects possessing an authentic character. Encouraged by 
this fact, the brand has launched new models set with diamonds
– with a case generously accentuated with one or two rows of
diamonds, or delicately paved, and dials adorned with diamond-
set Arabic numerals – and a new maxi-size chronograph.

Les Élégantes de Longines 
and La Grande Classique de Longines
The launch of the fourth edition of the Les Élégantes de
Longines jewel-watches, replicas of authentic Longines
creations dating from the Roaring Twenties, was hailed at
Baselworld 2005, as were the new models that have enriched
the La Grande Classique de Longines collection.

PRESENCE
Ambassadors of Elegance
Prestigious names from the performing arts, including the
Hollywood immortals Audrey Hepburn and Humphrey Bogart,
today appear right across the world in Longines communica-
tions next to contemporary stars such as the beautiful and
talented Indian actress Aishwarya Rai, China’s Carina Lau and
the Russian actor Oleg Menshikov. This year, the American
Harry Connick, Jr. and China’s Aaron Kwok join these famous
figures in order to illustrate and accompany the Elegance is an
attitude advertising campaign.
Harry Connick, Jr. – This show-business virtuoso born in
Louisiana is a pianist, singer, big-band conductor, composer
and arranger, and also one of the world’s most talented
screen, television and stage actors. Longines is both proud
and happy that Harry Connick, Jr. is lending his fame to that
of the brand in his capacity as a new Ambassador of Elegance.
Aaron Kwok – The elegance and finesse of this Chinese
performer has made him one of today’s most popular variety
and dance stars in Hong Kong and all over Asia. Over the
years, he has won more than one hundred prizes for his acting
and musical achievements. His numerous professional
successes and his constant quest for perfection and
innovation mean that Aaron Kwok has for a long time had a
public that is both faithful and admiring.
Chosen for their undisputable charisma and elegance, the
Longines Ambassadors of Elegance are significantly helping 
to convey the image and message of the Elegance is an
attitude brand.
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Longines and horse riding
To personify its commitment to the world of horse riding,
Longines signed a partnership agreement with German rider
Pia-Luise Aufrecht at the start of the year. Pia-Luise Aufrecht,
who is a member of the German national team, joins the
brand’s family of Ambassadors of Elegance, which includes
one of the world’s best horsemen, Markus Fuchs of
Switzerland, and the talented young riders Maryline Vorpe and
Jane Richard, also of Switzerland.
This year, Longines also focused on Super League meetings. In
its capacity as official timekeeper and manager of computer
data, Longines took part for the first time in the opening
competition of the Super League, the Jumping International
Officiel de France (La Baule), the Piazza di Siena CSIO in Rome,
the Swiss CSIO at St Gallen, the Longines Royal International
Horse Show at Hickstead, and finally the Barcelona CSIO. On
this occasion, the brand awarded the Longines Prize for
Elegance – which for the second consecutive year took the
form of an annual ranking – to Ellen Whitaker of Great Britain
and Markus Fuchs of Switzerland.
Longines was also present at the Spring Racing Carnival
meeting in Melbourne. And for the first time, Longines took
part in the Middle East Arab League 2005 – 2006, which
consists of four tournaments: one was held in Egypt
(Alexandria) and the three others in the United Arab Emirates
(Sharjah, Dubai and Abu Dhabi).

Longines and gymnastics
In 2005, Longines marked a new stage in its commitment to
the world of gymnastics: the brand established links with the
gymnasts of the Russian men’s artistic gymnastics team. It
also entered into a partnership with three talented young
rhythmic gymnasts, Dinara Gimatova (Azerbaijan), Olga
Kapranova (Russia) and Aliya Yussupova (Kazakhstan).
As official timekeeper and manager of computer data,
Longines was present at the European Artistic Gymnastics
Championships in Debrecen (Hungary) and the European
Rhythmic Gymnastics Championships in Moscow. At the
World Rhythmic Gymnastics Championships in Baku, the new
Ambassador of Elegance Olga Kapranova was awarded four
gold medals, while Irina Tchachina of Russia took the
Longines Prize for Elegance.
The brand also took part in the World Artistic Gymnastics
Championships in Melbourne, where Monette Russo of
Australia and Luis Rivera of Puerto Rico were voted the
competition’s most elegant gymnasts.
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TRENDS
• In the course of the year 2005, Rado achieved a significant

strengthening of its presence in the most important markets
under the guidance of its CEO Roland Streule. By doing so,
it convincingly raised itself once again to the leading
position in the designer watch sector, calling on precious
high-tech scratchproof materials.

• Rado continued to consolidate its already dominant position
in the important Chinese market, as well as in other markets
of the future. In addition to deploying intensive marketing
efforts and optimizing its distribution network, Rado’s 
strong presence in Shanghai as official timekeeper of the
prestigious Tennis Masters Cup 2005 also contributed to this
positive development.

• Recent months have seen the Rado brand create a sensation
thanks to the launch of the reinterpretation of one of its first
classics. Christened The Original, after the world’s first
scratchproof watch, this timepiece was aimed at new target
groups that Rado was able to impress.
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• In parallel, the brand continued smoothly with its new
positioning in the ladies’ watch sector. Some sumptuous
high-tech de luxe models in multicolored ceramics were
introduced through an extensive communications campaign
using striking language with a strong emotional impact.
These luxurious creations aroused the enthusiasm of
consumers from all four corners of the globe. 

• In the traditional Rado markets of the Near and Middle 
East, as in the Indian subcontinent, the brand recorded
significantly increased turnover. 

• Thanks to intensive market research, its presence in Latin
America also improved significantly, and this was translated
into an immediate increase in turnover.
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NEW PRODUCTS
The Original
The year 2005 was marked at Rado by two key events. The first
of these involved the reissuing of the world’s first scratchproof
watch, which was originally produced by Rado’s workshops in
1962. The new Original timepiece respects the integral form of
the classic design icon of the same name, but is equipped
with new functions, subtle design elements, very fashionable
dials and innovative bracelets. Its Classic, Chronograph and
Diver models have become must-haves for the young
generation in certain specially selected markets.

Sintra Jubilé
A second significant development met with an equally
favorable reception in the press and among consumers: Rado
created a sensation with its seductive palette of brand-new
colors. Fashionable shades set off the high-tech scratchproof
ceramics of the Rado watches. Available in black, white and
pink, the Sintra Jubilé models are the stars of the new
Lifestyle catalog that is distributed throughout the world.
Additional subtle nuances are being developed. Glorying in
fashionable summer and fall colors, the Sintra Style and Sintra
Nature models are absolutely captivating with their snakeskin
and sharkskin bracelets, their dials and their precious stones
of assorted colors.  

V10K
Rado had great success thanks to the veritable turning point 
it achieved in the hardness sector: the Rado V10K, the 
hardest watch in the world. Introduced in 2005, this watch
very rapidly received five highly coveted international 
distinctions from famous design institutes celebrating its
particularly accomplished shape and the development of an
innovative material.
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PRESENCE
Tennis Masters Cup, Shanghai
Among Rado’s numerous activities in 2005, one of the most
memorable highlights was the presence of the brand at the
Tennis Masters Cup (TMC) in Shanghai (China), representing a
major first. Rado was able to rise to the challenge of its role as
official timekeeper and measurer of service speeds at this
tournament, which brought together the world’s eight best
tennis players. The contract signed between the TMC’s
organizers and Rado at the beginning of 2005 has been agreed
for the next three years. The reason for this commitment is the
perfect platform that this event represents for Rado in terms of
marketing and image. It takes place in the city of Shanghai,
known for an architectural style which is the last word in
modernity, in a brand new ultramodern stadium of 
avant-garde design.

Rado ambassadors
In Russia, Rado has found an outstanding ambassador in the
successful director, scriptwriter and actress Renata Litvinova.
This collaboration began with an unusual event: the premier 
of a short film entitled Sweets to the Sweet, shot by the
talented young woman for Rado. Central theme of this work: 
a time for waiting, a time for rejoicing.
The virtuoso violinist Julian Rachlin is another Rado emissary.
As a Rado fan and tennis enthusiast, he was delighted to give
a performance celebrating the 10th anniversary of the Austrian
Thomas Muster’s victory in the French Open. Julian Rachlin
played a wonderful piece in front of the famous tennis player
and the invited guests in the Rado VIP lounge at the Roland
Garros stadium. 
In India, a Rado is seen as one of the most exclusive wedding
presents. A «Special marriage» collection of the Rado Coupole
was launched on the occasion of a very glamorous event, in
the presence of the actress and Rado ambassador Lisa Ray.
Brides in traditional and modern wedding dresses modeled
these watches of timeless beauty.
A very cheeky burglary took place in Dubai. During the launch
of the world’s hardest watch, the Rado V10K, a stranger burst
into the middle of the event, breaking the display showcase
and stealing the V10K. Shortly afterwards, he was spotted
attempting to escape up the front of one of the towers of the
Dubai Marina. The bandit was however quickly apprehended,
and the watch was restored to its showcase. The identity of
the Spiderman was revealed: it was none other than the
famous extreme climber, the Frenchman Alain Robert.

Rado Boutiques
In the course of the year, Rado opened several new and
exclusive own-name boutiques which can be found notably in
Malaysia and in India. Numerous shop-in-shops have also
been fitted out in order to display the brand from a more
emotional and attractive angle.
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TRENDS
• 2005 marked ten years of continuous growth for Tissot which,

under the impetus supplied by its CEO François Thiébaud, is
the world number one in the traditional Swiss watch sector
in terms of volume, with the largest number of watches sold,
after Swatch, in the mid-price bracket.

• True not only to its traditional heritage but also to its
potential for innovation, the brand continued in 2005 to
combine watchmaking expertise, cutting-edge design and
the use of new materials. The new T-Touch in polished
titanium with anti-scratch coating and carbon fiber dial
illustrates this savoir-faire, as does the Trend line for ladies
with the innovative Precious Flower and the Gold collection
adorned with cultured pearls.

• At the points of sale, the emphasis placed on merchandising
and on the creation of a consistent and quality image led to
the rollout of the new «T» showcase concept in 15 000 stores
worldwide. Tissot was also proud to inaugurate several
monobrand stores in Asia.

• Two new female ambassadors agreed to represent the brand
in the essential markets of the United States and Asia:
respectively the Indy car driver Danica Patrick and the
Taiwanese actress Barbie Xu.

• Significant sports partnerships included the timekeeping
contract with the International Cycling Union (ICU), which has
been extended until 2008. In motorbiking, the Pole Position
Prize was created for each of the three MotoGP categories.
The signature of the contract with the organization committee
of the 15th Asian Games in Doha (Qatar) in 2006 makes Tissot
the official timekeeper of this important meeting.

• At the end of the year, Tissot also signed up the American
motorbiker Nicky Hayden, currently third in the MotoGP world
championships, as a brand ambassador. Dynamic and person-
able, Hayden is a role model for the younger generation.

• Last but not least, the extension of the partnership with
English footballer Michael Owen, under contract since 1998,
allows to create a limited edition watch. This partnership
places the brand in a good position for the important 2006
Fototball World Cup in Germany.

NEW PRODUCTS
Tissot is proud to create timepieces for all tastes, from classic
chic to the latest trends, from traditional pocket watches to
high-tech tactile watches and from gold creations to
exceptional models of sporting precision. It is a range that is
still based on the brand’s philosophy of providing excellent
quality at an affordable price.

T-Tactile
Launched in 2000, the exclusive T-Touch tactile technology
watch now exists in a ladies’ version in polished titanium with
a mother-of-pearl dial and white or blue leather strap,
combining extreme lightness and sporty elegance. A new men’s
model with carbon fiber dial and a bezel featuring a compass
rose offers additional precision and cutting-edge design.
The T-Navigator 3000, which allows you to select the time in
150 different countries or cities by simply activating the tactile
crystal, automatically switches between summer and winter
time up to 2099. With the Navigator 3000, Tissot delivers a
follow-up to the innovation implemented with the mechanical
Navigator created in 1953, which offered the possibility to
visualize the time of 24 cities.

T-Sport
Targeting the world of two-wheel sport, the T-Race watch was
launched in a ladies’ version, with miniaturized adornments
and bright candy colors. The T-Race has also been adapted to
become the Official MotoGP watch. This limited edition of
5002 pieces was sold out even before it could be delivered to
the stores. Sporting a red carbon-fiber dial, this watch was
displayed in a tire-shaped box featuring the medallions of the
17 motorcycle Grand Prix circuits.
The Tissot limited edition Ice-T watch, whose dial draws its
inspiration from a skating rink with a puck and a stick
engraved on the back cover of the case, was unveiled at the
Ice Hockey Championships in Davos. The first piece was
presented to the Swiss national ice hockey trainer, Ralf Krüger.
Finally, for autosports enthusiasts, Tissot launched the new
PRS 516 based on a model from the Tissot collection of the
1960s. Fitted with a state-of-the-art Valjoux 7750 movement,
its distinctive features include a carbon-fiber dial, a steering
wheel engraved on the case back, and characteristic holes in
its leather or metal bracelet, identical to the bracelets of the
1960s, which gave Tissot the inspiration for the central part of
the steering wheels.
The PRC 200 met with great success amongst those who
prefer a classic look, as did its Michael Owen limited edition
(4999 pieces) with stylized dial and a football at 2 o’clock.
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T-Trend
A major push influenced the ladies’ collection with the launch
of the mini Grain de Folie line with its beaded «coffee bean»
bracelet, automatic versions of the famous TXS line in pastel
colors, and Porto Lady models with mother-of-pearl dials. With
its slinky metal bracelet, the Six-T formed the latest addition to
the collection. True innovation was shown with Precious
Flower (in all diamond, all sapphires, and diamond-ruby-
sapphire versions) and its enameled Flower Power line. The
petals of the flower open, enabling the watch to be worn in
three different positions.

T-Classic
Those who love timeless elegance will appreciate the Ballade
III model with its characteristic ring design, particularly since
it is available in ladies’ and men’s as well as automatic or
quartz versions. 

T-Pocket
Producer of pocket watches since 1853, Tissot continues to
innovate each year in this niche segment, notably in 2005 with
the mechanical Phileas hunter watch, which can display all 24
time zones.

T-Heritage
A COSC (Contrôle officiel suisse des chronomètres) chrono-
meter movement graces the limited edition Heritage 1952
watch in steel or gold, inspired by a model of that year. It
displays the Tissot family coat of arms engraved on the back 
of the case.

T-Gold
The watches in the Gold collection, the most exceptional ones
in the Tissot range, also reflect the brand’s innovative spirit,
particularly in the special design of the bracelets. 2005 was no
exception with the launch of models in the Pearl Fishers 
line: a bracelet of freshwater pearls in different shades of
cream, pink and gray, on which a small detachable pendant
watch is mounted.

PRESENCE
A truly global brand operating in over 150 countries around
the world, Tissot attaches equal importance to creating a
regional presence in its home country of Switzerland, which
still remains one of its major markets since it continues to lead
the field there in volume terms. These national roots were
particularly noticeable in 2005 with the brand’s official
partnership during the centenary of the Neuchâtel Museum of
Ethnography. To celebrate the event, it created the official
watch and provided a time capsule to be opened in 100 years.
This watertight casket contains the Tissot 150th anniversary
watch, a book recounting the brand’s history, and a summary
of the museum’s historic work.
In its capacity as a partner of the art nouveau centenary
celebrations in La Chaux-de-Fonds, Tissot collaborated with
the town’s art school to create the official timepiece: a pocket
watch with a fir tree motif typical of the very special and
famous Style sapin (fir-tree style), a signature of the region
and the era. 
A particularly innovative tactile-technology roadshow also
took place across Switzerland. This enabled the public to
choose a watch and try it on their wrist virtually – a world
exclusive that met with great success.
Sports partnerships as official timekeeper at the MotoGP,
cycling, ice hockey and fencing world championships ensured
a global presence and visibility. The first MotoGP champi-
onships to be held in the USA for ten years, and the first ever
championships in China and Turkey considerably increased the
brand’s credibility amongst sports fans in these countries.
The conspicuous participation by Tissot at the London Fashion
Week, where it ran the timeline and provided the official
watches with the Precious Flower model, enabled it to
reinforce the growing global awareness of its Trend collections
for ladies in front of the public and specialist press from
around the world.
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Extreme, topical

TRENDS
• A New York label, Calvin Klein is at the same time 

extreme and unassuming. Successfully led by its co-founder 
Arlette-Elsa Emch, ck watch & jewelry suits today’s woman,
who loves mixing styles but will always favor a clean-cut
minimal line. Today, design is becoming one of the most
important occupations in watches and jewelry, which must
convey a unique, identifiable message just as does fashion.
A way of discovering and appreciating a brand, and of enter-
ing into its own particular universe.

• The success experienced by the jewelry creations launched
in 2004 won widespread recognition and confirmed the
desire of customers to explore this universe where bracelets,
rings and necklaces are always true to the brand style.

• A collection of jewelry for men has enhanced the life of the
brand. ck hook is sleek, strong, masculine and sexy. This new
opportunity confirms that, if jewelry is an important element
in the existence of women, it is also becoming so for men.

• In 2005, over 70 shop-in-shops were installed, 50 of which in
Europe. They enable watches and jewelry to be presented
side by side in a personalized environment mirroring the
brand’s message. Flexibility, suspension, light and visibility
of the logo make this installation an ideal means of
presentation. ck watch & jewelry intends to continue the
development of this project in the more than 60 markets in
which it is active.
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PRESENCE
Following on from Geneva and Venice, Antwerp – a modern
advocate of the art of living – played host to a meeting with
the European press during the year under review. The 2005
collection was introduced at a preview in front of over 90
specialist fashion journalists from 17 countries. The response
proved to be extraordinary, judging by the excellent press
articles that followed. This meeting was a very good 
introduction to Baselworld 2005, where the collection
presentations were particularly appreciated by the privileged
partners of ck watch & jewelry.
A new international advertising campaign was also launched.
Its intense images drew their inspiration from the previous
season’s campaign, reinterpreting its concept. Created in New
York by the famous photographer Mario Sorrenti and a team of
designers and producers, the campaign features Noah Mills
and Natalia Vodianova, the exclusive Calvin Klein model
nominated Model of the Year 2005. 

NEW PRODUCTS
Always at the pinnacle of the fashion world, ck watch &
jewelry started its ninth year of activity with some exciting
creations, featuring new and daring shapes. Witness the ck
ray watch, arched like a vault, with a satin finish and
magnificently feminine. A striking, irresistible style that
appealed most successfully, with a lovely variant being
introduced for Christmas.
The brand has continuously remodeled its range, in turn
introducing new models and reinterpreting its classics. For
example, a new dimension has been added to the futuristic
approach of ck flash, defining a new modernism. Its innovative
technique projects an identity that is brilliant, assertive and
refined. Sculpted in polished stainless steel in the form of an
impenetrable ring, it embodies the very essence of ultra-
modern design.
Ultimately the most successful collection in the brand’s
history, it expresses a perfect equilibrium between masculine
and feminine. 
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TRENDS
• Thanks to its global price repositioning, Balmain experiences

a successful 2005. It announces pleasing double-digit
growth in terms of quantities of pieces sold and increase in
market share.

• In its main market, the Middle East, Balmain achieves a
spectacular breakthrough in Saudi Arabia. Other markets,
such as Switzerland, Belgium, Russia, and Singapore also
see double-digit growth.

• Its association with the Miss Switzerland competition
constitutes an unprecedented success for the brand. Elected 
in September 2005, Lauriane Gilliéron, the lucky winner,
makes a strong contribution to rejuvenating and revitalizing
Balmain’s image.

NEW PRODUCTS
In 2005, Balmain’s ladies’ models sign for a resounding
success. The biggest improvement is shown by the ample, very
sleek Arcade and Elypsa chronographs, as well as the
exclusive pieces in steel set with diamonds such as La Vela,
Miss Balmain Arcade and Arcade Chrono Lady.
A major premier for the Saint-Imier brand: in 2005, Balmain is
the first to launch two collections featuring the new Big Date
quartz movement from ETA Manufacture Horlogère Suisse.
This combination of technical achievement and exclusive,
elegant styling causes sales to rocket, notably for the Élysées
Big Date collection.

PRESENCE
In September 2005, Balmain launches the Arcade Chrono line
dedicated to the Miss Switzerland competition, for which it 
is the official watch. Over the course of time, the various
models in this line achieve very marked success, naturally in
Switzerland, but also in all Balmain markets.
Following its participation in Baselworld 2005, Balmain also
sees a welcome expansion in Eastern Europe, especially in
Russia. Encouraged by this success, the brand organizes a
seminar for salespeople from its twenty biggest outlets in
these markets, and successfully partakes its development and
sales strategies.

Miss Switzerland
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TRENDS
• Hamilton, led by Matthias Breschan, did very well in 2005,

and closed the period under review with results showing
double-digit growth. Not only did the brand make progress
in its mature markets; it was also very successful in new
markets such as the Middle East and China.

• Further consolidating the links which unite its two
traditional passions, aviation and the movies, the Swiss
brand was very actively involved in some significant events.
It achieved product placements in films which created a big
impression in 2005, such as Into the Blue, The Aviator,
Fantastic Four and The Producers.

• Jazz became the recurring theme at Hamilton in 2005,
inspiring Jazzmaster, a new collection in the American
Classic range. The latest watch creations were put under the
spotlight in an updated advertising campaign.

NEW PRODUCTS
Ligne Khaki
Pilots and navigators have greatly appreciated the new Khaki
X-Wind Automatic and Khaki Navy Regatta models, both fitted
with a unique function that allows the calculation of side
winds. These robust watches are water-resistant to 100
meters, and are protected by a sapphire crystal, underlining
the importance that Hamilton places on Swiss quality.

American Classic and jazz
The new Jazzmaster range contains six variations on the
theme of jazz, with both men’s and ladies’ models. Right from
its launch at Baselworld 2005, the Jazzmaster Lady has been
a talking point because of the secret words of love engraved
in miniature on its hands. The Jazzmaster Chrono Auto was
also a great success, as was the self-winding gold Jazzmaster
Réserve de marche in a limited edition.

In 2005 Hamilton combined its Hollywood heritage with its
cutting-edge technological knowledge in the Frogman watch.
This titanium model draws its inspiration from the dive 
watch that the brand created for its 1951 movie debut in the
film The Frogmen.

PRESENCE
Hamilton and aviation
By becoming the official partner of the world championship
Red Bull Air Race in 2005, Hamilton pushed back the limits of
what is possible. The eight stages of this aerial time trial
allowed millions of spectators across the world to admire the
Hamilton pilot, 38-year-old Frenchman Nicolas Ivanoff, and his
plane painted in the brand’s colors.

Hamilton and Hollywood
For the third year in succession, Hamilton organized the
Timeless Style Awards in Hollywood. This prize recognizes the
work of film stylists and costume designers. And, for the first
time, the brand brought this concept to Europe during the 53rd

Donostia-San Sebastián International Film Festival, where it
was the official partner. The winner in Spain subsequently
took part in the international ceremony in Hollywood in
November 2005 where twelve persons, including two
Europeans, were recognized by the brand.

A passion for the sky 
and the movies
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PRESENCE
Whilst retaining its positioning and more than ever promoting
authentic Swiss watches of quality, the brand has given itself
a new visual identity on a global scale. More modern and
stylized than the previous logo, the new one will in future be
visible on all Mido support material. 
The major event of the year took place in Mexico City, where
the racing driver Michel Jourdain brilliantly introduced the
Ocean Star Michel Jourdain special series in front of a very
large invited audience. The champion’s supporters and all the
Nascar racing fans in attendance were thrilled with the many
qualities of this model, equipped with a carbon dial which is
clearly visible thanks to its antireflective sapphire glass.
For the second year running, Mido teamed up with
Cosmopolitan magazine to award the Cosmopolitan / Mido
Reflecting on Time Award in Thailand. This prize is aimed at
women who have performed outstandingly in different areas
of Thai society during the preceding twelve months.

TRENDS
• In 2005, Mido saw sustained growth in its business, closing

the year with an excellent turnover. 
• The strongest growth was in Asia – more precisely in China

and Taiwan. In Latin America the brand’s number one
market, Mexico, once again increased its sales and strongly
defended its leading position. In Europe, Mido scored its
best performance of 2005 with the German market.

• Expansion continued to be the name of the game for the
brand in 2005, with a further six countries joining its inter-
national network. 

NEW PRODUCTS
Ocean Star Captain
The third generation of the Ocean Star Captain line was
introduced at Baselworld 2005 to great acclaim. Created at the
start of the 1980s this marine line, with its contemporary
design, features Mido’s exclusive Aquadura system that
reinforces the crown’s protection with natural cork, thus
ensuring perfect water-resistance. Since these watches are
not only water-resistant but also sturdy, a special series was
perfected with the assistance of Michel Jourdain, the Mexican
Nascar driver.

All Dial
The All Dial line, which some refer to as the «Coliseum» since
its design is so reminiscent of the symbolic monument of the
Italian capital, has been supplemented by some models aimed
at contemporary feminine tastes, as well as others designed
with the constraints of diving in mind, and some titanium
chronographs for those who seek the greatest precision. These
new models met with success in all markets, exceeding even
the brand’s expectations.

An exceptional watch
Forty-six years after it was first launched onto the market,
Mido introduced an exceptional model in pink gold, the
Commander Chronometer, certified by COSC and available in a
limited edition of 150 examples.

Reflecting on time
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TRENDS
• 2005 marked an important new stage in the international

development of the Certina brand. In practically all markets,
Certina was able to record remarkable growth and to gain
new market share. Even in Switzerland and Scandinavia,
where the brand is already very well established, it was able
to make further progress.

• Certina’s upturn in Germany is very satisfying: a significant
increase was obtained, despite the difficult economic
situation. This same trend was confirmed in Eastern 
Europe and the Middle East, where consumers are
increasingly appreciating Certina’s models. The sales curve
is shooting upwards.

• During the second half of the year, Certina made its entry
into the Australian market, and has already obtained very
encouraging results.

NEW PRODUCTS
The DS Podium men’s collection was launched at the start of
the year in all markets. Thanks to its excellent value for money,
and an original, very assertive design, its success is exceeding
all expectations.
The DS Podium Sauber Petronas F1 Special was launched at a
special event at Baselworld 2005 by Nick Hayek, the CEO of
the Swatch Group, and Peter Sauber. The limited edition of
2005 pieces sold out in three days.
The DS Prime ladies’ chronograph got top marks, and the
diamond model was much appreciated.
The top of the range DS First line for men was launched 
during the second half of the year. This line, which is aimed
above all at collectors of fine watches, enabled the brand to
achieve some excellent results at the end of the year.

PRESENCE
The main priority of communications efforts in 2005 was the
brand’s visibility and promotion in points of sale. Countless
special window displays worldwide met with real success in
attracting attention.
A three-year contract was signed in January 2005 with the
Sauber Petronas F1 team, and this dynamic platform set the
framework for communications and advertising concepts.
Qualities such as precision, dynamism and authenticity, which
distinguish the Sauber Petronas F1 team, harmonize perfectly
with the philosophy of the Certina brand. 
Finally, the unexpected 125cc world motorcycling champi-
onship title of the Swiss driver Thomas Lüthi proved to be an
excellent surprise. Certina recognized the young racer’s talent
very early, and has lent him its support since he was just 14
years old.

Sport and excellence
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TRENDS
• Flik Flak, the one and only watch brand for children, ended

2005 on a high note, crowned with success under the
dynamic leadership of Florence Ollivier-Lamarque.

• The new Time is fun slogan is appreciated throughout the
world. It applies as much to the design of the watches as to
the lifestyle and cheerfulness of its young customers.

• Strengthened by partner Warner Bros. with its mythical
heroes Scooby-Doo, the Powerpuff Girls and Dexter, the
brand was also able to impress the media with its other
models, even landing a double-page spread in Vogue Bambini.

• For the first time in its history, Flik Flak is launching a girls’
watch with matching jewelry – an absolute dream.

• In collaboration with early years development specialists,
the Swiss watch for children has developed an approach to
simplify learning to tell the time. Learning time is fun has
beaten all records in Swiss preschools and primary schools,
with over 50 000 small cardboard watches and 2500 big 
ones being distributed. This same enthusiasm was
experienced during 2005 by teachers in Turkey and Puerto
Rico, with other markets set to follow.Time is fun
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PRESENCE
The licensed Scooby-Doo, Powerpuff Girls and Dexter products
were a huge success in 2005. Scooby-Doo experienced a
veritable triumph with two fantastic events: he was present
from mid-August to mid-September 2005 at Galeries Lafayette
in Paris, and at a get-together in Italy on September 9 on the
beach at Forte dei Marmi. These events boosted sales of the
two Scooby-Doo watches, which are currently in the top ten of
global sales.

Endura, the Swatch Group company that produces promotional
watches under license, has a most promising future ahead of
it. It signed two new international licensing agreements in
2005, and is currently working on the creation of two high-
profile branded watch collections. One of these is being
created exclusively for Timberland and the other is for Mango,
with both scheduled for launch in 2006.
The Timberland collection will pave the way to the great
outdoors by providing watches that express the core values of
the US clothing and shoe manufacturer. In parallel, Mango
watches will complement the brand’s garments and accessory
collections for active city women. Future customers will be
able to purchase their new timepieces from the two brands’
extensive retail outlets, and also from private watchmaking
stores and chains.
Four decades of experience have made Endura today’s leader
in the private label sector. They enable the brand to draw on a
large body of expertise in the complex field of custom 
branded products – so much so that to step into the world of
fashion to develop its activities is a natural evolution for
Endura. It provides a complete range of services to its clients,
ranging from specific design consultancy services to
organizing a global after-sales service.

NEW PRODUCTS
Children’s personal tastes are formed very early, and the 2005
collections offer a range wide enough to satisfy all of them.
Trendy, irresistible, romantic and flowery, fast and furious, cool
and relaxed… Each character type is reflected in one of these
adorable variations, be they cute or refined, revolving around
Flik Flak’s Time is fun theme.
In 2005, Flik Flak worked on the development of a model in the
special Treasure line that includes two high-quality items of
jewelry: a necklace and an adjustable ring with matching
romantic watch. This new jewelry set for little princesses came
onto the market at the start of 2006 – the first time that Flik
Flak has introduced jewelry. The items are of a very high
quality, having been developed and manufactured by the
Group’s jewelry production company, Dress Your Body (DYB).

Interpreting
trends
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SWATCH GROUP LES BOUTIQUES
In 2005, Swatch Group Les Boutiques paid particular attention
to increasing sales across all its points of sale. The company
manages not only the Swatch stores owned by the Group in
Switzerland, but also the network of prestige Tourbillon
boutiques. The latter distribute products made by the Breguet,
Blancpain, Glashütte, Jaquet Droz, Léon Hatot and Omega
brands, as well as certain exclusive Swatch collections.

Swatch stores
With the same number of stores as in 2004, the Swatch store
network saw a record increase in sales across all categories
and product lines.
The Heidiland kiosk in Maienfeld was the first in Switzerland
to benefit from the new Bora Bora layout, and the results have
not been long in coming.
The «Instant Stores» managed by Swatch stores were an over-
whelming success. The Montreux Jazz Festival boutique lived
up to all expectations, once again beating attendance records. 
Already a pioneer with the opening of the very first Swatch
Bijoux outlet, the network once again distinguished itself with
the opening of the first Flik Flak children’s outlet worldwide,
inside the Kid’s Town Franz Carl Weber department store, com-
pletely dedicated to children, on the Bahnhofstrasse in Zurich.
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Tourbillon Boutiques
Sales for the network of Tourbillon boutiques increased significantly yet again, and
their reputation was greatly enhanced. A strengthened collaboration with the
brands enabled the organization of some outstanding events with, for example, 
the presentation of some unique items such as the very first display of the watch-
making record accomplished by Blancpain with the world’s slimmest mechanical
Quantième Perpétuel for ladies. 
The second season of trading for the Porto Cervo (Sardinia) boutique lived up to all
expectations, with some excellent results.
Two new boutiques have extended the network, the first at Raffles Le Montreux
Palace in Switzerland, and the second at Baden-Baden, Tourbillon’s first venture
into Germany. The new concept developed for Baden-Baden was an immediate
success with customers.
Finally, the excellent experience of the sales exhibition during the 2004 Christmas
holidays at The Palace Hotel Gstaad was repeated in 2005. It once again enabled
Tourbillon to make its mark within the most prestigious of palaces.
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TECH AIRPORT
Tech Airport had the wind in its sails during its first full year of
activity within the Swatch Group. The Group’s retail trade
company, which was acquired in 2004, runs the six watch and
jewelry boutiques located in five out of the seven terminals at
Roissy Charles-De-Gaulle Airport in Paris. It provides a very
demanding clientele with horological and jewelry products
from almost all of the Group’s brands and it concluded the
year on a high note, recording a strong increase in turnover.
The success of Tech Airport is the result of numerous meas-
ures taken during the year to improve the visibility of its points
of sale and the welcome given to customers. A particular
effort was targeted on sales force training, presentation of the
products of various brands, and adherence to their image. Two
boutiques underwent in-depth renovation, and have been
extremely busy since they re-opened. Work on remodeling 
two other points of sale – one in terminal 3 and the other in
terminal 2c – commenced at the end of the year and is due to
be completed in spring 2006.
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Jewelry Production

DRESS YOUR BODY
Dress Your Body (DYB) – the Swatch Group’s gems, jewelry
and prestige jewelry design and production company – had a
very busy year in 2005 under the leadership of Arlette-Elsa
Emch. The pieces it created and produced in its various works-
hops precisely reflect this fact. In 2005, DYB literally exploded
in terms of creativity, exceptional expertise and the production
of items that were a huge success with end consumers.
Following launches of jewelry collections for the Breguet,
Léon Hatot, Omega, Swatch and ck watch & jewelry brands,
DYB worked on preparing a jewelry set for little girls, a major
first, for the Flik Flak brand.
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advice to clients, reduced development times for new projects,
and optimized industrialization. 

DYB Manufacture, Bienne workshop
Created first and foremost for Breguet, the prestige jewelry
workshop of the DYB factory in Bienne greatly expanded its
activities in 2005 to include the prestige jeweler Léon Hatot.
The items presented at Baselworld 2005 once again perfectly
demonstrated the aptitude and competences that are brought
together in order to create exceptional jewelry.
With several high-flying master jewelers among its ranks, the
Bienne factory is able to create objects of any degree of
complexity, as well as producing series of jewelry items for the
Breguet, Léon Hatot and Omega brands.

DYB Manufacture, Geneva workshop
During 2005, DYB installed a new jewelry workshop in Geneva
with the aim of developing its internal production resources
for prestige jewelry. Located in the watchmaking industrial
park of Plan-Les-Ouates, this workshop employs around
fifteen people qualified as jewelers, setters, mechanics,
designers and polishers.
It covers a range of jewelry manufacturing activities – casting
and machining, manufacturing single items of traditional
prestige jewelry, and developing and manufacturing prestige
jewel-watches – and currently produces part of the jewelry
ranges of Breguet, Léon Hatot and Omega.

Swatch Group | Annual Report 2005
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DYB Gems, Bienne
DYB Gems is made up of gem specialists – all experts and all
trained in the most prestigious institutes and laboratories.
Making the most of their extensive gem expertise and their
excellent knowledge of the markets supplying diamonds and
other precious, semi-precious and ornamental stones, their
mission is to provide a service to the brands by purchasing the
Group’s complete gem requirements. DYB Gems works to the
most stringent standards, guaranteeing the quality of the
precious stones used by all the Group’s brands.
During the development of new products, DYB Gems also
provides considerable support in selecting the type of gems to
be used, and in choosing their shapes and sizes. The division
then delivers to the brands in line with their size requirements,
calibrating the stones to two hundredths of a millimeter and
conditioning them according to the client’s wishes or the
setting requirements. This interaction regarding sizing and
technical choices between gem specialists, technicians and
setters enables a considerable amount of time to be saved. 

DYB Sertissage, Villeret
In 2005, DYB sertissage continued to bring the production of
watch components and items of jewelry and prestige jewelry
in-house by taking on new employees and acquiring new
production resources. 
This expansion has taken place at both a quantitative and a
qualitative level, by the development of a major traditional
gem-setting unit. 
A policy of intensive training has led to an increased skill level
in engraving and in setting jewelry and prestige jewelry,
enabling the most complex pieces in the Swatch Group’s
watch and jewelry collections to be produced in-house. 
The increased capability of the technical and development
department, notably through the use of powerful IT tools for
design and production control, has resulted in improved
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Watch production 

ETA MANUFACTURE HORLOGÈRE SUISSE   www.eta.ch

ETA, Elegance, Technology, Accuracy
ETA SA Manufacture horlogère suisse has upgraded its visual identity in order to consolidate its
image as supplier of innovation to the Swiss watchmaking industry, and to position itself
optimally in relation to its various partners. The evolution of the company’s image naturally
involves updating its logo – the brand’s signature and emblem that is engraved on all the
products it has ever made. Honed down, it now extols restraint and elegance. Contrasting 
colors have given way to metallic silver. This modernized logo reflects the image of a leading-
edge technology manufacturer that ETA conveys. 
ETA – three letters that stand for the values on which its philosophy is based: Elegance,
Technology, Accuracy.

Evolution of the watch movement market
The market situation for Swiss Made movements has developed more favorably than ETA 
had anticipated during its budgeting phase. Mechanical movements, and in particular the 
new Valgranges® products (based on the caliber 7750), showed an impressive increase. This
very strong demand meant that production capacity had to be increased in order to maintain
reasonable delivery timescales. ETA was able to conclude 2005 with some very satisfactory
figures in the Swiss Made movements sector.
In contrast to the Swiss turnover, that of the Hong Kong market experienced significant
turbulence. Due to excess production capacity in Asia, primarily as a result of new Chinese
manufacturers, sales of Far East movements were seriously affected.

Customer Service (CS)
The new version of the ETA ONLINE SHOP has enabled the distribution service for spare parts
for ETA movements and Swatch watches to be optimized. The most important new features of
the on-line store are its trilingual interface (German/English/French) and a clear view of the
availability of spare parts. As in previous years, delivery speeds for orders for individual parts
have once again increased.
In 2005, customers increasingly entrusted their movements to ETA to be overhauled, and
consequently a clear increase was recorded in this sector. Moreover, being keen to take
advantage of this trend, ETA is working on reducing the timescales for repairs.
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With regard to the packaging service, the renewal of the company’s stock of machinery was
completed in 2005. ETA’s internal packaging service, which was also provided separately this
year, enables the high quality of its watch parts to be protected, and is generating growing
interest amongst customers.

Training center
High-tech watchmaking training
During 2005, the ETA customer training center underwent a facelift. All the classrooms were
modernized, both esthetically and in terms of technical facilities. The latter point was the main
focus of attention because the instructor-led courses are supported by a large computer system
specially designed for horological training. Both the theoretical and practical parts of the
training are reinforced by LCD screens on each workbench. Thanks to these, course participants
can follow whatever the instructor is demonstrating whilst keeping their eyes focused on the
workbench. This multimedia system also permits ETASwissl@b training CD-ROMs to be viewed
during lessons.
As of early 2006, ETA is launching its new training program (which can also be viewed at
www.eta.ch). This aims to introduce participants to its products and to improve their product-
related watchmaking knowledge. The customer training center is strengthening the services
provided by ETA to all its customers.

ETA product development in 2005

Swatch
Stainless steel with small second hand
In order to satisfy the demand for large watches with the seconds displayed by a small 
off-center hand, the chronograph caliber for Swatch has been simplified and the dial modified
to create the models of the new Swatch collection.

Big Irony
These watches have been modernized and equipped with the latest movements in synthetic
material. A new design takes account of the demand for big watches with harmonious lines.

Big Irony Chrono
This chronograph has been enlarged. The opening has been increased to a diameter of 40 mm,
and the length between the two bracelet attachment points has been increased to 55 mm. The
space on the outside of the dial provides new possibilities for the collection’s creators. 

Fun Boarder Altimeter with Access
This is a watch with two hands which, in addition to displaying the time, is able to indicate 
the altitude and provide rapid access at ski area checkpoints. Pressing the crown just once 
switches from the time display function to the altitude display function. The altitude is displayed
thanks to a pressure sensor and a microprocessor with a calculation algorithm. So people who
are somersaulting through the air will know their altitude at all times. Some models are also
fitted with the Access system, consisting of an antenna and the necessary electronics for
wireless data transmission.

Mechanical movements

Additions to the VALGRANGES® 16 1⁄2’’’ caliber line 
16 1⁄2’’’ A07.161 power reserve 
For watches with automatic winding, it is useful to know the power reserve at all times. For this
purpose, the basic 16 1⁄2’’’ A07 caliber is fitted with a differential gear, one wheel of which
carries the needle that indicates the degree of winding of the mainspring, and therefore the
power reserve.

16 1⁄2’’’ A07.211 classic chronograph
Still in the realm of big watches, the basic caliber has been enlarged and the counters and the
small second hand mounted so as to provide a dial with the classic 6 – 9 – 12 arrangement of
small dials.

16 1⁄2’’’ A07.171 24-hour GMT
In addition to the usual hands, this GMT movement is equipped with a 24-hour hand that
enables the wearer to tell the time in a second time zone. This hand can be adjusted in whole
hours with the crown in an intermediate position.
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Quartz movement
10 1⁄2’’’ G15.261 retrograde quartz chronograph
This 10 1⁄2’’’ chronograph movement displays the time measured by sector. The electronics of the
basic G15 caliber have been reprogrammed so that the hands of the counters move over the
sectors in a retrograde manner. This movement provides new possibilities for creating original
chronograph designs.

Production centers
At the end of 2005, ETA ceased all activity in its German production center at Pforzheim and at
its production center at the Micromechanics factory at Ipoh in Malaysia. However, the Ipoh
production unit remains fully operational for two other Swatch Group companies, Meco and
Oscilloquartz.

Diantus Watch SA – Mendrisio
This Ticino subsidiary assembles quartz movements for the ETA range as well as assembling
basic mechanical movements. Diantus Watch also assembles the Swatch Irony on highly
automated production lines.

F.F.B. – Fabrique de Fournitures de Bonnétage – Villers-le-Lac (France)
Located on the Swiss border in the Jura mountain range, FFB is equipped to meet the demands
of ETA for all sets of wheels and components for mid-range and top-of-the-range quartz calibers.
With this production, FFB has provided valuable assistance with regard to ETA delivery
timescales. The company has also contributed to the successful renewal of ISO 9001.2000
certification.

SEFEA – Société Européenne de Fabrication d’Ébauches d’Annemasse (France)
In addition to the manufacture of brass framework parts and assemblies for ETA, SEFEA is also
involved in manufacturing punches, blanking, and mechanical and electronic assembly. It offers
its microtechnology expertise to both internal Group customers and external customers. In 2005,
it continued to develop its activities by presenting its expertise at various technical events
including RFID 2005 and Midest 2005.

ETA (Thailand) Co. Ltd, Bangkok (Thailand)
ETA Thailand produces watch components, creates sub-assemblies, and assembles movements
for the Hong Kong market. 2005 was a year of change, with a new focus for ETA production.
Numerous new products were successfully introduced by ETA operations centers, which were
able to rise to multiple challenges.
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FRÉDÉRIC PIGUET

An auspicious year for the Frédéric Piguet watchmaking company. Following an arduous start
caused by the sharp increase in demand, the business concluded the year in a very satisfacto-
ry manner. It was able to take the measures necessary in order to improve the situation, at the
same time providing production capacity in line with the 2006 budget.

Component production
Standardizing the nine digital transfer machine units has led to an increase in the production of
blanks, whilst also standardizing production ranges and improving flexibility and responsive-
ness. This result has been achieved thanks to the three independently functioning machining
centers equipped with robots, and also to the introduction of a night shift in the blanks
manufacturing sections.

Assembly of movements
In order to cope with the significant increase in quantities required, a workshop has been set
up dedicated to assembling the caliber FP 1280 family. This has also improved production
workflows.

Research and development
To continue the enhancement of its development capabilities, the company has replaced its
various computer-aided design systems with three-dimensional drawing software that gives
significantly improved performance, particularly for simulations.

New products
Frédéric Piguet has brought out several stunning creations, which were presented at Baselworld
2005 and are being used in prestige and luxury models for the Group’s brands: 
Caliber 5863 – Extra-slim automatic 1150 movement with off-centered hour and minute at 

12 o’clock, and perpetual calendar with retrograde date and day.
Caliber 69F8 – Flyback chronograph with large aperture.
Caliber M186 – Single push-piece chronograph with fly-back hand.
Caliber 5621 – Perpetual calendar and moon phase on an extra-slim mechanical movement.
Caliber 1286 – Chronograph with fly-back hand.

Five patent applications have been lodged during the year. These relate to various principles and
innovations which will be included in future products.

In addition to the ETA unit, this site is also occupied by three other Swatch Group production
companies: Micro Crystal, EM Microelectronic, and Comadur.

Zhuhai SMH Watchmaking Co. Ltd (China)
Even though ETA has reduced its watchmaking activities in Zhuhai, three of the Group’s most
important industry sectors are represented at Zhuhai SMH: the watchmaking sector with Ruedin
and Universo, the automotive sector with Microcomponents, and the electronics sector with 
EM Microelectronic, Renata, and Micro Crystal. In 2005, Zhuhai SMH concentrated its efforts on
consolidating new production centers that joined the site in 2004, and successfully introduced
a new product – a car clock developed in collaboration with switec for the automotive market.
The company obtained ISO TS 16949 certification in the automotive and electronics sectors, and
also obtained 14001 and SA8000 certification for the entire site.
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NIVAROX-FAR   www.nivarox.ch

The strong market demand for mechanical watches enabled Nivarox-FAR, which produces
escapement-regulator units, to close the year 2005 on a very favorable note. The growth
observed in the diversity of high value-added products has called for an ongoing development
of resources (including training and multi-skilling) and the quest for added flexibility in
production equipment. 
One of the missions of Nivarox-FAR is to drive forward the chronometrical improvement of
mechanical watches. Its different productions of multiple executions of variable inertia balances
are evidence of this role and, thanks to its second production line, the control of the balance-
spring manufacturing process has been improved. Moreover, the expertise and savoir-faire of
Nivarox-FAR has been significantly strengthened. This has in particular enabled the company to
master the production of barrel springs and to implement an innovative process for creating
applied chapters for dials. In addition, the company has been able to satisfy the strong increase
in demand for coaxial escapements.
At the same time, the extensive modernization of infrastructures and buildings has continued
with the renovation of the Saint-Imier building and the replanning of the infrastructure at 
Saint-Imier, Fontaines, and Le Locle.
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COMADUR   www.comadur.com

Maintaining the growth initiated in 2004, business at Comadur, the specialist hard-material
company, has been very positive in 2005. Every strategic area of operations has made a contri-
bution to this success, most significantly the Sapphire crystal and Ceramics areas, which
enjoyed a boom in the watchmaking sector. Technological development was one of the main
focuses of the year, and the proactive management of innovations resulted in great success for
the company. 
The company’s expertise has enabled it to carry out a strategic deployment both horizontally 
– increasing its share in the jewelry and luxury mobile phone sectors – and vertically, by
expanding its offering to prestige and luxury ranges. This strategy of extrapolating from the
competitive advantages it has gained in watchmaking – notably high precision, small
dimensions, and large volumes – will, of course, be continued.
Following indications received during 2004, Comadur had confirmation that the technologies
developed for touch screens, anti-reflective coatings, and metallization (thin film technology)
would clearly be one of the key elements in its future deployment from the start of the period
under review. 
The project to construct a new industrial building at Col-des-Roches (Switzerland) has entered
the implementation phase. The ceremony to lay the first stone, on June 16, 2005, was 
attended by numerous personalities. Due to become operational during the first half of 2006,
this building will enable Comadur to exploit the potential interconnections between the
elements in the value chains where its expertise lies. In Bangkok (Thailand), the Comadur
production unit inaugurated a new building connected to the one constructed last year.

RUBATTEL & WEYERMANN

The dial manufacturer Rubattel & Weyermann experienced a year of strong growth in 2005,
clearly illustrating the merits of the decisions and measures previously taken. Its corporate
restructuring and investments in both traditional equipment and industrial tools meet the
company’s need to remain at the forefront of its trade.
With the aim of responding as effectively as possible to its clients, who currently consist
primarily of the Group’s upmarket, prestige, and luxury brands, Rubattel and Weyermann are
putting in place all the necessary resources. It will in future be able to support these clients,
both in terms of time and complexity, during the phases of creation and technical development.
Following two years of studies, another important milestone has been passed with the imple-
mentation of an ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning) system – an integrated management
software package – the effects of which will be fully felt in 2006.

VALDAR   www.valdar.ch

For Valdar, the supplier of micromechanical products, the fiscal year 2005 will be engraved on
the memory as that of the best sales in the entire history of the company. In fact, the assembly
(T0), decoration, and finishing of movement components, particularly chamfering, have
experienced spectacular development.
The Triovis system of fine timing owned by Valdar and manufactured exclusively by the 
company has also been remarkably successful. Available in several different versions and
finishes, it provides a quality solution, both mechanically and aesthetically, to the issue of the
timing of movements.
In view of the increased number of products and limited series that face the company, and to
meet the requirements of those who buy the finished products, Valdar has embarked upon a
new phase of investment in its logistics function. The full effects of this will be seen in 2006,
and will enable the company to maintain its existing high level of service.



72

GHHH

FAVRE et PERRET

W
AT

CH
 P

R
O

D
U

CT
IO

N

Swatch Group | Annual Report 2005

GHHH GROUPE HABILLAGE HAUTE HORLOGERIE

Split across its sites at Saint-Imier (Switzerland) and Castel San Pietro (Switzerland), the Swatch
Group’s watch assembly company GHHH continued to specialize by site in 2005, with Saint-Imier
becoming a center of excellence from a technical point of view, and providing substantial assis-
tance to the Group’s luxury brands by assembling complex parts. As for the Castel San Pietro
site, this is a veritable hive of activity: the new building at Genestrerio (Ticino) was completed
in September 2005, and the business is scheduled to move there in the first half of 2006.
In preparation for the increase in capacity at this new site in Ticino, and despite the lack of
space, production has been reorganized on the old site. Continuous workflows or islands and
cells have been created in anticipation of the future production method, which will involve the
installation of an innovative structure and production lines on the new site. 

FAVRE et PERRET

For Favre et Perret, the Group’s prestige and luxury watchcase manufacturer, 2005 was once
again a year of progress. In the two years that the company has been installed in its new
premises at Le Crêt-du-Locle (Switzerland), it has continued to develop its activities and
strengthen its expertise.
New milestones were achieved in manufacturing, product development (CAD), and production
workflow control, involving the introduction of a new computer tool.
This expertise and commitment have been made available to the Group’s prestige and luxury
brands in a continuous quest for quality and innovation, enabling some prestigious models to
be produced. These include the Breguet No 5, the Grande Sonnerie, the Chrono Marine and the
bejeweled Marine Dame for Breguet; the Anniversary model for Blancpain, created to celebrate
270 years of its factory; and the Éventail and Arabesque for Léon Hatot.

MANUFACTURE RUEDIN

Manufacture Ruedin had a very satisfactory year in 2005. This success was due to a growth in
business launched in collaboration with its main clients, namely Omega, Rado and Longines.
Organizational improvements – in terms of flexibility, productivity, and efficiency – also
contributed significantly to the excellent results of the company, which manufactures watch-
cases and external components made from steel and other non-precious resistant materials.
The modernization of its stock of machine tools, started at the beginning of the year with the
introduction of new CNC equipment, is progressing under the most favorable conditions. The
new equipment, which is already operational, will enable Manufacture Ruedin to meet its
productivity goals fully during the first quarter of 2006. Once staff training is completed and
structures have been adapted to fit the new organization, it will be possible for the growth
phase to commence under ideal conditions.

LASCOR   www.lascor.com

Specializing in the production of watchcases, bracelets, and other external watch components
in precious metals, steel, and aluminum, Lascor’s focus in 2005 was on reorganization, generat-
ing significant improvements, notably in its quality system. These efforts will continue, as will
those affecting customer service and meeting deadlines.
Following a period of reorientation which was particularly rich in innovation and improvements
to its operational structure, the company is currently notable for the stability of its personnel,
who have been selected for their skills and expertise. Productivity also increased significantly,
primarily in the areas producing gold bracelets for top-of-the-range brands and external gold
components. The investments made in numerical control machines are bearing fruit: the time
required for the stamping and machining of components such as watchcases, clasps and back
covers in gold and precious metals has been considerably reduced. As regards the production
of steel products (two-tone bracelets) and aluminum products (watchcases), this has remained
at a constant level in line with market demand.
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MECO

Meco, which specializes in crowns, push-pieces, tubes, valves and other external parts for
watches, enjoyed a positive year in 2005, with a marked growth in turnover. 
New products appearing more frequently, a massive expansion of the product range, a
reduction in the size of series and a huge increase in specialties have called for responses that
are tailor-made in terms of flexibility, organization, equipment and training. Its offering to all of
the Group’s brands has also been expanded, specifically including the design of new products
for Breguet, Blancpain, Glashütte Original and Omega, and there has been strong growth in
watch parts for mid-range and entry-level brands. 
A new organizational structure was introduced, reinforcing the technical and logistics functions.
This will be supported by the implementation of a new integrated management software pack-
age (ERP – Enterprise Resource Planning system). Thanks to its ongoing emphasis on training,
multi-skilling and communication, Meco is maintaining excellent quality levels for its products.
Focusing its efforts on innovation with the introduction of new technology and manufacturing
processes, it has been able further to grow its competitiveness and flexibility. 
The Meco Malaysia production site has also had an excellent year. Its turnover is constantly
increasing, as is the market share it has won with its Far Eastern clients.

UNIVERSO   www.universo.ch

Following the completion of its restructuring and consolidation phases in 2004 Universo, the
leading European manufacturer of watch hands, demonstrated its ability to follow the planned
strategy in 2005: the company announced year-end results exceeding those of the previous year.
Not all operational segments registered the same increase in growth. The increasingly urgent
demand for personalized products, particularly limited editions, has positively influenced the
turnover of the gold, steel and high-quality finished brass production lines. Product segments
such as diamond brass have for their part achieved steady results, in line with budget.
Generally speaking, research into both new production methods and new materials remains
central to the corporate development strategy, and the significant investment planned will
enable the company to maintain this evolutionary momentum which drives its entire workforce.
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Electronic systems

SWATCH GROUP ELECTRONIC SYSTEMS

By combining their individual expertise and exploiting synergies, the Swatch Group companies
that produce electronic components and systems (SGES) provide complete solutions. Ultra-low
power consumption, miniaturization, and high precision make up their primary area of
competence. 
This synergy occurs, for example, when EM Microelectronic provides functionality with its
circuits, Micro Crystal ensures accuracy with its quartz oscillators, and Renata delivers the
necessary energy with its batteries. 
Microcomponents and Sokymat Automotive are providers of both modules and solutions for the
automotive industry, a sector known for demanding a very high level of quality. Finally, the last
two members of the group are systems providers: Oscilloquartz produces synchronization
equipment for telecommunications networks, while Lasag manufactures industrial laser
machine tools. Most of the companies forming the SGES group have their origins in the Swiss
watchmaking industry, an environment famous for its unconditional commitment to providing
products of very high quality and emotional character. They each occupy a position to be
reckoned with in their respective markets. Thanks to continuous interaction at the management,
engineering, sales and marketing level, these companies together offer a unique selection of
know-how and expertise, enabling them to deliver original and innovative solutions to their
customers. 
The Gyro from Microcomponents, a complete, cost-effective sensor for measuring angular
velocity, is a good example of this collaboration. The basic sensing element for this product,
manufactured by Micro Crystal, was designed specifically for demanding applications in the
automotive, industrial, and consumer sectors. It consists of a micro-machined quartz tuning fork
vibrating inside a vacuum casing. The quartz is interfaced with an application-specific circuit
designed and manufactured by EM Microelectronic. The end product has been designed and
produced by Switec, the mechatronics division of Microcomponents. The Switec Gyro is but one
example among many of an agreed joint effort to develop new products by pooling individual
know-how. This is facilitated by the geographical and cultural proximity of the companies.
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EM MICROELECTRONIC  www.emmicroelectronic.com

Excellent performance
2005 was another year of major progress for EM Microelectronic, the leading company in the
design and production of ultra-low energy and low voltage solutions. Responding to strong
market demand and sustained confidence in its products, EM Microelectronic, under the
guidance of Mougahed Darwish, was able to achieve double-digit growth in its business, the
majority of which was done outside the Group. Moreover, the attention devoted to operational
performance and cost control has enabled the company successfully to withstand market 
price pressure.

Strong growth on several fronts
During 2005, EM Microelectronic confirmed and even reinforced its position as one of the 
world leaders in the radio frequency identification (RFID) market. It almost doubled its 
deliveries of RFID transponders, whilst increasing its market share in North America. It honored
major orders for logistics applications in Japan, where new sales and marketing channels have
been opened up. 
In the fields of consumer electronics applications and computer peripherals, EM succeeded in
increasing its sales. It has launched the first microcontroller able to operate below one volt.
Operating with a single 1.5V battery, it increases battery life in applications such as toys,
household appliances, and body care products.
In general terms, sales in Asia exceeded expectations apart from SIM cards for mobile phones,
where the anticipated volume was not achieved.

Co-innovating with customers
Customers influence every aspect of EM’s business, and ensure the company’s success. This
year again, thanks to close collaboration with its customers, EM was able to co-develop and
create innovative solutions more efficiently than either party could have done alone. One
example of this approach involves the basic components that enable a keyboard and mouse to
be pre-paired to a wireless mini-receiver in Logitech’s new SecureConnectTM technology. This
enables the end user to take delivery of a set of ready-to-use peripherals. Logitech’s new range
of wireless optical mice is another example of this. Similar partnerships have been set up with
companies developing sensing applications based on micro electro-mechanical systems
(MEMS). MEMS usually require a high-performance control interface to convert the information
provided into a useable digital signal. The role of EM’s engineers is to develop ultra-low 
power interface circuits for use in applications such as monitoring tire pressures and gyro- or
accelerometric measurement. Modules derived from such nanotechnological projects have
great potential for generating a host of new applications.
Partnerships with clients help EM Microelectronic to maintain its focus on key competencies,
and better anticipate changes in its business environment. 

Relentlessly adapting for the future
EM Microelectronic is making continuous efforts to adapt the company to the market and the
needs of its customers. Improvements to its semi-conductor design tool and component
production are crucial for improving the company’s competitiveness. 
EM’s design center in Colorado Springs (USA) is focusing its efforts on developments relating to
optoelectronics and radio frequency, two key areas for future growth. It has strengthened its
relationships with international customers, while significantly improving on its 2005 results in
North America. AsiCentrum, EM’s design center in Prague, currently employs over 35 designers.
It specializes in designing electronic circuits for computer peripherals and the automotive 
and watchmaking industries. Furthermore, EM is about to establish a new design and sales
facility in Asia. 
EM Microelectronic continues to attach great importance to maintaining its production plant 
at the forefront of technology; it has therefore started to implement a new infrastructure that
will enable it to migrate to eight-inch wafers. Simultaneously, the team responsible for
manufacturing is actively working on the introduction of 0.35-micron technology, with the 
long-term aim of providing a 0.18-micron manufacturing facility at Marin.
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MICRO CRYSTAL  www.microcrystal.com

2005 was an exciting year and finished satisfactorily for Micro Crystal, the Group company 
that produces low frequency crystals and similar products. Having become one of the world’s
main providers of this type of component, it delivers more than half of its production to the
Asian market, and operates in a profitable manner. The telecommunications and electronics
industry markets, as well as medical applications, are growth areas and currently represent the
principal outlets for Micro Crystal. In addition, thanks to its specific production, it makes the
Swatch Group the only western watch manufacturer that is not reliant on deliveries of Japanese
quartz crystal.
The demand for quartz crystals moderated during the first half of 2005, and production facilities
were not fully utilized. Since the summer, however, demand has literally exploded. Micro
Crystal’s production has been running flat out, working three shifts and seven days a week. This
has been so effective that production volume and turnover have both been higher than in the
preceding year. Moreover this very high utilization, the improvement in yields, and various
rationalization measures have enabled an increase in profit despite price erosion. Cell phones
represent the largest market for quartz crystals, which Micro Crystal has supplied for several
years to the world’s biggest manufacturers. Micro Crystal profited from the very strong growth
exhibited by this market during the second half of 2005. Another market is that for MP3 
personal stereos, an area in which Micro Crystal has a significant market share.
The production of quartz crystals is still carried out entirely within Switzerland. Their subsequent
assembly into packages is then carried out either in Switzerland, or in Micro Crystal’s factories
in Thailand and China. Transferring certain assembly operations to Asia is absolutely 
vital, because that is where more and more customers are moving their own production.
However, Micro Crystal is striving to keep a significant part of its mass production in
Switzerland. This allows it continually to improve its manufacturing processes, to offer very 
strict quality control for high-value applications, and to be able to source products within
Switzerland for certain customers.
During 2005, Micro Crystal launched a number of products with higher levels of integration onto
the market: these consist of oscillators and real-time clocks for various electronics applications.
Micro Crystal uses ultra-low power consumption integrated circuits from EM Microelectronic. It
assembles these circuits, together with its own quartz crystals, into miniature packages. 
These products illustrate the synergy generated between the different sister companies of the
Group in the area of special value-added products. They cannot immediately be copied by the
competition, and consequently have a good future ahead of them.

RENATA  www.renata.com

Renata, which produces small button batteries, tabbed batteries, and battery holders, was able 
to further optimize the professionalism of its distribution network and strengthen its position in 
key markets during 2005. Its distribution channels are continuously being developed, both in the
industrial and OEM sector and in the area of spare parts. 
Silver oxide batteries for electronic watches are used in the products manufactured by the Group’s
brands as initial batteries and as replacement batteries in an after-sales service context. Both the
headquarters at Itingen (Switzerland) and commercial partners in over 100 countries are able to
make very rapid deliveries to each point of sale of around forty different models, pre-wrapped in
various types of packaging. In 2005, Renata continued to rationalize its procedures in order to
improve productivity and meet more stringent quality standards with even greater reliability. It
successfully took part in the most prominent trade fairs, such as Baselworld and the Hong Kong
Watch & Clock Fair.
Moreover, Renata sold the majority of its 3V lithium button batteries, tabbed button batteries,
encapsulated batteries and battery holders, as well as its rechargeable 3.6V lithium polymer
batteries, to industrial clients. Its long-life products have particularly proved themselves in medical
equipment, security cards, car keys, portable appliances, domestic appliances, and other
applications. In addition to providing specialist solutions, Renata offers outstanding technical
consultancy, a fact that helped it win new customers in 2005. The development of the lithium HT
(high temperature) battery continued successfully: thanks to the performance obtained, Renata CR
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MICROCOMPONENTS  www.microcomponents.ch

Microcomponents applies the Swatch Group’s technology, expertise, organization, strength, and
global presence to automotive products. Thanks to these key factors, the company is able to
provide services that meet the demands of this competitive and selective market. The
regulations and standards (ISO, automotive and environmental) that it has established and
continues to develop enable it to ensure the implementation of effective processes.
Identification with the company and its products has been strengthened thanks to the 
increased involvement of personnel. This has also contributed to the smooth running of the
company during 2005.

Michel products 
In order to strengthen its position in the automotive market, Michel has developed a global
presence strategy, which has resulted in a long-term partnership with one of the world’s largest
parts manufacturers. The aim of this is to manufacture micromechanical components and 
sub-assemblies in Asia. These high-precision parts are primarily intended for use in diesel
injection systems, a market which is expanding rapidly and is therefore strategically very
important for the company. At the same time, this presence in Asia has made it more attractive
in other markets, and further strengthened its position. 
Linked to this enlarged presence, the range of technologies deployed continues to broaden,
enabling added value to be increased.  
In parallel, the developments initiated in the field of gasoline direct injection systems led to the
first deliveries of these products in spring 2005.
The focus on customer and product portfolios has resulted in a promising development in the
prospects for growth, both in absolute terms and in terms of quality.

Switec products 
2005 was a successful year for Switec despite the difficulties that the North American
automotive industry is experiencing. Switec strengthened its presence in Asia and Russia
thanks to a comprehensive product range, and now holds a substantial market share. There has
been a significant increase in quantities sold.
As a result of its strategy of expansion into more complex devices, Switec delivered its first
analog clock modules for on-board vehicle instrumentation in summer 2005. With this high-
value-added product, Switec reinforced its role within the circle of top-rank automotive
suppliers.
The synergy generated by Swatch Group Electronic Systems has created an important showcase
for Switec products. In particular, the angular speed detector (gyrometer), which makes use of the
Group’s microtechnologies, was launched on the market at international exhibitions. The response
has been very positive, and is leading to a large variety of applications, not only in the automotive
industry for the safety and comfort of drivers and passengers, but also in the area of consumer
goods such as mobile phones, cameras, and 3D mice. 

batteries are being used in applications involving exceptional temperature requirements. 
The new generation of zinc-air batteries intended for audio equipment, «Renata maratone», was
launched onto the market in autumn 2005. This improved battery has already experienced great
success in competitive terms, because it provides the longest life and additional characteristics for
top-of-the-range products. This guarantees optimum listening comfort thanks to perfect reliability
and ideal voltage curves.
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SOKYMAT AUTOMOTIVE  www.sokymat-automotive.de

Sokymat Automotive GmbH, which operates in the automotive sector, is one of the leading
manufacturers of top quality transponders for vehicle immobilization systems. In 2005, despite
enormous pressure on costs from its customers, but thanks to productivity increases and the
optimization of its manufacturing processes, Sokymat Automotive managed to close the period
under review successfully. Particularly in view of the meteoric growth of car ownership in 
newly industrialized countries such as China, it has been able to record heartening growth in its
sales in these markets, and has successfully extended its distribution and automotive sales
representative networks.
As a result of the shared technologies within SGES, Sokymat Automotive obtained positive
feedback from OEM manufacturers during the presentation of its smart key concept. The
development of this product from concept through to mass production demands ongoing joint
collaboration focused on clear objectives within SGES. 
Close collaboration with a well-known tire manufacturer has led to the development of an
intelligent pneumatic pressure control system. This will provide drivers with immediate
information about the operating state of their tires, something that will considerably improve
the safety of their vehicles. This system is based on a passive transponder sensor developed by
Sokymat Automotive. It draws the power required for its functioning from an alternating
magnetic field, thus guaranteeing perfect reliability and immediate data transmission, even
when the vehicle is stationary.
In close collaboration with EM Microelectronic, another Group company, Sokymat has
developed a single chip security transponder equipped with an 8-bit RISC microcontroller. This
component has been specially designed for battery-driven immobilizer systems, as well as for
remote keyless entry systems. Thanks to the Sokymat Automotive stand-alone transponders, 
the transponder part is downwards compatible with regard to data transfer protocols and
command structures. These transponders will therefore still function if the battery is flat, or
even if it has been removed.

OSCILLOQUARTZ  www.oscilloquartz.com

Oscilloquartz operates in the field of telecommunications and time-frequency. It produces
oscillators and synchronization equipment for use in fixed and mobile telecommunication
network infrastructures in over a hundred countries. From 2005 the company focused on its new
applications, and those countries with promising prospects such as China, which has been
promoted to top-ranking customer country.
Following the development of GPS (Global Positioning System by satellite) synchronization
products for use in third-generation mobile telephony base stations (UMTS-3G), Oscilloquartz
has entered new application areas including DAB and WIMAX (wireless broadband access),
which eliminate the need for a physical link between PCs and the world of the Internet. It has
been able to adjust to increasingly fierce competition and the current buyers market that is
exerting sustained pressure on sales prices in international markets. Nevertheless, the
company’s ongoing control of direct and indirect costs, and the commitment of its entire
workforce have enabled it to maintain a satisfactory margin on its products.
As regards products, Oscilloquartz introduced several variants of GPS oscillators and receivers
for transferring time and frequency, and has become an acknowledged OEM (Original
Equipment Manufacturer) player in the field of GPS cards. Other systems such as GSM 
backhaul and the digital transmission of radio and television (DVB-T) use these GPS products to
synchronize network elements, and make use of these same OEM GPS cards.
The Galileo system, the European satellite navigation project launched in December 2005, is
paving the way for synchronization and time-frequency transfer applications. With its dual-
frequency systems that are compatible with both GPS and Galileo systems, it is possible to
transmit the time or frequency with even more accuracy than the current levels of a few
nanoseconds. 
Oscilloquartz is also about to launch a new system for telecommunication transport network
synchronization, the OSA 5548C BITS. This was developed in 2005 for the North American
market, as was the OSA 5548C ETSI product, its counterpart intended for applications in the rest
of the world. 
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LASAG  www.lasag.com

In the reporting year 2005, Lasag significantly increased its sales volumes and strengthened its
client base, particularly in the Italian consumer goods manufacturing market.
As a leading manufacturer of industrial YAG lasers for the precision cutting, welding, drilling,
and ablating of metals and other materials, Lasag succeeded in carrying out a significant
number of installations in 2005 in the field of drilling turbine components for the aeronautical
and power generation industries. Thanks to existing synergies, this has further increased
Lasag’s reputation. In fact these users, who are equipped with Lasag lasers and accompanying
technology, are now able to optimize their production procedures, thus reducing their
manufacturing costs.
YAG laser drilling is now well established in high-tech fields such as the bio-medical industry.
Drilling blind holes for fixing threads in surgical needles has expanded the number of
applications in this field. Other examples include drilling lubricating holes in automobile
components and fuel filtering for the latest generation of vehicles. 
Lasag lasers are also used as high-performance tools for carrying out broaching operations. This
involves drilling blind holes to form lines of perforations that are used as fracture initiation lines
in cast metal and ceramics. The technology, which replaces and improves on conventional
cutting, is used in electronics applications for scribing ceramic substrates, making it easier to
separate components. The automotive industry has also adopted laser broaching for the
manufacture of connecting rods and bearing seats. The procedure has completely revolutionized
the manufacture of automobile engines, greatly reducing the number of operations required.
Working from a very early stage with the leading players in this field, Lasag is a veritable
pioneer of this technology and has become the uncontested market leader.

OMEGA ELECTRONICS  www.omega-electronics.ch

2005 was an exceptional year in more ways than one for Omega Electronics, which was able to
respond to the demands of its prestigious clients in the sporting sector. The company reorgan-
ized its activities in order to maximize synergies within the Group. The Swiss Timing and Omega
Electronics companies established extremely strategic links during the period under review. The
aim of these is to reinforce the center of competence focused on sporting competitions. With
the same objective of consolidating strengths and competencies, the radio frequency identifica-
tion (RFID) communication systems developed by Omega Electronics have resulted in an opera-
tional synergy with EM Microelectronic.
In terms of activities, Omega Electronics’ focus in 2005 was on the development of products for
use at the Turin 2006 Winter Olympics, including a range of giant video screens complete with
definition-enhancing modules using SMD technology. Turnkey systems that include timekeep-
ing, information processing and public display boards are particularly appreciated by the organ-
izers of sporting events throughout the world. By way of example, there is the swimming pool
equipment installed in Montreal for the 11th World Swimming Championships in July 2005, the
multisport equipment in Macao for the 4th East Asian Games, and also the equipment at the
Stade de Suisse in Berne. The new addition to the photo-finish camera range, the Scan’O’Vision
Star, has now entered its testing phase at the Turin Olympics following 3 years of development.
Access link contactless communication systems saw a very positive development in 2005.
Omega Electronics installed this innovative access control mechanism at the Stade de Suisse in
Berne. The system, which recognizes various paper tickets from different suppliers, also oper-
ates with electronic tickets using radio frequency identification chips (RFID link). These chips
can be incorporated into stadium tickets or Swatch Access watches. Alongside this equipment,
some 25 000 access control and electronic payment systems and terminals are equipped with
these components, and all are compatible with Swatch Access watches. An ultra-low energy
consumption battery-powered electronic lock has also been developed by Omega Electronics in
partnership with a leading company in this field.
As regards traveler information system operations, these have been taken on by a new partner
that founded the PEL-Passenger Electronics company at the start of the final quarter of 2005. All
the activities of this division of Omega Electronics have continued to run smoothly and to the
satisfaction of both customers and collaborators. 

Swatch Group | Annual Report 2005
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CDNP Division
Centre de développement de nouveaux produits

The New Products Development Center (CDNP) brings a multitude of ideas and dreams face to
face with technical and financial realities on a daily basis. It is responsible for putting the
finishing touches to the watches created by the Group’s different brands. Cooperating closely
with the Group’s production companies, which assemble and finish watches, the Center relies
on the expertise and experience of a team of designers for esthetic matters, and on engineers
and technicians for construction issues, technical details and production support. Thanks to
years of watchmaking experience and understanding, we find here the ultimate combination of
technology and esthetics.
Ultra-modern machining centers facilitate the production of small runs of prototype watchcases,
dials, bracelets, clasps, bezels and jewels, and the expertise of a team of micro-mechanical
technicians results in these prototypes being finished to an impeccable standard. Ultra-rapid
three-dimensional prototyping in high-performance multicolored synthetic resins has become
the preferred esthetic approach for virtually all the Group’s brands.

General Services

THE SWATCH GROUP RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT LTD

The Swatch Group Research and Development Ltd was founded in 2005 and became operational
on September 1. This new company groups, in three divisions, the activities of Asulab SA as well
as those of CDNP and Hi-Tech Group, both transferred from Swatch Group Management
Services. The Swatch Group Research and Development Ltd thus consolidates the Swatch Group
corporate research and development activities in one legal entity. The missions of Asulab, CDNP,
and Hi-Tech Group are pursued in this new structure.
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Expertise gained in the fields of computer graphics and image synthesis animation has led to
valuable support material being produced for the brands; one could quote for example repair
instructions CDs for after-sales servicing.
Specialist watch packaging engineers also advise the brands and manage their orders for this
type of material, taking into account environmental and financial considerations. The CDNP has
provided assistance on numerous occasions during 2005 in the areas of watches, jewels,
packaging and advertising support of all types.
Last but not least, the Center has the important and challenging task of developing and
monitoring standards and technical specifications for external watch parts in strict accordance
with ISO and NIHS standards, which at the end of the day ensures the quality of the Group’s
products. This task is carried out in close collaboration with the Group’s quality department.
The close links forged with its sister divisions Asulab and Hi-Tech are enabling the Center to
undertake promising investigations into the products of the future, whilst several patents have
again been registered, further enhancing the division’s portfolio. 

Division Hi-Tech
During 2005, the Hi-Tech division continued its double mission of improving its technological
expertise with a view to developing new applications for future watches, and also of reinforc-
ing and optimizing the synergy between the Group companies involved in developing compo-
nents and watches with functions requiring ever smaller and more powerful electronics.
A lightweight structure of this type, integrated into corporate processes thanks to its matrix
structure, gives the Group improved flexibility and response times in an area where the speed
of technological developments demands quick reactions.

Division Asulab www.asulab.com

Asulab is the corporate research and development laboratory of the Swatch Group. Its mission
is the development of technically innovative watch products, subsystems and components, as
well as the necessary manufacturing technologies.
Active collaboration with high schools provides access to the technologies and techniques that
are essential for the innovative activities of the laboratory. 
Close cooperation with the Swatch Group companies and direct involvement throughout 
the industrialisation phase provide the key for the success of the associated transfer of the 
know-how.
In order to fulfil its mission, Asulab has a highly trained technical staff and the corresponding
technical laboratory infrastructure. The laboratory is active in micro-technology, micro-
electronics, telecommunications, displays, sensors and actuators, materials and process
engineering. It gathers all the technical fields required today for the development of
sophisticated modern timing products.
A competence centre for thin-films has been started in 2004 and has shown promising results
in 2005. Especially new thin-film technologies for decorative metal layers on watch crystals have
been developed. Noble metals or hard metals can be deposited and structured even on curved
surfaces. Special color appearances are created by superposition of different material layers.
These developments include the production processes, the analytic and test processes to 
ensure the high quality level required for our applications. Critical parameters such as thin-film
adherence and climate resistance can now be measured quantitatively.
These results will allow creating novel aesthetics for watches presenting new material
combinations and clearer view through the watch crystals.
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ICB
INGÉNIEURS CONSEILS EN BREVETS

The key objectives of ICB Ingénieurs Conseils en Brevets SA are to protect the technical
innovations of the Swatch Group, promote its technological knowledge, monitor markets, and
combat counterfeiting.
In 2005, ICB continued to protect the technological assets of the companies and the various
research and development entities of the Swatch Group. New patent applications registration
activity remained steady compared with 2004. This outcome is the result of an effective synergy
that has been maintained with all the engineering and research teams within the Swatch
Group. Once again this year, this collaboration has been particularly significant in the field of
watchmaking, without forgetting the continued high level of activity in the Swatch Group’s 
non-watchmaking operations.
Significant effort has been put into supporting the market penetration strategy of the Group’s
brands. To this end, financial investment to protect new products abroad has been targeted so
as to achieve coverage in the potential markets for these new products, by consolidating their
positions in emerging countries.
In collaboration with the Swatch Group’s legal department, ICB has assisted companies and
various departments within the Group in defending their rights, wherever they may be, and
whenever this has been necessary.
This year, the management of ICB has continued its financial strategy of controlling operating
costs. It has also set out to reduce operational costs relating to maintaining and acquiring
patent rights.

SWATCH GROUP QUALITY MANAGEMENT

One of the principal missions of the Swatch Group Quality Management team is to ensure the
quality, the reliability, and the security of the Group’s products. To this end it provides services
to the companies and the central organizations of the Group. In 2005, it brought its efforts to
bear principally on the successive quality stages through which its watches, jewelry and watch
components pass, from their design to their arrival on the market.
The establishment of various working groups, made up of the companies concerned, has
enabled specific solutions to be introduced in the field of product and process optimization.
In addition, a second homologation centre has been created with the objective of strengthening
the monitoring of mass-produced products.
Swatch Group Quality Management also has the task of gathering together in specific docu-
ments the technical requirements arising partly from international legislation and standards,
and partly from internal directives. These specifications are intended for the Swatch Group’s
suppliers, both internal and external, in order to guarantee the use of appropriate materials and
processes. They are periodically revised, and several of them were updated during 2005.
Direct support was given during the implementation of changes necessary to conform to
European Union directives concerning restrictions on the use of hazardous substances in
electrical and electronic equipment (RoHS and WEEE directives). 
Finally, a new modular training program was prepared in the area of quality tools. It forms part
of the Swatch Group’s 2006 training offering. 
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SWATCH GROUP DISTRIBUTION

Logistics serves not only to reduce costs and generate time savings: it has also been proved that
it increases customer satisfaction, and therefore corporate sales. It was these findings that
resulted in the creation of Swatch Group Distribution in 2001, with the objective of providing
worldwide support to Swatch Group companies in their efforts to supply customers with
products in a more rapid, reliable and cost-effective way than before.

Swatch Group Logistics Unit
In the context of this objective, the Swatch Group Logistics Unit set out in 2005 to combine
additional key elements needed in order to form an integrated global Supply Chain
Management system. Initially, a logistics information platform connected virtually all the brands
to the various international subsidiaries, and now also to over 200 agents, providing them with
up-to-date information on sales, inventories, and open orders. Today, the scope of this system
is expanding to include production companies and component suppliers, and interactions
between companies are in the process of being automated. The progress reporting system and
control methods have also been improved, to the extent that it is now possible to use key 
figures to monitor and, if necessary, enhance all the main operational logistics data. Last but
not least, the team has expended considerable effort on assisting companies to implement 
and use new systems and methods of advanced planning. These are helping to increase the
availability of goods for delivery to points of sale, as well as avoiding excess inventory. 

European Distribution Center
The other important task that Swatch Group Distribution has set itself is to establish regional
service centers. The European Distribution Center (EDC) is one such example. Thanks to this
center, it has been possible over the last few years progressively to replace countless local
warehouses and information systems with a common distribution platform. Twelve brands and
thirteen national companies already benefit from the services provided by this center. Several
million watches, items of jewelry, and items of advertising material are distributed each year via
the EDC, and tens of thousands of packages leave the packing lines each day to be delivered
directly to over 10 000 retailers across Europe within 24 to 48 hours.
The benefits of these solutions are clear: since there is now only one warehouse to manage,
inventories can be considerably reduced, operating costs have decreased by over 10 percent,
and inventory turnover times have been significantly reduced, enabling the Group to react more
rapidly to market opportunities.
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SWATCH GROUP REAL ESTATE

In 2005, Swatch Group Real Estate was responsible for managing a total of 6413 housing units
(comprising 460 buildings). The properties administered by the company are spread across ten
cantons, but the majority are located in the cantons of Berne, Neuchâtel, Solothurn, Vaud and
Jura. These management contracts are being carried out on behalf of the Swatch Group Pension
Fund, group companies’ employer’s funds, Swatch Group subsidiaries and some third parties,
whose share is expected to increase further. During the period under review, a sum of CHF 14.6
million was allocated to renovation and maintenance of the properties under management. At
the end of 2005, the percentage of empty properties in the managed real estate portfolio was
approaching 5.3 percent. This figure is slightly above the level of the previous year (5.1%).
In the industrial sector, the company once again carried out a large number of planning,
improvement and refurbishment projects. Worthy of special mention here is the complete
renovation and expansion of Blancpain’s «Farm» at Le Brassus, with a watchmaking workshop;
the refitting of Breguet’s entrance at L’Abbaye, and extra height on the building at L’Orient; the
renovation of the frontage and the technical expansion of Longines’ production sites at 
Saint-Imier; as well as other renovation work for Tissot at Le Locle. At Comadur, the dedication
ceremony for the laying of the first stone took place at Le Col-des-Roches, where a new 
factory to produce sapphire crystals is being built. Finally, planning has begun for the
construction of a new factory at Le Sentier for Frédéric Piguet.
Several relocations have taken place, for example that of Hamilton International in the Swatch
Group Distribution building in Bienne, and the arrival of Swatch Group Korea in its new location
in Seoul.
Finally, the engineers and architects of the real estate department have actively participated in
the fitting out of numerous new sales boutiques for a wide range of the Group’s brands, notably
in London (Omega), Baden-Baden (Tourbillon), Geneva (Breguet, Blancpain, Léon Hatot, Jaquet
Droz), Munich (Blancpain) and Lucerne (Omega).

SWATCH GROUP CUSTOMER SERVICE

In close collaboration with the brands, Swatch Group Customer Service focused its activities on
three fronts in 2005, in order to continue increasing the satisfaction of the Group’s customers.
The main objective of all these actions was to ensure the effective management of customer
service operations worldwide.
In the field of human resources, an analysis of management in the Group’s subsidiaries has
resulted in a strengthening of customer service management, either through training activities
or by taking on highly qualified staff. In addition, the watchmakers’ census has enabled Swatch
Group Customer Service to plan requirements for future years. A new watchmaking school has
recently been opened at Group premises at Secaucus (NJ), following on from those in Shanghai
and Glashütte. Also with the aim of meeting anticipated demand, the Group is the majority
partner and the driver behind a new watchmaking school which will open in the United
Kingdom in 2006.
The welcome given to customers has been one of the key themes of 2005, and has led to the
relocation and reorganization of customer service centers in Singapore, Canada, South Korea
and Taiwan, placing a particular emphasis on reception areas and reception personnel. At the
same time, the watchmakers employed in these subsidiaries have been equipped with modern
work tools in a pleasant environment, thus ensuring better quality work in shorter timescales.
Several audits of subsidiaries were carried out during the year, focusing primarily on operational
control. In addition to three large-scale projects that will be implemented during 2006, the audit
results have led to the introduction of key performance indicators that will in future enable
operations to be monitored effectively and regularly.
Launched in 2004, the European customer service center in Glashütte became fully operational
in 2005. Apart from certain efficiency problems that remain to be resolved, its installation has
been a complete success. In terms of logistics, all shipments are carried out within a maximum
of two days, with the great majority taking place in less than 24 hours. As regards quality, all
those involved agree that it has now reached record levels.
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SWISS TIMING  www.swisstiming.com

There was plenty of pre-Olympic excitement for the Group’s timekeeping, points scoring and
sports data processing company at the beginning and end of 2005 during testing for the 15
sports that made up the Turin 2006 Olympic Winter Games.

A première
It was at Melbourne during the World Artistic Gymnastics Championships that Swiss Timing,
along with Longines, introduced its newest arrival, Ircos. Ircos is an innovative television
commentator information system (CIS) that enables all the judges’ marks and all the positions
to be displayed in real time. Thanks to this technological advance, Swiss Timing is now one of
the world’s leading information providers at sports events. 
The intensive preparations for the Olympics and the development of the Ircos information
system did not, however, overshadow all the other activities tackled by Swiss Timing on behalf
of Group brands, including almost twenty European and world championships as well as two
major multi-sport events – the Universiades at Izmir and the East Asian Games at Macao. 

With Omega
As in previous years, Swiss Timing was responsible for the timekeeping at numerous world cup
swimming events for Omega, including those in Berlin, Stockholm, Moscow, New York and
Victoria, several national championships including those in Winnipeg, Irvine and Victoria, plus
the World Championships in Montreal and the European Short Course Championships in Trieste.
Omega also verified athletics’ finest moments by timekeeping at most of the prestigious Grand
Prix events, including Athletissima (Lausanne), the Weltklasse (Zurich), Berlin, Götzis, Oslo,
Stockholm, Brussels, Paris, Rome and as far afield as Doha and even Shanghai.

With Longines
The prestigious international equestrian competitions in Rome, Barcelona, La Baule, St Gallen
and Hickstead enabled the Longines brand to continue promoting its motto «Elegance is an
Attitude».
Continuing its privileged relations with the European and World Gymnastics Federations (UEG
and FIG), Longines was responsible for timing the most elegant moments of world gymnastics,
in rhythmic gymnastics at the European Championships in Moscow and the World
Championships in Bakou, in artistic gymnastics at the European Championships in Debrecen



86

and the World Championships in Melbourne, not forgetting the European Acrobatic
Championships in Thessalonica and the World Trampolining Championships in Eindhoven.

With Tissot
As active as ever in the sport, and as part of its contract with the International Cycling Union,
Tissot carried out the timekeeping at the world championships in track cycling in Los Angeles,
in road racing in Madrid, and in mountain biking in Livigno, as well as at several stages of the
Mountain Bike World Cup. The brand was also the official timekeeper at the World Fencing
Championships in Leipzig and the World Hockey Championships in Vienna.

With Swatch
Still king of the winter sports circuit, the Swatch brand saw its name on all the world’s TV
screens during the hundred or so stages of the FIS men’s and women’s world cups and the
world championships of alpine skiing (Bormio) and snowboarding (Whistler). And finally beach
volleyball, the young, fun sport that fits the brand’s image so perfectly, provided Swatch with a
showcase on natural and artificial beaches worldwide during the world championships in Berlin
and the twenty or so FIVB World Cup events from Milan to Shanghai, by way of Dubai, Cape
Town, Acapulco, Rio, and Bali. 

Moreover, these excellent performances enabled Swiss Timing to conclude a collaboration deal
with the organizing committees for the Commonwealth Games in Melbourne in March 2006 and
the Asian Games in Doha in December 2006, in conjunction with Tissot.
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Swatch Group in the World
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SWATCH GROUP GERMANY
Despite continuing tension in the economic situation, Swatch Group Germany succeeded in
maintaining, and even improving, its position in all market segments. In fact the de luxe and
mid-price segments developed particularly well, showing positive results in contrast with the
general market trend.
In 2005 the emphasis was placed on an increased presence in the German retail market and on
improving the quality of distribution structures, which were also reinforced by the introduction
of selective distribution contracts. These measures were complemented by the move of the
German Omega organization to Munich’s elegant Maximilianstrasse. The Group opened two
points of sale, each of which marked an important first entry in Germany: the Tourbillon
boutique in Baden-Baden [1], and the Blancpain boutique in Munich [2]. In similar vein, Swatch
recorded two world firsts: the opening of a Swatch Bijoux store in Munich [3], and the arrival
of a Swatch Instant Store in Berlin [4 – p. 87].
In April 2005 the «Momente der Olympischen Spiele» exhibition organized by Omega in the
luxurious KaDeWe (Kaufhaus des Westens) department store in Berlin [5] enabled the brand to
attract the attention of a very large public. Over the course of four weeks, Omega presented
unique photographs, valuable documentaries, and historic time-recording equipment drawn
from the exceptional chapter written in the history of the Olympic Games by the Swiss brand in
its role as their official timekeeper. During the exhibition’s opening ceremony [6], Nick Hayek,
the CEO of the Swatch Group, in the presence of around 1000 specially invited guests and with
Patrice Wagner the director of KaDeWe, welcomed Olympic champion and Omega ambassador
Alexander Popov, together with a large band of German athletes who have left their mark on the
history of the Olympic Games, and local personalities from the worlds of cinema, television and
show business. Under the impetus of the enormous media response to this event, almost four
million visitors came to admire the exceptional objects displayed in the very fine central hall,
and appreciated the storefront display. So it was in the company of Omega the official time-
keeper that the public was immersed in the ambiance of the Turin 2006 Olympic Winter Games.
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SWATCH GROUP AUSTRIA
The Austrian market is suffering from the same economic turmoil as its German neighbor, 
and this has led to weaker retail trade results in watchmaking and jewelry. Despite these
unfavorable circumstances, Swatch Group Austria, under the leadership of Rudolf Semrad, was
able to close 2005 successfully, even gaining market share in the luxury segment. Breguet, with
its boutique located in the center of Vienna on the luxury thoroughfare, contributed to this result
in an encouraging manner. The presence of Omega’s ambassador Ellen MacArthur at the coun-
try’s biggest sailing competition, the Omega Traunsee Week [7], and Tissot’s role as sponsor and
timekeeper for the 2005 World Ice Hockey Championships have significantly raised the profile
of these brands. Moreover, Tissot has seen its turnover increase nicely, as has Certina. ck watch
& jewelry’s very exciting campaign has had a clear impact on the brand’s results. Sales of ck
watch & jewelry and Swatch jewelry have also progressed very favorably.
The Swatch brand experienced some real highlights during the year. Its new product launch
concept and its superb advertising campaigns have been extremely successful on the Austrian
market. There were some sophisticated events, such as the Vienna Life Ball, and some totally
crazy ones like the Swatch Snowmobile event in Saalbach [8] and the beach volleyball
tournament match in Klagenfurt [9]. These all contributed to heightening the presence of this
cult brand in the media and increasing its strong impact with end consumers.

SWATCH GROUP BELGIUM
A very satisfactory year for the Belgian economy, which recorded a performance above the aver-
age of its European Union partners. Swatch Group Belgium was therefore able to increase its
market share and its results thanks not only to higher average prices but primarily to an increase
in demand for mechanical watches. The visibility of the Group’s brands increased markedly,
notably due to various events. Wishing to pay homage to the exceptional artistic heritage of the
Old World, and more particularly to the old masters and contemporary artists of the Italian and
Flemish schools, Breguet Benelux put together a completely unique mobile exhibition [10],
which visited various prestigious locations over several weekends, including the Prinsenhof in
Delft [11]. This exhibition consisted of a remarkable collection of old and new Breguet watches
as well as a representative collection of 18th century paintings and 20th century Flemish art,
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including works by James Ensor, Paul Delvaux, Emile Claus and Permeke, amongst others. These
exhibitions were a resounding success with press and public alike. 
Other strong events also marked the year, such as this fun-packed one organized by Swatch in
the Belgian seaside resort of Knokke-le-Zoute [12], and the international press conference held
by ck watch & jewelry in Antwerp in the presence of Arlette-Elsa Emch, the brand’s managing
director [13]. Various energizing initiatives at points of sale, such as Hamilton’s window displays
[14], also contributed to the magnificent result. All the Group’s brands that have a presence in
Belgium saw an increase in their turnover.

SWATCH GROUP SPAIN
The encouraging economic climate that prevailed in Spain during 2005 was mirrored by the
results of Swatch Group Spain. The dynamism and intense commitment of the subsidiary 
greatly contributed to the increase in the presence and visibility of all the brands in the market.
The in-depth work undertaken by the company with the country’s major media channels and a
careful follow-up of public relations operations led to a significant increase in market share
across all segments. A special tribute should be addressed to Omega, which finished the year
under review with record results, followed by all the Group’s prestige and luxury brands. In the
high-end sector, Longines and Rado also benefited from the favorable economic conditions,
whilst in the mid-range sector, Tissot and Balmain both succeeded in increasing their market
share thanks to their new communication strategy.
2005 in Spain was marked by some key events. For example, the legendary Las Ventas bullring
in Madrid [15] acted as the backdrop for the annual meeting of Omega customers. It was also
in Madrid that Omega ambassador Cindy Crawford [16] launched the Omega jewelry line. In its
capacity as official partner, Longines celebrated elegance at the CSIO equestrian event in
Barcelona [17]. And Swatch excited the crowds by arriving totally unexpectedly with an Instant
Store in Madrid [18] and in Barcelona [19], as well as at the utterly zany presentation of
Swatch collections during the Madrid Fashion Week.
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SWATCH GROUP FRANCE
In sometimes difficult economic circumstances, Swatch Group France, under the guidance of its
CEO Florence Ollivier-Lamarque, achieved some good performances. In the prestige segment,
Breguet and Blancpain distinguished themselves by their results, both through third-party
retailers and in their own boutiques. The same applied to Léon Hatot, Jaquet Droz and Glashütte
Original. In the luxury market, Omega made extremely enviable progress thanks to its high-
quality selective distribution. In the high-end segment, Rado and Longines did not falter, whilst
in the mid-range segment, Tissot and ck watch & jewelry put in good performances. Not
wanting to be outdone, Swatch opened some new stores, the most recent of which marks a first
in France, being a Swatch jewelry boutique in Cannes [20] on the Croisette promenade. Also
noteworthy was the erection of an Instant Store at Galeries Lafayette [21]. Nor should the other
major occurrences of this eventful year be forgotten. These included the centenary of the Léon
Hatot brand [22] at Christie’s salerooms in Paris, and Rado’s presence as partner and timekeep-
er at the Roland Garros tennis tournament in Paris, where the managing director of Rado,
Roland Streule, welcomed Miss France 2000 Sonia Roland [23] in the VIP box.
In December at the Omega boutique at number 7, rue de la Paix in Paris, Omega recognized the
yachtswoman Ellen MacArthur [24] for the extraordinary round-the-world solo record she
achieved in February 2005. Over 120 people – journalists, the navigator’s admirers and
enthusiasts of the brand – shared an exceptional moment with this remarkable woman. 
Olivier Peretié, special correspondent for the Nouvel Observateur and himself a great fan of 
Ellen MacArthur and the ocean, led a discussion with the Omega ambassador on her
relationship with time during her record voyage. After the projection of a film illustrating the
superhuman efforts she accomplished, Ellen answered journalists’ questions with enthusiasm
and good humor.
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SWATCH GROUP GREECE
2005 marked the beginning of a new era for Swatch Group Greece. In fact, this first 
post-Olympic year was devoted to redirecting the company’s energies. This refocusing was
characterized by significant investment in the retail trade network, and by the implementation
of criteria and directives relating to selective distribution. These measures bore fruit, since
Swatch Group Greece was able to announce high sales performances and a considerable
growth in overall market share. In addition, the reputation and visibility of the Group’s brands
increased thanks to various marketing initiatives and public relations and promotional activities
in the media. 
In October, Swatch Group Greece held an important event: it opened the first Omega boutique
in the country [25], at number 2 Voukourestiou Street in the heart of Athens. The boutique is
dedicated to the haute horlogerie and jewelry businesses. This splendid location enables the
brand to increase its reputation for excellence, and to position itself strongly in the luxury
segment.

SWATCH GROUP ITALY
Swatch Group Italy achieved a good performance in terms of turnover, notably in the prestige,
luxury, and high-end segments. For the fashion and technology product brands, business was
positive. As regards sales in the mid-range segment, they are still suffering from the stagnation
which has prevailed in the economy in recent years. Swatch has made a particular effort to
increase its consumer visibility and reputation. Numerous points of sale have been renovated;
an extensive media presence, fun events such as the Flash Mob in Milan [26], and the Swatch
bijoux campaigns have contributed to its improved sales.
The whole country was gripped by Olympic fever this year in the build-up to the Turin 2006
Winter Olympic Games. On 10 February 2005, i.e. one year to the day before the official open-
ing of the Winter Olympics, Omega, in its capacity as official timekeeper, revived its links with
its Olympic past, celebrating this event in its own way by inviting the international press to a
conference at the Lingotto Conference Center. Group CEO Nick Hayek, with Omega’s managing
director Stephen Urquhart, the president of the International Olympic Committee Jacques
Rogge, and Valentino Castellani, president of the Turin 2006 organizing committee, started 
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the official countdown to Turin 2006 «Minus One» [27] with Olympic legends [28] alpine 
skier Gustavo Thoeni, speed skater Bonnie Blair, cross-country skier Marco Albarello, long
distance skater Claudia Pechstein, combined Nordic specialist Kenji Ogiwara, figure skaters
Marina Anissina and Gwendal Peizerat, and speed skater Lee-Kyung Chun. This solemn moment
was recorded in an official photograph by the celebrated German photographer Peter Lindbergh.

SWATCH GROUP FINANCE (LUXEMBOURG) SA
In 2005 the Swatch Group Finance (Luxembourg) SA holding company pursued its goal of 
taking into account the growing internationalization of the Swatch Group’s business. The
company’s aim is to exploit its liquid assets, investments and capital by following the financial
policy of the Swatch Group and coordinating its activities with those of its parent company.
Functioning as an autonomous legal entity, it draws on the advantages offered by the financial
status of Luxembourg in order to play an active part in the financial operations of the Group. The
international importance of the Luxembourg financial market enables the company to play a key
role at the level of the technical financial structure of the Swatch Group. Set up in Luxembourg,
the finance company is managed as an element of The Swatch Group SA’s global financial
organization.

SWATCH GROUP NETHERLANDS
The fiscal year 2005 was fascinating for Swatch Group Netherlands in two ways. Firstly, the
economic situation in the country confronted it with numerous challenges, and the battle
against the competition was fierce. Secondly, Swatch Group Netherlands has been standing on
its own two feet since the beginning of 2005, having become totally independent of Swatch
Group Belgium with the exception of one shared service center. The subsidiary therefore
experienced a year of in-depth reorganization.
The erection in December of a Swatch Instant Store opposite the central station in Amsterdam [29]
made big headlines. Graffiti artists created an atmosphere that was both unique and wild in this
distinctive store, particularly since the Che Guevara Swatch special was on sale – a model
produced in the 1990s and only available in Cuba. A very festive opening was organized for the
point of sale in the presence of the press and Dutch personalities such as the world judo
champion Dennis van de Geest, the five-time Netherlands wakeboard champion Duncan Zuur,
and the former Music Factory presenter, DJ Jeroen Post. The invitation to the celebrations [30]
was a great success and, within the space of a few days, the Instant Store generated 
much excitement and jollity in the district, receiving widespread coverage in the regional and 
national media.
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SWATCH GROUP NORDIC
The four countries that make up Swatch Group Nordic – Denmark, Norway, Sweden and Finland
– recorded a very good overall result in 2005. Both turnover and market shares showed a
significant increase, particularly in the luxury, top-end and mid-range segments. Omega,
Longines, Tissot and Certina continue to be blue chip brands that are much appreciated by
consumers, as are Swatch and Flik Flak, whose reputation continues to grow. Various events
organized for the launch of new products indicate a strong and buoyant interest, notably
amongst the national and regional media.

Denmark
As official timekeeper of the Nykredit Masters European ladies golf tournament, the biggest
sporting event of the year in Denmark, Omega was able to enhance its reputation for quality.
The brand also scored a major hit because it was its national ambassador Iben Tinning [31] who
won the tournament and received her prize from Her Royal Highness Princess Marie.

Norway
All of Norway closely followed the progress of the ten mountaineers and two television camera-
men who left Norway on March 10, 2005, each wearing a Tissot T-Touch Titanium on their wrist.
Led by the famous Norwegian climber Jon Gangdal, they aimed to climb Mount Everest by the
most popular of the north face routes, the North Ridge, starting from Tibet. On May 29, 2005, it
was mission accomplished; Jon Gangdal arrived on the summit of Everest [32] and declared:
«This watch gives you everything you need to succeed in this sort of challenge. It has almost
become a part of my own body.»

Sweden
The prestigious Fjällräven Polar dog sled race is considered to be one of the toughest of all
European competitions. It takes place in the far north of Sweden in temperatures that drop
below minus 20 degrees Centigrade, and Tissot was very proud to be its official timekeeper [33].

Finland
During the semi-finals of the EuroHockey 2005 ice hockey tournament, Tissot named Jari Kurri
‘Finnish ice hockey legend’ [34]. Jari Kurri is considered to be the best European player in the
major NHL, having played in the Stanley Cup for five seasons. Before him, Tissot had already
awarded this title to two other ice hockey idols, the Russian goalkeeper Vladislav Tretjak and the
Czech player and trainer Ivan Hlinka.
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SWATCH GROUP POLAND
The first Group subsidiary to combine Eastern and Central Europe, Swatch Group Poland
launched its commercial operations on January 1, 2005. This meant new offices, new
management and logistics systems, exemplary customer service and, of course, new employees.
All of these benefited, in their own areas, from the highly effective support provided by various
parts of the Group, to the extent that the company is now fully operational. If sales at year-end
were extraordinary, this was also thanks to the very rapid restocking carried out by the Group’s
European distribution center, on which Swatch Group Poland relies.
The brands distributed – Swatch, Omega, Longines, Rado, Tissot, ck watch & jewelry, Certina
and Flik Flak – were supported by coherent communication programs that perfectly met the
needs and behavior of Polish customers. Several product launches took place successfully, and
sporting events such as the Stara Jablonia Swatch Beach Volleyball tournament in July and the
Omega Crystal Club meeting organized in September attracted the attention of the media and
consumers alike. During this yachting event, the brand introduced its new local ambassador, the
Pole Mateusz Kusznierewicz [35], Olympic and European Finn category sailing champion.

SWATCH GROUP UK
Trading conditions were very difficult in the United Kingdom during 2005 particularly in the
second half of the year. All retailers noted a marked reduction in both consumer confidence and
spending compared with previous years. But despite this context, Swatch Group United
Kingdom succeeded in outperforming the market. Breguet in particular recorded significant
growth, while Longines and Rado increased their market share.
During the year under review, Swatch Group United Kingdom focused on pursuing its retail
trade development program. So after London (in Covent Garden and on Oxford Street) and
Cardiff, Swatch opened a fourth store in Canterbury. The Breguet boutique on New Bond Street
in London saw business flourish, and Omega did not take a back seat. It opened two own-name
stores at the end of 2005; one at London’s Heathrow Airport, and the other in the capital on Old
Bond Street [36]. In January 2006, it inaugurated a third new boutique at the Royal Exchange
in one of London’s luxury districts in the heart of the City. Perfectly situated, these three points
of sale convey the essence of the brand, in providing a showcase both for its image and for the
quality of service that accompanies its products. The Omega boutique on Old Bond Street bears
witness to this: its frontage and store windows have given new life to the whole district. Since
these openings, Omega has recorded a spectacular jump in its sales and its positioning as a
luxury brand.

SWATCH GROUP BRAZIL
In 2005, Swatch Group Brazil experienced an intensive year of restructuring the whole of its dis-
tribution strategy. It implemented and consolidated a new organization based on its service
offering to clients. It set out better to divide up the distribution of its products in the country’s
interior. It devoted all its energy to contacts with clients and end consumers. It undertook sales
force training; it checked product presentation in points of sale; and it oversaw the quality of
technical assistance services. And so, at the end of the year, Swatch Group Brazil was able
directly to experience the effects of its in-depth work: end consumers were able to recognize the
qualities of the savoir-faire of each of the Group’s brands. Sales results were given a boost, and
showed a substantial increase compared with previous years.
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SWATCH GROUP CANADA
During 2005, Swatch Group Canada met the objectives it set itself, strengthening its position 
in the market. It has been focusing all its efforts on developing a quality distribution net-
work, expanding the retail stores belonging to the Group, and improving the image and 
the presentation of brands on retail premises. Regarding public relations, the new product 
launches for various brands were a success with customers and the media alike. A sporting
event of international status also attracted everyone’s attention to one of the Group’s brands:
Omega was official timekeeper at the World Swimming Championships, which were held 
in Montreal.
In June 2005, Swatch Group Canada joined in congratulating a Montreal retailer on the
occasion of the reopening of his point of sale, which is situated on rue Sainte Catherine [37] in
the main shopping district in the lower town. The success of this partnership operation
confirmed to Swatch Group Canada the soundness of its reorganization. The Canadian
subsidiary is therefore proud to be present in this newly renovated point of sale with the
Swatch, Tissot, Longines, Rado, Hamilton, Flik Flak and ck watch & jewelry brands and their
respective shop-in-shops. Quebec’s most important media – television, radio and press –
reported the awarding of the Tissot Precious Flower watch to Quebec television personality
Annie Pelletier, who is also an Olympic bronze diving medalist. They also covered the launch of
the Hamilton X-Wind model, and widely commented on the award made by the brand to Captain
Robert Piché, the heroic pilot who saved the lives of over 350 people by making an emergency
landing of his Airbus 330 at Lajes airport in the Azores, having flown the plane for around
twenty minutes after both engines shut down. 

SWATCH GROUP UNITED STATES
The US market rapidly demonstrated a pronounced passion for timepieces of quality, not to say
of tradition, as is shown by its top ranking in the list of countries to which Swiss watches are
exported, according to the Federation of the Swiss Watch Industry. While sales results for all 
the Group’s brands increased exponentially in 2005, Swatch Group United States continued to
focus its efforts on distribution. Concentrating on a more exclusive circle of retailers and 
consolidating the current distribution network has invigorated not only the image but also the
presence of all the Group’s brands across the entire country. 
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This in-depth work on the retail trade and its environment, the quality of the services offered,
and the presentation of products is reflected in the very significant penetration of all the brands
in the retail trade. Swatch opened five stores [38]; Breguet has ten new points of sale and three
shop-in-shops; Blancpain has eight new points of sale, and Glashütte Original has six. Jaquet
Droz also expanded its highly targeted network of distributors and all the other brands took
particular care in the presentation of products at their distributors and authorized retailers.
Omega continued its policy of selective and exclusive distribution. It took every opportunity to
promote a solid and consistent brand image, and intensified its strategy of positioning itself
even more strongly in the luxury segment. This has resulted in a reduction in the number of
small retailers. Results at the end of 2005 overwhelmingly confirmed that this was the right
approach. In addition to numerous new product launches, including those of the Seamaster
Planet Ocean and the DeVille Chocolat for ladies, the brand made its mark by acquiring, after a
hard-fought struggle at auction, the watch worn by the late John Fitzgerald Kennedy on the day
of his investiture as President of the United States in 1960 [39].
Other events marked the seasons of 2005, including the New York reception of the Omega
ambassador Ellen MacArthur [40]; that of the new Longines Ambassador of Elegance, actor and
musician Harry Connick, Jr. [41]; and the introduction of the first woman to become a Tissot
ambassador, the Indy® car driver Danica Patrick [42]. The partnership between Rado and the
Susan G. Komen Breast Cancer Foundation benefited from an amazing following among the
public, who were touched by the brand’s commitment to breast cancer sufferers. Last but not
least, Hamilton celebrated its alliance with the cinema by presenting the Hamilton Timeless
Style Awards [43] in Hollywood for the third consecutive year, in the presence notably of Mimi
Rogers and Dakota Fanning.

SWATCH GROUP MEXICO
Despite the prevailing instability of this pre-election year, all Swatch Group Mexico’s brands
have clearly been able to reassert their leadership positions, showing good performances. This
result is also due to the strengthening of the brands’ profile on the market. Omega, Longines,
Mido, Tissot, ck watch & jewelry and Swatch opened new corners in more than fifteen shopping
centers, and Swatch inaugurated three new stores.
Among the year’s highlights, it is worth noting the launch, by Mido, of the extremely character-
istic Michel Jourdain Jr. Collection, dedicated to the former CART driver who now drives on the
NASCAR circuit. The Swatch FIVB beach volleyball world tournament match on Acapulco beach
will continue to be an unforgettable moment for the participants, as will the authoritative
conference on the past, present and future of the tourbillon, held by Emmanuel Breguet at the
Maison de France in Mexico City. But the key event for Swatch Group Mexico was indisputably
the opening of the very first Omega boutique [44] on Masaryk Avenue, in the heart of the
Polanco district of Mexico City. The Omega ambassador Anna Kournikova introduced the brand’s
new timepieces and jewelry, wearing creations by the two young stylists Ivonne Cohen and
Carlo de Michelis, before presiding over an auction of her Omega DeVille Chocolat watch in aid
of UNICEF and child victims of the hurricane that devastated the state of Chiapas.
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SWATCH GROUP AUSTRALIA
The difficult economic conditions that prevailed on the Australian continent in 2005 had an
influence on the results of Swatch Group Australia, which remained satisfactory.
The fashion and sporting events supported by the Group’s brands also made a considerable
public impact. ck watch & jewelry successfully launched its new collections [45]. Rado was
official timekeeper at the Australian Tennis Open in Melbourne [46], Longines was the official
watch of the southern hemisphere’s most prestigious equestrian event, the 2005 Melbourne
Cup Carnival, and Omega was that of the Heineken Classic golf tournament [47]. Furthermore,
at the Australian Formula 1 Grand Prix, the first meeting ever organized between the two
champions and Omega ambassadors Michael Schumacher and Ian Thorpe [48] generated
widespread media coverage.
Further reinforcing its presence in the Australian market, Longines was also official timekeeper
for the 38th Artistic Gymnastics World Championships, which took place in Melbourne at the end
of November. On this occasion, all the participants in the individual all round competition were
nominated for the Longines Prize for Elegance, which was presented by Longines President
Walter von Känel to both Monette Russo of Australia and Luis Rivera [49] from Puerto Rico. 

SWATCH GROUP SOUTH KOREA
The year 2005 was bubbling over with excitement for Swatch Group South Korea. The subsidiary
launched itself into the world of dynamism and innovation, and is living this third millennium to
the full. During the course of the year, it moved into its new premises; launched new 
luxury-brand products with finesse; was able to add value to its assets; greatly developed its
duty-free operations; and held numerous events in conjunction with brands, thus helping to
promote positively the Swiss quality image of the Group’s brands. These reorganization
measures as a whole ultimately resulted in an extremely promising result, with an increase in
both market share and sales.
In January 2005, Swatch Group Korea expanded its duty-free operations to include the Omega,
Longines, Rado and Tissot brands, with results showing a very marked growth. A new boutique
dedicated to haute horology and haute joaillerie was opened on Lotte Avenue in Seoul, bearing
the names of Breguet and Léon Hatot [50]. It has already succeeded in establishing and
publicizing the prestige image that accompanies these two brands, and has successfully
conveyed the quality message that accompanies all the Group’s brands. Longines and Tissot
consolidated both their position and their profile, and were able to improve their results
considerably.
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CHINA REGION

SWATCH GROUP CHINA
Strong sales growth, a huge distribution deployment, and great excitement in public and media
relations. These are the terms that best sum up the activities carried out on the mainland
Chinese market in 2005. Success was in the air, and all the Group’s brands contributed to it by
implementing highly targeted strategies in the sectors of distribution, sales force training, and
developing the Group’s watch and jewelry brands’ reputation and visibility. Many exhibitions
took place across the entire country. Their objective was to introduce the very high quality work-
manship that characterizes the Group’s products simultaneously to the Group’s clients and to
end consumers. Particular emphasis was placed on customer service and after-sales service,
whilst a number of own-name stores, shop-in-shops and corners were opened by all brands in
strategic locations in the country.
For example, Omega opened its largest boutique in the world (450 m2) in Shanghai in the
department store district of Nanjing Road West. Tissot opened its first own-name store on 
Wang Fu Jing, a famous shopping street in Beijing [51], and Glashütte Original opened its own
boutique at Kunming Jin Long [52].
Regarding sporting events, Rado scored a major hit by becoming partner and official time-
keeper of the first Tennis Masters Cup 2005 in Shanghai in November [53]. As for Omega, it had
already made its mark as official timekeeper of the forthcoming summer Olympic Games in
Beijing in 2008 by launching three countdown clocks in the district, and by time keeping at the
«IAAF Shanghai Golden Grand Prix» athletics event at the Shanghai Stadium. Tissot benefited
from excellent media visibility in its role as partner of the first MotoGP to take place in 
China. In the field of cultural events, Breguet celebrated its 230th anniversary by holding an 
exceptional exhibition, notably including around thirty antique items at the Shanghai Concert
Hall in November 2005 [54], while Blancpain presented several exhibitions to promote its image
as a manufacturer of mechanical watches with complications. One event that caused a stir was
the launch of the sumptuous Longines Master Collection line of mechanical watches in the
presence of Longines President Walter von Känel and two Longines ambassadors – actress
Carina Lau and singer Aaron Kwok [55]. Swatch also succeeded in drawing the crowds by
presenting an exhibition of its Swatch Art Specials on the occasion of the «Swiss Design Now!»
exhibition at the Shanghai Museum of Contemporary Art [56], and by electing its first female
ambassador, Li Yu Chun, who was awarded the title of Super Girl in the televised «China Super
Singer 2005» competition [57]. ck watch & jewelry launched its watch and jewelry lines in the
presence of the press during two very sophisticated events, including this one at Ningbo [58]. 
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SWATCH GROUP HONG KONG
During 2005, the Swatch Group Hong Kong subsidiary paid particular attention to strengthen-
ing its presence in the territory by opening own-name stores and shop-in-shops within
department stores including notably the amazing «ifc», the prestigious emblem of Hong Kong.
The results recorded were very respectable, and really took off during the last few months of 
the year.
Omega celebrated Valentine’s Day in its own inimitable way, by inviting Laura Fygi [59] to
appear with the Hong Kong Symphony Orchestra, having celebrated the day with lots of lions
and Chinese ribbons in the company of the brand’s ambassador Qi Qi at the Omega boutique. A
new flagship store for the brand was inaugurated at Causeway Bay, the major department store
hub of the city. Breguet held a magnificent exhibition of antique watches [60] from its Paris
museum in the Hong Kong Design Center, while Blancpain also occupied center stage with an
exhibition of its mechanical models with grandes complications. The Jaquet Droz brand [61]
made its début in the city, exhibiting its latest products together with some magnificent antique
items. Rado took advantage of its sponsorship of the musical Saturday Night Fever [62] to
launch the V10K model with great success, while Hamilton sponsored the film premières of The
Aviator and Fantastic Four [63].

SWATCH GROUP TAIWAN
2005 was another year characterized by growth and success. In general terms, results exceed-
ed forecasts in a most pleasing manner. The big event of the year for the subsidiary was its move
into a new building offering a better standard of accommodation. It was therefore possible to
carry out an in-depth restructuring of customer service, both from the point of view of workshop
activities and the process of monitoring items and controlling quality.
Blancpain scored a huge success in November with a press conference and a VIP dinner
attended by Marc A. Hayek [64]. Both events dealt with the theme «A Tradition of Innovation».
Longines also set people talking by taking part in an event on Mother’s Day as part of a
charitable program – A Heart for Children – that helps children in need. Last but not least,
Swatch made a stunning début on Taiwan public transport in collaboration with the TSCC
(Taipei Smart Card Corporation) by launching the first Access Traffic Hour watch [65], which can
be used as a smart card to gain access to buses and the subway, and to pay parking fees.
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SWATCH GROUP INDIA
2005 ended on a very positive note for Swatch Group India. It is expanding its distribution
network, and recording extraordinary across-the-board growth in a positive economic situation.
Two Omega boutiques and a Rado shop-in-shop were opened, with a good number of new
points of sale being planned. A very important event for the subsidiary was Breguet’s début in
India, the response to which is already very encouraging.
Various events were organized during the course of the year. In Mumbai, the country’s commer-
cial capital, Omega and its international ambassador Pierce Brosnan [66] did a splendid job of
launching the Constellation Double Eagle. The brand presented Amitahb Bachnan, superstar of
the Indian cinema, with a check for the charitable work of the International Indian Film
Association, while Sonali Bendre, Omega’s Indian ambassador, accompanied Pierce Brosnan
throughout the day. The event was widely covered in the press, which gave the brand a tremen-
dous boost, consolidating it in its position as segment leader in the country. Longines organized
a special ladies’ afternoon where, in addition to viewing a fashion show, guests were able to
see the Diamants de Longines collection [67]. As for Tissot, it focused its efforts on implement-
ing a new layout concept in the country’s most prominent points of sale, and organized road
shows with its most prestigious customers in New Delhi, Mumbai and Bangalore. Rado organ-
ized promotional tours to introduce its products with its ambassador, actress Lisa Ray. In
November, brand president Roland Streule launched the Wedding Pair with Lisa Ray [68], who
descended from a wedding palanquin in a traditional bridal costume. This two-watch set,
production of which is limited to 250 copies, and its highly unusual launch event received huge
media coverage.

SWATCH GROUP JAPAN
In 2005, Swatch Group Japan showed all the vigor and dynamism which have led it to enter
successfully into the world of modernity, innovation and quality. The subsidiary achieved an
improvement in various key commercial factors, namely distribution, customer service, logistics
and brand image. Its efforts translated into great success in terms of results, with a very
significant increase in turnover and in market shares.
Breguet succeeded in making its mark in the very competitive prestige watch sector and
launched its prestige jewelry line, whilst Blancpain continued on its upward path, notably by
celebrating the brand’s 270th anniversary at the start of the year. Glashütte Original played a
very active part in the German Year in Japan 2005, exhibiting its creations at the Tokyo National
Museum, whilst Léon Hatot commemorated its centenary in a very appropriate location, one of
the few Art Deco buildings still standing in Tokyo [69]. The presence and visibility of Omega in
the Japanese market received particular attention. At the start of the year, the brand launched
its jewelry collection in jubilation, in the presence of its ambassador Nicole Kidman. She
followed on by inaugurating two sumptuous boutiques, one at Fukuoka, the other at 
Aoyama, Tokyo [70]. Jaquet Droz is a luxury brand that has been particularly appreciated for
several years in the high-end segment because of the message of innovation and high added
value that it gives out. It took a further step in this direction by reserving a world premiere 
for Japan – the opening of its first own-name boutique in Roppongi Hills, a very high-class
quarter in Tokyo [71]. 
The Group also played an active part in the development of its brands in Japan. Several
exhibitions and trade fairs were organized under its banner for the press and trade, of which the
most important was the annual February meeting known as the Swatch Group Convention.
Additionally, construction work on the Nicolas G. Hayek Center [72] is progressing very satis-
factorily. This building on Ginza Street in the heart of Tokyo’s fashion and business district will
be home to all the Group’s brands.
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SWATCH GROUP MALAYSIA
Malaysia has retained its extremely lively economic climate. The quality of the watchmaking
retail trade has improved, and the Malay people have become fine connoisseurs of watches. So
much so, in fact, that Swatch Group Malaysia is entirely ready and willing to take advantage of
this positive trend.
Numerous activities enlivened the year 2005. Swatch actively developed its franchise stores,
while Omega continued its efforts to improve the quality of its selective distribution network.
Longines confirmed Paula Malai Ali in her role as local ambassador, and also elevated top Malay
model Carmen Soo to the same status. Rado opened a new point-of-sales [73], held a national
meeting for its customers and celebrated the brand’s 48 years’ presence in the country. Tissot
won additional market share, whilst maintaining its position as Swiss leader of the mid-price
segment thanks to its solid performance. Last but not least, ck watch & jewelry successfully
launched its jewelry collection, as did Omega, which secured the presence of its international
ambassador, top model Cindy Crawford [74]. The Omega press conference in which she took
part with Omega’s CEO Stephen Urquhart caused an enormous crowd, and Omega jewelry
benefited from phenomenal coverage in all the country’s major media as well as the gala event
held by Léon Hatot and its CEO Arlette-Elsa Emch who welcomed numerous guests [75].

SWATCH GROUP SINGAPORE
What a significant year 2005 was for the Republic of Singapore: it celebrated 40 years of
independence as well as the incredible development of its economy, which has become sound
and prosperous in such a short period of time. Today Singapore is a modern metropolis, and its
inhabitants are amongst the most knowledgeable watch collectors in the world.
Swatch Group Singapore is taking full advantage of this positive climate, and announced results
for 2005 that were extremely satisfactory. Both its global turnover and its market shares in
individual segments showed robust growth. Swatch greatly expanded its presence in points of
sale, and inaugurated the first Jelly Fish concept store in Raffles City. Breguet and Blancpain
had much success at gala dinners and exclusive private cocktail parties held by the brands.
Thanks to the improvement of retailer product presentation and follow-up, and also to the
organization of much-appreciated events, Omega further strengthened its position as leader of
the luxury segment. Glashütte Original and Longines [76] were both keen to celebrate with
limited editions commemorating 40 years of the Republic of Singapore. The CEO of Glashütte
Original, Dr Frank Müller, presented the President of the Republic of Singapore, Sellapan Rama
Nathan, with one of two special platinum watches as a gift to the nation. On the occasion of
the launch of the V10K, the world’s hardest watch, Rado scored a huge hit by exhibiting mod-
els in the prestigious reference location for designers the world over, the red dot museum. As
leader of the mid-range segment, Tissot once again further asserted itself as a quality Swiss
watch and, like ck watch & jewelry and Balmain, continued on its course of magnificent growth.
Hamilton scored some splendid results – up significantly – thanks not only to its new models
but also to the fact that it has been selected as official watch of the Singapore armed forces.
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SWATCH GROUP THAILAND
A record improvement in results, notably those of prestige and luxury brands following
watchmaking trade fairs; expansion of the distribution network; and growth in market share in
all segments with a special mention for Swatch. These are the main trends that marked 2005
for Swatch Group Thailand, in spite of the drastic curb on the economy that followed the
tsunami disaster, the resurgence of bird flu, drought and soaring gasoline prices.
Despite all this, the year was marked by events that generated much media success and
increased the visibility of the numerous Group brands present in Thailand. Their presence via the
installation of a Rado shop-in-shop [77] in South-East Asia’s biggest shopping complex at Siam
Paragon (500 000 m2) is also a powerful demonstration of their reputation. The introduction of
Rado Thailand’s first female ambassador, the famous actress Saraichatt Kunjara Na Ayuthya,
and the celebrations of Breguet’s 230th anniversary during a dinner reserved for specially
selected guests also enabled these brands to improve their already very successful image. It is
also worth mentioning the press conference organized for the signing of a partnership contract
between Glashütte Original and Frank Jewelry [78], one of Bangkok’s most prestigious watch
retailers. Moreover, the event that took place on the occasion of the delivery of 50 Glashütte
PanoMaticLunar watches to 50 collectors who are members of Siam Naliga – Thailand’s biggest
watch collecting club, with almost 3000 members – enabled the brand to make a name for itself
in the worlds of business and of the Thai watch industry.

SWATCH GROUP MIDDLE EAST
The Swatch Group Middle East subsidiary attained new heights in 2005. Its growth was
remarkable, and its dominant position in all segments was further strengthened. Moreover, the
prestige and luxury segment brands significantly contributed to a major increase in retail trade
across the region.
The highlight of the year for the subsidiary was, without a doubt, the third «Mini Baselworld»
event, which took place in Dubai in September with great success. Over three days, almost 250
retailers from the Middle East and North Africa were able to discover the latest new products
from the 15 Group brands present: Swatch, Breguet, Blancpain, Omega, Glashütte Original,
Jaquet Droz, Léon Hatot, Longines, Rado, Tissot, ck watch & jewelry, Balmain, Hamilton, Certina
and Mido. As a prelude to this exceptional show, the press were invited to a meeting with Nayla
Hayek, member of the Swatch Group’s Board of Directors, and the directors and responsibles of
the brands [79].
The launch of Rado’s V10K model [80] in Dubai and the presentation of Léon Hatot’s new
ambassador Nelly Makdessy in Beirut by the brand’s managing director Arlette-Elsa Emch [81]
met with an extraordinary media response.
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Swatch Group social policy
The Swatch Group is aware that its performance depends heavily on the quality and commitment of its employees. It needs
people who are motivated and effective and it knows that, in return, it must offer them a social package that makes it a
competitive and attractive employer, capable of recruiting and retaining the best personnel worldwide. 

Working conditions
The working conditions of the Group’s Swiss companies are largely governed by a collective agreement entered into with 
the trade union organizations. Signed for a duration of five years, this agreement expires at the end of 2006, and discussions
regarding its renewal commenced in fall 2005. The relations with the social partners are characterized by mutual respect. Insofar
as the demands are reasonable, Swatch Group is prepared to conduct an open and constructive dialog.

Trade union relations
The Group maintains good relations with trade union organizations, and has frequent contact with them. In 2005, it included in
the framework of the collective agreement some companies located in regions where the collective watchmaking agreement
previously played a minimal role.

Retirement benefits
In Switzerland, Swatch Group employees enjoy excellent retirement benefits. In the interests of fairness, the Group is 
endeavoring to give the employees of non-Swiss companies retirement packages that are as comparable as possible to those
available to its employees working in Switzerland. 

Staff information and consultation for Group companies located within the European Union
In 1996, the Swatch Group introduced a staff information and consultation procedure in compliance with European Directive
94/45/EU (Art. 13). In line with this directive, the representatives of the various Group subsidiaries located within the European
Union are to be informed of the main developments and events within the Group. 
This procedure, which is well established, took place again during the 2005 fiscal year. The meeting was located alternately in
one of our European subsidiaries and in Switzerland. 

Training
The Swatch Group actively participates in the ongoing training of its executives and specialists, and organizes a large number of
courses each year. In 2005, in order even better to meet the needs of its subsidiaries and employees, it carried out a significant
overhaul of its training provision. 

Fundamental principles

Companies 
with headquarters 
in Switzerland

Companies 
with headquarters 
outside Switzerland

Worldwide
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Since as long ago as 1994, the Swatch Group has laid down the requirement for the conservation of nature and its resources in
its corporate environmental policy. During the 2005 fiscal year, this credo has, of course, been maintained and pursued. The
progress achieved demonstrates this commitment. 

Sustainable consideration for the protection of the environment has its roots in the corporate culture of the Swatch Group. This
is translated into action by products and production processes that respect the environment as much as possible. These aspects
are considered right from the research and development phase, notably through the use of raw materials and supplies that are
non-problematic and totally recyclable.

Thanks to some notable improvements, it has been possible to make significant savings. This has proved to be an extremely
motivating factor at all levels of Group management, enabling the adoption of an attitude that is even more respectful of our
environment, and also the allocation of the necessary investments. Some examples of this include: the renovation of cooling
systems, resulting in massive savings of electricity and natural gas, the renovation of certain frontages and windows, leading to
considerable economies in the use of fossil fuels, and the renovation and connection of air-conditioning systems to a closed water
circulation system, with a significant reduction in fresh-water consumption.

The recommended measures once again focus on areas that have potential for ecological optimization, such as energy, water, air,
and waste management. Due to our companies’ very different spheres of activity, there have been some variations in the results
obtained. However, ultimately, the performance achieved in 2005 can be considered perfectly satisfactory compared with the
previous year. Here are some examples to illustrate the progress that has been made:

• Heat consumption per square meter of floor space
Measured in kWh/m2, energy consumption per m2 of floor space, in the form of heating oil and natural gas, has once again
been reduced. This has led to an improvement of 2.1% over the previous year (corrected data: -2.0%). The floor space to be
heated did not change during the fiscal year. The reduction obtained was partly due to measures adopted for industrial
buildings (renovation of some frontages and windows), and partly due to the renovation of various cooling systems involving
the installation of a new water-cooled ventilation regulator and the recovery of industrial heat.

• Electricity consumption per square meter of floor space
Measured in kWh/m2, it has been possible to reduce electricity consumption by 8.2% compared with the previous year (-0.4%).
These savings were once again made in lighting (improvements to lighting in production areas and installation of energy-saving
bulbs), and also by installing low-energy chiller units.

• Emissions of CO2 resulting from energy consumption
Total energy consumption (fuel oil, natural gas and district heat) has once again fallen by over 2.4 million kWh, or 2.1% (2004
figure: reduction of 3.4 million kWh or -2.4%). During the same period, CO2 emissions fell by 2.2% (2004 figure: -3.4%). These
reductions are essentially due to a reduction in the consumption of fuel oil and natural gas.

• Waste management
Levels of special waste (excluding watch batteries) increased slightly during the fiscal year because of the increase in 
production volumes. However, the proportion of special waste that was recovered or recycled also increased by the same amount.

• Battery recycling
After accounting in the period under review for a one-off stock liquidation of a subsidiary in 2004 (relocation), an additional
4.2% of watch batteries were recovered and forwarded to approved companies specializing in recycling (2004: adjusted increase
of 3.1%).

• Waste water treatment
Considerable progress has also been made in this area. This manifested itself in an equivalent reduction in the discharge of
waste water, thanks to the use of closed water circuits for chiller units (Microcomponents) and actions undertaken regarding
the treatment of ultrapure water (EM Microelectronic). These two measures alone have enabled the Group to reduce its 
fresh-water consumption by over 18 000m3.

Environmental policy 
and its implementation

Achievements

Safety and 
environmental protection in 2005
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• Emissions of VOCs (Volatile Organic Compounds)
Despite an increase in production, VOC consumption was down 3.7% compared with the previous year (2004 figure: +0.3%)
thanks to the increasingly frequent substitution of very volatile substances with aqueous processes not involving solvents 
or involving less volatile substances. The discharge of VOCs into the atmosphere remained virtually unchanged (2004 
figure: -2.2%).

• Risk reduction measures
Risk are re-examined on an ongoing basis by internal and external specialists, and appropriate preventive measures are
implemented. As before, fire represents the principal risk. Particular emphasis is therefore placed on prevention, above all on
production sites. This is manifested by the implementation of special measures when such buildings are constructed, the use
of specific techniques, and an appropriate organizational structure. The aim of these measures is primarily to improve the safety
of the packaging and storage of chemical products and inflammable substances, along with the appropriate storage of
materials that constitute a water pollution risk. In practical terms, these include for example the installation of containment
tanks, safety cabinets and smoke and fire alarms, as well as sprinkler systems and corporate firefighter training.

• ISO 14001 certification
During the period under review, two Group companies successfully gained ISO 14001 certification, namely Micro Crystal in
Switzerland and SEFEA in France.
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Corporate Governance
1. Group structure and shareholders

The Swatch Group is active worldwide and represented in all market and price segments in the watch sector with 18 brands 
and in the jewelry sector. In addition, it holds an outstanding industrial position with a high degree of verticalization in the 
Production sector as well as the strategically important sector of Electronic systems. In the General Services sector, the
operational units which provide services for the whole Group, are centralized.
The Swatch Group has lean and efficient management structures at all levels. While the Board of Directors deals with the overall
management, strategic and supervisory tasks, the operative executive duties are incumbent on the Executive Group Management
Board, which is supported by the Extended Group Management Board.
An overview of the operational and of the distribution organizations is given on pages 4 and 5. The consolidated companies, of
which none but The Swatch Group Ltd is listed on the Stock Exchange, are given on pages 160, 161 and 162 with each company’s
name, domicile, share capital and the percentage of shares held.
The shares of The Swatch Group Ltd are listed on the SWX Swiss Exchange virt-x under the Swiss security numbers 1 225 514
(registered shares) and 1 225 515 (bearer shares).

ISIN: CH0012255144 registered shares
CH0012255151 bearer shares

Reuters: UHRN.VX registered shares
UHR.VX bearer shares

Telekurs: UHRN, 1 registered shares
UHR, 1 bearer shares

Further information concerning market capitalization and earnings per share is shown on page 174.
The corporation’s registered office is located in Neuchâtel, faubourg de l’Hôpital 3. The administrative headquarters are in
Biel/Bienne, Seevorstadt 6.

As of 31 December 2005, the Hayek Pool and related parties controlled 62 019 456 registered shares and 293 250 bearer shares,
totalling 37.1% (previous year 36.5%) of the votes.

The Hayek Pool comprises the following members:

Name/Company Location Beneficial owner
Mr N. G. Hayek Meisterschwanden N. G. Hayek
WAT Holding AG Meisterschwanden N. G. Hayek
Ammann Group Holding AG c/o Ernst & Young AG, Bern J. N. Schneider-Ammann

U. A. Ammann
Swatch Group Pension Fund Neuchâtel –

The companies and institutions close to the Hayek Pool but which do not formally belong to the Hayek Pool are:

Name/Company Location Beneficial owner
Hayek Holding SA Meisterschwanden N. G. Hayek
Mr N. G. Hayek and family members N. G. Hayek
Personalfürsorgestiftung der Hayek Engineering AG Meisterschwanden –
Families Ammann (pension funds, foundations and c/o Ernst & Young AG, Bern Represented by 
individuals, Madisa AG) J. N. Schneider-Ammann
Fondation d’Ébauches SA et des maisons affiliées Neuchâtel –
Caisse de pensions des cadres Swatch Group Neuchâtel –

Mr N. G. Hayek’s group, in the context of the Pool, and related parties, altogether control 36.4% (published in the previous year
35.8%) of the votes. 3.9% thereof are represented in the context of the Pool contract (previous year 3.8%). 
Mrs Esther Grether’s group controls 6.7% (previous year 8.0%) of the votes registered at 31 December 2005 in the share register;
in addition, 1 790 750 registered shares were registered in the share register at the beginning of 2006 following a transfer within
the group of Mrs Esther Grether.
On 31 December 2005, no other individual shareholder or group of shareholders holding more than 5% is known to the Group.

The Swatch Group holds no cross-shareholdings.

1.1 Group structure

1.2 Significant 
shareholders

1.3 Cross-shareholdings
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2.1 Capital

2.2 Authorized and
conditional capital

2.3 Changes in capital

2.4 Shares and participa-
tion certificates

2.5 Benefit certificates

2.6 Limitations on
transferability 
and nominee
registrations

2.7 Convertible bonds

2. Capital structure

On 31 December 2005, the capital structure of The Swatch Group Ltd was as follows:

134 911 327 Registered shares at CHF –.45 par value CHF 60 710 097.15
33 057 450 Bearer shares at CHF 2.25 par value CHF 74 379 262.50

Total share capital as of 31.12.2005 CHF 135 089 359.65

No authorized and conditional capital existed as of 31 December 2005.

Over the past three years the share capital of The Swatch Group Ltd changed as follows:

Balance sheet date Registered shares Bearer shares Share capital CHF
31.12.2002 137 051 327 at CHF –.45 33 506 950 at CHF 2.25 137 063 734.65
31.12.2003 137 051 327 at CHF –.45 33 506 950 at CHF 2.25 137 063 734.65
31.12.2004 137 051 327 at CHF –.45 33 506 950 at CHF 2.25 137 063 734.65
31.12.2005 134 911 327 at CHF –.451) 33 057 450 at CHF 2.251) 135 089 359.65
1) Buyback of shares on the Group’s 2nd trading line and cancellation following the decision of the Annual General Meeting of 

18 May 2005: 2 140 000 registered shares and 449 500 bearer shares.

The detailed evolution of equity, reviewed by the auditors for the consolidated financial statements for the years 2004 and 2005,
is published on page 129. For The Swatch Group Ltd, it is published for the year 2005 in note 7 on page 169. With regard to the
previous years we refer to the annual reports 2002, 2003 and 2004.

The shares listed in point 2.1 are fully paid in. Each share carries one vote. Both categories of shares confer equal entitlement to
dividends according to their nominal value. No participation notes have been issued.

No benefit certificates exist.

The Statutes of the Swatch Group stipulate that the Board of Directors shall refuse the registration of new shares, if the new
shareholder fails to give an express written declaration to the effect that he or she acquired the shares in his/her own name 
and for his/her own account. Furthermore, the Board of Directors refuses a registration if the purchaser, either alone or in 
conjunction with related persons, already holds 5% or more of the registered share capital (either directly or indirectly) at his
disposal, or would exceed this threshold with the new acquisition (Art. 9 para. 3 of the Statutes). The Board of Directors may
approve exceptions to this rule in special cases. No such exceptions were requested in the period under review. 
Insofar as an individual or a legal entity was already entered in the share register before the reporting date of 31 May 1997 with
5% or more of the registered share capital, the Board of Directors must approve even though the percentage limits have 
been exceeded. The same exception applies for related persons (spouse, descendant, brother, sister), transfers due to inheritance
or matrimonial property rights as well as certain transfers between legal entities or individuals subject to the exception 
(Art. 9 para. 6 and 7 of the Statutes).
Where a share purchaser presents an application for recognition as a shareholder of the company, he shall be regarded as a
shareholder without voting rights until the company has recognized him as a shareholder with voting rights. If the company fails
to refuse the purchaser’s application for recognition within 20 days, he shall be acknowledged as a shareholder with voting
rights. A shareholder who has no voting right may exercise neither the voting right nor the other associated rights.

On 15 October 2003, The Swatch Group Finance (Luxembourg) SA, Luxemburg, launched a bond issue of CHF 411.6 million
guaranteed, unsubordinated bonds due 2010, convertible into registered shares with a par value of CHF 0.45, and 
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by The Swatch Group Ltd. The Swatch Group issued the bonds to take advantage of
the attractive financing opportunity available in the convertible market in order to dispose of its treasury shares. The cash
generated will be used outside Switzerland for general business activities of the Group. The bonds are structured as seven-year
traditional full-coupon convertible bonds and are sold to investors with a coupon/yield to maturity of 2.625% (annual) and a
conversion price of CHF 49.–. The issuer issues and redeems the bonds at 100%. Each bond of par value of CHF 5 000.– is, in
accordance with its terms, convertible free of charge into shares. The bond issue was a public bond offering in Switzerland.

2.7.1 Payment date/maturity date of the convertible bond
Payment date: 15 October 2003
Maturity date: 15 October 2010
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2.7.2 Conversion right/conversion period/conversion price
Each bond in the principal amount of the CHF 5 000.– will be convertible, on any business day during the conversion period, into
shares at the conversion ratio. The conversion ratio will be determined by dividing CHF 5 000.–, the principal amount of one bond,
by the conversion price (CHF 49.–) prevailing on the conversion date. Fractions of shares will not be issued nor delivered on
conversion. Instead cash payments in Swiss francs will be made.

2.7.3 Repayment at the maturity date
Unless the bond has been previously converted, redeemed, or purchased and cancelled, the issuer undertakes to repay the bond
at the maturity date (15 October 2010) without further notice, at the principal amount.

2.7.4 Volume of the convertible bond in terms of nominal value and voting rights
The volume of the underlying shares of the convertible bond is 8 400 000 registered shares of The Swatch Group Ltd. The
transaction is fully covered by the amount of these underlying shares. These shares represent 5.0% of all voting rights of the
company and 2.8% of the total nominal value of The Swatch Group Ltd.
In addition, the Group refers to the prospectus on the convertible bond dated 8 October 2003.

In 1986, a block of shares was reserved in favor of a management stock option plan in connection with the takeover of control of
the Swatch Group by the Hayek Pool. On 31 December 2005, the content of this portfolio amounted to 3 259 613 registered shares;
this corresponds to 1.09% of the total share capital (previous year 3 499 632 registered shares, 1.15% of the total share capital).
In the year under review 240 019 registered shares (or 0.08% of the total share capital) were consequently sold at an exceptional
price of CHF 4.– per registered share in accordance with the following details:

Year of issue Number of registered shares Number of beneficiaries Year of subscription/payup
2003 76 760 183 2005
2004 83 156 207 2005
2005 80 103 196 2005
Total 240 019

In addition, the Group gave participating managers the following options to subscribe in future to further registered shares at the
following preferential prices:

Year of issue Number of registered shares Number of beneficiaries Year of subscription/payup
2004 82 724 196 2006
2005 79 906 193 2006
2005 78 751 192 2007
Total 241 381

Neither the members nor the Chairman and Delegate of the Board of Directors have ever received either options or shares under 
this plan.
The allocation results from personnel reviews and proposals for employees who stood out through special achievements in the
past year and have performed with above-average commitment. The allocation is then approved by the Compensation Committee.
It allows a first purchase of a third of the promised number of registered shares in the current year, which can be paid up and
claimed immediately, and another third in one and two years respectively.

2.8 Options
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3. Board of Directors

The Board of Directors on the 31 December 2005 is composed as follows:

Dr h. c. Nicolas G. Hayek, Swiss citizen, Chairman and Delegate of the Board of Directors of the Swatch Group since 1986. 
Mr N. G. Hayek has been strategic consultant since 1980, defined the guidelines for the merger of ASUAG and SSIH, and
developed the future strategy of the Group. The Universities of Neuchâtel and Bologna have conferred honorary doctorates on
him. Mr N. G. Hayek is also Chairman of the Board of the Hayek Group, of which he is the founder and which also occasionally
provides services for the Swatch Group. Mr N. G. Hayek sits on the Advisory Board of EPFL (Ecole Polytechnique Fédérale de
Lausanne) and is a member of the temporary advisory «High Level Group» of the European Union. Mr N. G. Hayek was awarded
the distinction «Grosses Ehrenzeichen mit Stern» from the government of Austria, he was appointed «Officier de la Légion
d’honneur» by the government of France and was nominated honorary citizen of Biel-Bienne. Mr N. G. Hayek exercises no
additional activities in other executive or supervisory bodies outside the Group and holds neither official function nor political
office. He is the sole member of the Board of Directors who also exercises executive functions.

Dr Peter Gross, Swiss citizen, Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Swatch Group. Mr Gross has been a member of
the Board of Directors since 1977 (previously ASUAG). Mr Gross, a lawyer by profession, holding a PhD in Law, used to be General
Director of the Union Bank of Switzerland, Zurich, then chaired Danzas Holding AG, Basle, as well as the Solothurn Bank SoBa.
He performs no operative functions and entertains no commercial relations with the Swatch Group. Otherwise, Mr Gross neither
exercises permanent executive or advisory functions nor holds official or political office.

Esther Grether, Swiss citizen, has been on the Board of Directors of the Swatch Group since 1986. Mrs Grether is Chairperson
of the Board of the Doetsch Grether Group, Basle, including Beiersdorf AG, Münchenstein. She has headed this group for over 27
years. As the second-largest shareholder after Mr N. G. Hayek, she neither performs any operative functions nor entertains any
commercial relations with the Swatch Group. Otherwise, Mrs Grether neither exercises permanent executive or advisory functions
nor holds official function or political office.

Nayla Hayek, Swiss citizen, has been on the Board of Directors of the Swatch Group since 1998. As Chairperson of the European
Conference of Arab Horse Organizations show commission (ECAHO), member of the World Arabian Horse Organization (WAHO),
and as international Arabian horse judge, Mrs Hayek’s top-level contacts contribute to many of the business and promotional
activities of the Swatch Group and she supports the brands, as well as the local organization, within the scope of an advisory
mandate. As Board member of the Hayek Group, she is responsible for Hayek Immobilien AG. She was a member of the Board of
SUVA until the end of 2005. She holds no other official function or political office.

Dr Peter Baumberger, Swiss citizen, having graduated in Law from Basle University, has been on the Board of Directors of 
the Swatch Group since 1986. Mr Baumberger gathered international experience in the license department of Westinghouse
International in New York from 1950 to 1955 and was responsible for South America with the Olin Mathieson Corporation of New
York from 1955 to 1959. From 1960 to 1976, he was Chairman and Managing Director of RCA Overseas with RCA in New York and
Geneva. From 1976 to 1991, he served as Managing Director and Board Member of the Carba Group in Bern. He also sits on the
Boards of Lindt & Sprüngli AG and the ABN-AMRO Bank Switzerland. Mr Baumberger exercises no permanent executive or
advisory functions and holds no official functions or political office.

Prof. Dr h. c. Claude Nicollier, Swiss citizen, graduated in Physics and Astrophysics from the Universities of Geneva and
Lausanne. Mr Nicollier has been a member of the Board of Directors since 2005. Mr Nicollier is still an active astronaut at the
European Space Agency ESA and works in the European Astronaut Centre in Cologne, Germany. As astronaut he was particularly
active in the missions Atlantis 1992, Endeavour 1993, Columbia 1996 and Discovery 1999. The aim of the Endeavour and Discovery
missions was the execution of reparation works on the Hubble Space Telescope which were a complete success. The University
and the École Polytechnique Fédérale de Lausanne, where Mr Nicollier teaches as a titular professor for autonomous lab systems,
have conferred honorary doctorates on him. Mr Nicollier does not exercise any operative functions at Swatch Group, does not
have any business relationship with Swatch Group and holds no political office.

Johann Niklaus Schneider-Ammann, Swiss citizen, a qualified ETH engineer, Insead MBA, has been on the Board of Directors
of the Swatch Group since 1998. He is Chairman and Delegate of the Board of the Ammann Group Holding AG. He performs no
operative leadership functions in the Swatch Group and neither he personally nor the company he represents entertain any
commercial relations with the Swatch Group. Mr Schneider-Ammann is member of the boards of some SMEs, Chairman of the
Mikron Holding AG, Chairman of Swissmem (Swiss Machinery, Electrical and Metal Industry), Zurich, Vice-Chairman of Economie-
suisse as well as member of the Swiss National Council.

Ernst Tanner, Swiss citizen, has been on the Board of Directors of the Swatch Group since 1995. He is Chairman and Delegate
of the Board of the Lindt & Sprüngli Group. Before his activity with Lindt & Sprüngli, he was for over 25 years in leading
management positions with the Johnson & Johnson Group in Europe and the USA, ending up as Company Group Chairman
Europe. He is a member of the Board of Credit Suisse Group. Otherwise, he exercises no other executive or advisory functions and
holds no official functions or political office.

At the Ordinary General Meeting held on 18 May 2005 Mr Claude Nicollier was elected a new member of the Board of Directors
of The Swatch Group Ltd. Therewith the number of members of the Board of Directors was increased to eight.

3.1 Members of the
Board of Directors
(incl. 3.2 and 3.3)
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The members of the Board of Directors are elected at the Ordinary General Meeting of the shareholders for a term of three years.
The period between two ordinary General Meetings is regarded as one year. The members of the Board shall be eligible for 
re-election at any time. There is no limit on the term of office. According to Article 18 of the Swatch Group Statutes the votes and
elections take place openly, save where the Chairman orders a written election or vote. One or more shareholders, who together
dispose of not less than 10% of the represented votes, may require written votes or elections.

First-time election and remaining term of office of the members of the Board of Directors

First-time election Term of office
Dr h.c. Nicolas G. Hayek 1986 Up to 2007
Dr Peter Gross 1977 Up to 2007
Esther Grether 1986 Up to 2007
Nayla Hayek 1998 Up to 2007
Dr Peter Baumberger 1986 Up to 2007
Prof. Dr h.c. Claude Nicollier 2005 Up to 2007
Johann Niklaus Schneider-Ammann 1998 Up to 2007
Ernst Tanner 1995 Up to 2007

Mrs Esther Grether has been designated representative of the bearer shareholders and Mr N. G. Hayek as representative of the
registered shareholders.

The Board of Directors is self-constituting. It has appointed a Chairman (Mr N. G. Hayek) and a Vice-Chairman (Dr P. Gross) from
its midst. Mr Roland Bloch, who is not a member of the Board of Directors, serves as Secretary to the Board of Directors. The term
of office of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman and the Secretary is, in each case, three years. They are all re-eligible for a further
term of office. If an officer is substituted, the successor completes the remainder of the term of the predecessor.
The Board of Directors has an Audit Committee and a Compensation Committee at its disposal. These committees, which sit
separately (normally immediately following an ordinary meeting), because of the relatively small number of company directors,
comprise all the members of the Board of Directors; the committees are chaired by Mr N. G. Hayek.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for the supervision of the financial reporting and for the evaluation of the internal and
external audit. The Audit Committee has particularly fulfilled the following functions:
– Review of the Audit reports,
– Reinforcement of points which the auditing firm raised,
– Determination of the audit focal points,
– Dealing with special questions of the financial statements.

The Compensation Committee determines the principles of compensation of the members of the Board of Directors, members of
the Executive Group Management Board and members of the Extended Group Management Board and supervises the compliance
with these principles (see point 5.1 hereafter). In addition, the salaries and bonuses of the managerial staff (Executive Group
Management Board/Extended Group Management Board) including stock options were approved.

The Board of Directors normally meets 5 to 6 times a year. The meetings last approximately 3 to 4 hours. Furthermore, 
two meetings each for the Compensation and Audit Committees are planned per year. The members of the Executive Group
Management Board regularly attend the ordinary meetings of the Board of Directors (second part). Beside the President (CEO) 
of the Executive Group Management Board, the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the Chief Legal Officer (CLO) and, if necessary,
any other members of the Executive Group Management Board, attend the meetings of the Audit and the Compensation Committees.

The Board of Directors is the highest executive body responsible for the overall administration of the Group. It adopts strategic
decisions and defines the means necessary for attaining the long-term goals. It determines, inter alia, the participation and
appointment of the members of the Executive Group Management Board, the Extended Group Management Board and the heads
of the main Group companies. Moreover, the Board of Directors approves the annual budget of the Group and its affiliated
companies and decides on investments over CHF 3 million. The Board of Directors prepares the General Meeting and drafts the
annual report as well as the half-year report.
The Board of Directors has delegated current operative business to the Executive Group Management Board, the Extended Group
Management Board and to the Holding Company Management.
The Executive Group Management Board is responsible for implementing Group strategies. It sets strategies and objectives for
the Group companies and supervises their management.
The Extended Group Management Board supports and advises the Executive Group Management Board in its operative tasks. It
makes suggestions for the development of the Group strategy.
The individual members of the Executive and Extended Group Management Boards manage their allocated areas within the
framework of the Group policy and in accordance with guidelines set by the Executive Group Management Board.
The Holding Company Management is responsible for the current operative business of the Holding Company.

3.5 Internal organizatio-
nal structure of the
Board of Directors

3.6 Definition of areas of
responsibility
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Each member of the Board of Directors can request to receive information on all issues concerning the Company and on 
important issues concerning the Group companies.
The members of the Executive Group Management Board report at the Board of Directors meetings on current business and
important business issues. In particular, the members of the Board of Directors regularly receive detailed information regarding
turnover and results trends for the Group and Group Divisions. Furthermore, important business issues, new products and the
Group’s financial status are reported in detail. Moreover, extraordinary occurrences are immediately brought to the attention of
the Board.
Outside meetings, each member of the Board of Directors may seek information on the general progress of business from
authorized management (after informing the Chairman). With due authorization of the Chairman, they may also demand direct
information on individual business transactions. Should the Chairman reject an application for information, a hearing or an
inspection (which has never occurred so far), the entire Board of Directors shall decide at the request of the applicant.
To ensure the implementation and compliance of the statutory provisions and the Group’s directives (including the rules of the
statutes), a Compliance Officer has been appointed in the beginning 2005.

4. Group Management 
(Executive Group Management Board/Extended Group Management Board)
At 31 December 2005

Nick Hayek, Jr, Swiss citizen, pursued two years’ study at the University of St. Gallen (HSG), then attended the Film Academy
CLCF in Paris. President of the Executive Group Management Board since 2003, Mr Hayek has worked with the Swatch Group
since 1994, firstly as Swatch Ltd Marketing Manager, then as Swatch Ltd President and finally as Delegate of the Board of
Directors of Swatch Ltd. In the mid-eighties, he founded his own production company, Sesame Films in Paris, and worked in
Switzerland and abroad. His involvement in a number of film productions (e. g. a series of documentaries for Swiss Television),
then the production of a number of short films (e. g. 1st prize at the Thessalonica Film Festival, an official contribution to the
Cannes Film Festival, etc.) and his activity as producer and manager of two feature films, «Das Land von Wilhelm Tell» and «Family
Express» with Peter Fonda, a film that earned him the prize for the best Swiss comedy at the Charlie Chaplin Comedy Film Festival
in Vevey), resulted in his being called upon to advise on various Swatch projects in the early ‘90s and to assume responsibility for
several Swatch exhibitions (such as that of Lingotto in Turin).

Arlette-Elsa Emch, Swiss citizen, holds a degree in Ethnology and History as well as a certificate in Journalism. She has been
a member of the Extended Group Management Board since 1998 and of the Executive Group Management Board since December
1999. She joined the Swatch Group in December 1992 as Communications Manager to which position she brought her broad
experience as a journalist to bear. She was appointed President of ck watch in 1997 and she has since then controlled this brand
which is a joint venture between the Swatch Group and the American designer Calvin Klein. Her responsibilities were expanded,
firstly in 2000, with the management of a company called Dress Your Body which designs, develops and produces the lines of
jewellery for the different Swatch Group brands, then, in 2002, with the management of the Léon Hatot brand; in 2002 she was
designated member of the Board of Directors of Breguet, Jaquet Droz and Glashütte Original. She is responsible for Swatch Group
Japan and Swatch Group South Korea.

Florence Ollivier-Lamarque, French citizen, is a lawyer and has been a member of the Extended Group Management Board
since 1992 and of the Executive Group Management Board since 2005. She is President of Swatch Group France, Swatch Group
France Les Boutiques, Swatch Group Italy and responsible for Swatch Group Spain and the watch brand Flik Flak. She has been
with the Group since 1988 when it took over the Société Inthor, Paris, which distributed some of the Group’s watches in France.
At that time, she was working as Swatch and Tissot Brand Manager. In 1990, she took over the management of Swatch Group
France and in 2002 the management of Swatch Group France Les Boutiques. She is Administrator of the Colbert Committee.

Dr Mougahed Darwish, Swiss citizen, holds a doctorate in Physics from the ETHL. He has been a member of the 
Extended Group Management Board since 1994 and of the Executive Group Management Board since 2005, responsible for EM
Microelectronic, Micro Crystal, Renata, Microcomponents, Sokymat Automotive, Oscilloquartz, Omega Electronics and Lasag. Mr
Darwish has been with the Group since 1979, starting as Project Manager for the Xicor-Ébauches joint venture. Previously, he had
been active in research and development for the Centre électronique horloger (CEH) (today Centre Suisse de l’électronique et de
microtechnique SA, CSEM). Since 1985 he runs EM Microelectronic as CEO. He represents the Group on the Executive Board of
the CSEM; he is a member of the Swiss Academy of Technical Science.

Edgar Geiser, Swiss citizen, a Swiss certified expert in Accounting and Controlling, has been a member of the Executive Group
Management Board since 1990, and is responsible for controlling, finance, quality assurance and investor relations. He is also
responsible for the Swatch Group UK. He has worked for the Swatch Group since 1978, firstly as assistant to the CFO of the
General Watch Co. Ltd., then in various finance functions and as Group Controller. Before joining the Swatch Group, he worked
for UBS and General Motors in the finance area. He represents the Group in the regional Wirtschaftsbeirat Mittelland of the Swiss
National Bank.

3.7 Information and
control instruments

4.1.1 Members of the
Executive Group
Management Board
(incl. 4.2)

CO
R

PO
R

AT
E 

G
O

VE
R

N
A

N
CE

Swatch Group | Annual Report 2005



114

Marc Alexander Hayek, Swiss citizen, holds a bachelor degree in Economics and has undergone training in Marketing and
Economics. He became a member of the Extended Group Management Board in 2002 and of the Executive Group Management
Board in 2005 with responsibility for Blancpain and Swatch Group Middle East. He joined Blancpain as Marketing Manager in
2001. Mr Hayek had previously worked as an independent entrepreneur (Restaurant Colors, Zurich) and had been employed by
Swatch in the PR area and by Certina in marketing.

Dr Hanspeter Rentsch, Swiss citizen, holds a doctorate in Law and a degree in Economics (from HSG St. Gallen and Berne
University). As member of the Executive Group Management Board since 1995, he is responsible for legal affairs, licenses,
strategic projects, non commercial real estate and patent matters (ICB), as well as for Swatch Group Greece and Swatch Group
Poland. He joined the legal department of ASUAG in 1978. From 1980, he headed the legal and trademark department of the
General Watch Co. Ltd and, after the merger, became General Counsel to the new group. He subsequently assumed additional
functions in the areas of licenses, real estate and as Human Resources Responsible. Before joining the Swatch Group, he had
been active as scientific assistant (Prof Dr W. R. Schluep, Economic, Commercial and Competition Law chair) at Zurich University.
He represents the Swatch Group on the Executive Committee of Economiesuisse, on the Executive Board of the Swiss Employers
Association, on the Executive Board of the Swiss section of the International Chamber of Commerce (ICC), and on the Executive
Board of the Fédération de l’industrie horlogère suisse FH.

Roland Streule, Swiss citizen, attended business school in Basle. He has been a member of the Executive Group Management
Board since 1991 and is responsible for Rado. He joined Rado as Regional Sales Manager in 1978. He has been President of Rado
since 1988. From 1994 to 1997, he was responsible for the American and Canadian subsidiary of the Group, with permanent
residence in the USA. Before joining the Swatch Group, he was Business Manager of the Ermano Watch Co. Ltd. He represents
the Swatch Group on the Executive Board of the Fédération de l’industrie horlogère suisse FH; he is a member of the Board of
the Grenchen Trade and Industrial Union and the Swiss-German Watchmakers Association.

Matthias Breschan, Austrian citizen, graduated from the Vienna School of Economics, has been a member of the Extended
Group Management Board since 2005 and is responsible for Hamilton, Endura and Swatch Group Mexico. Mr Breschan joined
Swatch Group as manager of Hamilton. Previously he worked for three years at Swatch Telecom (as Area Sales Manager and later
as head of department). In the meantime he was Managing Director of Aldi in France (Aldi Marché Est). Before joining Swatch
Group Mr Breschan worked for Texas Instruments and Alcatel Mobile Phones in the product marketing, international marketing
and sales areas.

Edmond Capt, Swiss citizen, is a qualified HTL engineer and has been a member of the Extended Group Management Board
since 2000, responsible for Frédéric Piguet, Valdar and Universo. He started working for the Group in 1970 as a watch engineer
(Valjoux). With the takeover of Frédéric Piguet in 1992, where he was at that time Technical Manager, he joined the Group and
later became General Manager of Frédéric Piguet and Nouvelle Lémania. On 1 January 2004, Nouvelle Lémania was integrated
into Breguet. Mr Capt is a member of the Board of Directors of Breguet.

Manuel Emch, Swiss citizen, holds a degree in economics HEC, University of Lausanne, and has been a member of the Extended
Group Management Board since 2005. He is responsible for Jaquet Droz and the East European countries. Mr Emch joined Rado
in 2001 as project manager in the marketing area. In September 2001 he took over the management of Montres Jaquet Droz.
Before joining Swatch Group Mr Emch worked as consultant for and in the Brand Management of Philip Morris in Switzerland.

Dr Rudolf Dinger, Swiss citizen, who holds a doctorate in Physics, has been a member of the Extended Group Management 
Board since 1999 and is responsible for Asulab. He started with the Group in 1976 as Project Manager and Development 
Engineer for quartz resonators (Ébauches SA). Before becoming Head of Asulab, he had been in charge of the engineering
department of ETA. Before joining the Swatch Group, Dr Dinger had worked for the Canadian company AECL in the area of
radiation-detector development for nuclear reactors. He is member of the Swiss Academy of Technical Science.

Yann Gamard, French citizen, holds an MBA from Lausanne and has been a member of the Extended Group Management Board
since 1998, responsible for Swatch Group Belgium (as Country Manager a.i.) and Swatch Group Netherlands. He joined the Group
as Head of Finance of Swatch Ltd in 1995. Prior to that, he held various finance posts with Procter & Gamble, Swatch and Cartier.
Before being assigned to the USA as Country Manager, he had worked for Swatch as person in charge of the Telecom division.

Walter von Känel, Swiss citizen, with a commercial training, has been member of the Extended Group Management Board since
1991, with responsibility for Longines. He entered Longines in 1969 and became its President in 1988. Before joining Swatch
Group Mr von Känel worked for a watch-dial factory and with the Federal Customs Administration. He is a member of the Board
of BKW Berne Electricity Works, Berne, and represents the Group on the APHM Association patronale de l’horlogerie et de la
microtechnique (as Chairman) and in the Bernese Jura Chamber of Industry and Commerce (as Board member). He is a town
councilor of St. Imier and member of the Bernese delegation to the Inter-Jurassic Assembly.

Thomas Meier, German citizen, is a graduated engineer FH from the University of Applied Sciences Karlsruhe (Micromechanics
Microelectronics), with additional training in Business Administration at the University of Munich and an apprenticeship as
watchmaker. He has been a member of the Extended Group Management Board since 2005 and is responsible for ETA and Swatch
Group Thailand. Mr Meier began his activities for Swatch Group in 1994 as project manager at Mido. Later he became project
manager for Swatch Access. After a break he returned to Swatch Group in 2002 as project manager and production manager a.i.
of Breguet. Since 2004 he has been responsible for ETA. Before joining Swatch Group, Mr Meier worked as development engineer
for Junghans in Germany.

4.1.2 Members of the
Extended Group
Management Board
(incl. 4.2)
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Dr Frank Müller, German citizen, Dr oec HSG (University of St. Gallen), has been a member of the Extended Group Management
Board since 2005 and is responsible for Glashütte Original, Swatch Group Singapore and Swatch Group Malaysia. Mr Müller has
joined the Glashütter Uhrenbetrieb GmbH in 2002 as Vice President; in 2003 he became Managing Director of Glashütte Original.
Before joining Swatch Group Mr Müller worked as Managing Director of Lange Uhren GmbH.

Kevin Rollenhagen, American citizen, graduated in Economics (BA) at the Michigan State University, has been a member of the
Extended Group Management Board since 2005 and is responsible for Swatch Group China and Swatch Group Taiwan and
Country Manager of Swatch Group Hong Kong (he represented these countries from 2000 onwards in the Extended Group
Management). Mr Rollenhagen has joined Swatch Group in 1989. He started his career as trainee at Tissot and became Regional
Sales Manager for Tissot and Omega. Since 1994 he has been active in Hong Kong and China (first as Brand Manager Omega).
Before joining Swatch Group Mr Rollenhagen worked with Caterpillar in sales. Mr Rollenhagen represents Swatch Group in the
Hong Kong Watch Importers Association where he acts as Treasurer.

Rudolf Semrad, Austrian citizen, with a commercial training, has been member of the Extended Group Management Board since
2005 is responsible for Austria and Country Manager of Swatch Group Austria (he represented this country from 2000 onwards
in the Extended Group Management Board). Mr Semrad joined Swatch Group as Brand Manager Swatch in Austria and became
Country Manager of Swatch Group Austria in 1995. Previously he worked as sales director at Johnson Wax and Colgate 
Palmolive. Before joining Swatch Group Mr Semrad was Managing Director of a watch distribution company in Austria.

Jerry Simonis, Swiss citizen, holds an MBA from the Netherlands School for International Business, Nyenrode, and has been a
member of the Extended Group Management Board since 1995, where he is responsible for Balmain. He joined Longines as Sales
Manager in 1976. Before joining the Swatch Group, he had been Sales Manager with Girard-Perregaux International.

Dr Peter Steiger, Swiss citizen, who has a doctorate in Public Economics, has been a member of the Extended Group
Management Board since 2002, with responsibility for Swatch Group Distribution, Logistics and Customer Service, as well as
Swatch Group Nordic (Sweden, Norway, Denmark, Finland). He started his career with the Group in 1989 as Head of Finance and
Administration with PC Quartz. Later, he held leading financial posts with various Group companies (among others Swatch and
Longines). Before joining the Swatch Group, he had worked with international groups in Switzerland and abroad (Shell, Philips).

François Thiébaud, French citizen, studied at the ICG Institut Contrôle de Gestion, Paris and Law at the University of Besançon,
and he has been a member of the Extended Group Management Board since 1998, with responsibility for Tissot, Mido, Certina
as well as Swatch Group Brazil, India, Germany and the Swiss market. He joined the Swatch Group in 1996 as Manager of Tissot.
Previously, he had been active as Managing Director of Juvenia and Manager of Breitling. He represents the Group in the AMS
Association des fournisseurs d’horlogerie, marché suisse (Vice-Chairman), he is member of the Baselworld Consulting Committee
and President of the Baselworld Swiss Exhibitors Committee.

Stephen Urquhart, Swiss and British citizen, who studied Industrial Management at the University of Neuchâtel, has been a
member of the Extended Group Management Board since 2000 and is President of Omega. Mr Urquhart began his career at
Omega in 1968. From 1974 to 1997 he pursued his career with Audemars Piguet, where he became Joint President and Managing
Director from 1989 onwards. Mr Urquhart returned to the Swatch Group in 1997 as President of Blancpain. 

The following members of the Extended Group Management Board have been appointed to the Executive Group Management
Board as of 1 January 2005:
Florence Ollivier-Lamarque
Mougahed Darwish
Marc Alexander Hayek

The following new persons have been appointed to the Extended Group Management Board as of 1 January 2005:
Matthias Breschan
Manuel Emch
Thomas Meier
Dr Frank Müller
Kevin Rollenhagen
Rudolf Semrad

Moreover, Mr Thiébaud was appointed to the Executive Group Management Board as of 1 January 2006.

The contracts of employment with the members of the Executive and the Extended Group Management Board are entered for an
indefinite period of time and can be terminated by both parties with a six months notice. In case of a cancellation no termination
payment will be due. No entry bonus is paid by Swatch Group when entering new contracts (Golden Hellos).

Within the framework of a global contract, Hayek Engineering AG, Zurich, placed its management personnel at the disposition of
the operative management of several Group companies: Lascor, Groupement Habillage and Micromechanics (Malaysia). 

4.3 Management
contracts
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5. Compensation, shareholdings and loans

Compensation for the members of the Board of Directors and the Executive Group Management Board is determined by the
Compensation Committee (see point 3.5). The result-dependent component of the total compensation plays an important role.
The performance-related payment is bound to quantitative and qualitative objectives. The quantitative objectives comprise
elements of the sphere of influence of the function bearers and of the whole Group. The achievement of objectives is evaluated
once a year.

The total amount of remuneration of the executive members of the Board of Directors as well as the Executive Group 
Management Board and the Extended Group Management Board in the past year amounted to CHF 18.6 million (excluding
management stock option plan), of which CHF 7.6 million in salaries and CHF 11 million in performance and result-dependent
bonuses for the preceding year. Mr Claude Nicollier has been elected as a new member of the Board of Directors. There were no
personnel changes in the reporting year in the Executive Group Management Board and the Extended Group Management Board.
The members of management are covered by the Swatch Group Pension Fund under the same insurance regulations that apply
to all employees. The insured salary for the year under review is subject to an upper limit of CHF 295 000.–.
Since 1 January 2003 the members of the Executive and Extended Group Management with employment contracts in Switzerland
are additionally insured by the Management Fund of the Swatch Group. The Management Fund supplements the benefits of the
Swatch Group Pension Fund. It insures salaries over CHF 300 000.– up to a maximum of CHF 784 000.–. The contributions to the
Management Fund amount to 10%, whereof three quarters (7.5%) are paid by the employer and one quarter (2.5%) is paid by the
employee. The administration of the Management Fund has been taken over by the Management of the Pension Fund.
In 2005, the non-executive members of the Board of Directors were paid a total of CHF 0.8 million (excluding Mr N. G. Hayek as
Chairman and Delegate of the Board of Directors).

No termination payments have been made to members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Group Management Board or to
the Extended Group Management Board in the reporting year.

No compensation was paid to former members of governing bodies.

Members of the Executive Group Management Board as well as the Extended Group Management Board were, under the
management stock option plan mentioned under Point 2.8, allocated 142 350 options, altogether, to take up registered shares at
an issue price of CHF 4.– each. One third of these was immediately available to be subscribed, paid and claimed. In one and two
years, respectively, the other thirds will be available.
Neither the members nor the Chairman and Delegate of the Board of Directors received any options or shares.
The aims of the management stock option plan of the Swatch Group are to honour performances of the main Management
members, strengthen the motivation and the sense of responsibility in the Group, further the loyalty to the firm as well as the
stability of the managing employees and promote a favorable wealth increase. The allocation of shares results from an individual
performance report. The voting rights of the shares in possession of the plan will not be exercised.

All the executive members of the Board of Directors and the members of the Group Management as well as related parties
altogether directly or indirectly hold 54 871 740 registered shares and 80 090 bearer shares or 32.7% of the entire votes as of 31
December 2005 (32.2% in the previous year).
As of 31 December 2005, all non-executive members of the Board of Directors as well as related parties hold 12 932 712 regis-
tered shares and 223 000 bearer shares or 7.8% (previous year 9.1%) of the votes.

In 2005 the members of the Executive Group Management Board and the Extended Group Management Board altogether received
135 867 registered shares at the preferential price of CHF 4.– per registered share in accordance with the details indicated below:

Year of issue Number of registered shares Number of beneficiaries Year of subscription/payup
2003 43 134 19 2005
2004 45 291 21 2005
2005 47 442 22 2005
Total 135 867 

The following rights to subscribe in future to additional registered shares at preferential prices have been given to this group of
beneficiaries:

Year of issue Number of registered shares Number of beneficiaries Year of subscription/payup
2004 46 218 21 2006
2005 47 442 22 2006
2005 47 466 22 2007
Total 141 126

The statements made about the members and Chairman and Delegate of the Board of Directors under points 2.8 and 5.4 also
apply to this point.

5.1 Content and method
of determining the
compensation and
the shareholding
programmes

5.2 Compensation for
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governing bodies
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See Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group, Note 30, page 158, «Related party transactions».

Group employees have the possibility of taking out a mortgage loan with the Swatch Group Pension Fund for the construction or
acquisition of primary residences in Switzerland.
The conditions of this mortgage loan are set by the Swatch Group Pension Fund Foundation Board. The conditions are equally
applied to all employees of the Swatch Group. At the end of 2005, two such loans had been advanced to members of the
Executive Group Management Board in a total amount of CHF 1.22 million.

The aggregate value of the compensation paid to the member of the Board of Directors with the highest income in the year under
review amounted to CHF 1.5 million. Of this, the result-dependent component amounted to CHF 0.77 million. This member of the
Board of Directors neither received shares nor options.

6. Shareholders’ participation

For the exercise of voting rights, no shareholder may combine, either directly or indirectly, more than 5% of the total shareholders
equity in respect of his own shares and those represented by him. The above limitation does not apply to the shares which are
excluded from the registration prohibition (point 2.6 above). Nor does this restriction apply to the exercise of voting rights in
accordance with Art. 689c CO relating to representation by a member of a company body and by independent voting-right
representatives or to bank representatives with reference to the shares deposited with them.
Furthermore, pursuant to Art. 16(4) of the Swatch Group Statutes, the Board of Directors is entitled to make exceptions to the
limitations in special cases. No exceptions were requested or granted during the business year. A change of the representation
restrictions is only possible through a change of the provisions of the Statutes. For such change a decision of the General Meeting
with a relative majority is required.
Shareholders may arrange to be represented at the General Meeting only by other shareholders who duly hold a written power
of attorney. Registered shareholders may only be represented by other registered shareholders.

In addition to the special quorum regulations provided in Art. 704 CO, the Statutes also apply the same quorum regulation 
(two-thirds of the votes represented and an absolute majority of the par values of shares) for dismissing members of the Board
of Directors.

The General Meeting is convened pursuant to Articles 13 and 14 of the Swatch Group Statutes. Shareholders who together own
at least 10% of the share capital can, at any time, request in writing the convening of an extraordinary general meeting. Such an
extraordinary general meeting shall be held within 40 days of the date of receipt of such a request.

Shareholders who represent shares with a par value of one million Swiss francs may submit a written request for a meeting to
be held to discuss a particular subject; the motions tabled shall likewise be indicated (see Article 13.2 of the Swatch Group
Statutes in conjunction with Art. 699 and 700 OR).

The share register is closed for entries 20 days before each General Meeting.

7. Changes of control and defence measures

Art. 10 of the Statutes provides that a shareholder who acquires shares either directly or indirectly or in agreement with third
parties and by so doing exceeds the limit of 49% of voting rights, including the shares that he already possesses, regardless of
whether those rights can or cannot be exercised, shall be required to make an offer to purchase all the listed shareholding papers
of the Company (Art. 32 BEHG).

There are no agreements with members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Group Management Board or other managerial
staff for the case of a change in the shareholder structure.

8. Auditors

The company today known by the name «PriceWaterhouseCoopers Ltd» has since 1992 performed the function of external auditor
following the entry into force of the partially revised Companies Act (1991) that requires and makes mandatory the auditing of
company accounts. Before that, the predecessor organizations already served as auditors for the Group and many of its
companies.
Thomas Brüderlin, Engagement Partner, has been responsible for the Group audit and for the audits of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements since the 2004 accounting year. 
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The following auditor’s fees have been charged to the 2005 annual accounts:

(million CHF) Audit Taxes Other Services Total
PricewaterhouseCoopers 3.5 0.3 0.3 4.1
Other Auditing Companies 0.8 1.5 1.0 3.3
Total 2005 4.3 1.8 1.3 7.4
Total 2004 3.7 1.5 1.2 6.4

The overall supervision and final verification of the external audit is exercised by the Audit Committee, and by the full Board of
Directors, respectively (see also the duties and functions as described under 3.5).

9. Information policy

The Swatch Group reports on the business of the Group at the following times:

– 2 February 2006 Turnover of 2005
– 23 March 2006 Balance sheet, profit-and-loss statement, key figures 2005
– 6 April 2006 Press conference
– 19 May 2006 General Meeting of Shareholders
– 24 August 2006 Half-year figures 2006

The information is always published in the Swiss and international press and also published and processed in the publications of
leading international banks.
This information can also be called up on the Swatch Group website on www.swatchgroup.com, and especially on the «Investor
Relations» link.
The Swatch Group business report and half-year report can be obtained free of charge in the original version from the Group
headquarters. Inquiries can be made by e-mail at investor.relations@swatchgroup.com or by fax on +41 32 343 69 16 or by
telephone on +41 32 343 67 37.

8.2 Auditing fees and
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(incl. 8.3)
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1. Operating results

KEY FINANCIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN 2005

• Gross sales Record gross sales with increase of 8.3% to CHF 4.5 billion (net sales: +7.8%)

• Segments Brilliant performance of the Group’s main segment Watches and Jewelry

• Operating profit Record operating profit of CHF 735 million with strong operating margin of 17.1%

• Net income Climbs by 21.3% to CHF 621 million, best result in Swatch Group’s history

• Earnings per share Significant rise of 23% compared to 2004

• Cash flow Strong operating and free cash flow

• Dividend Dividend proposed to shareholders increased by 42.9% (bearer shares CHF 2.50, 

registered shares CHF 0.50)

• Share buyback New share buyback program of CHF 300 million in 2006

• Outlook Promising start in 2006, optimistic outlook for current year

Financial review

Group overview

(CHF million) 2005 2004 Change in %
in local currency Total

currency effect
Gross sales 4 497 4 152 +7.7% +0.6% +8.3%
Net sales 4 292 3 981 +7.8%
Operating profit 735 645 +14.0%
– in % of net sales 17.1% 16.2%
Net income 621 512 +21.3%
– in % of net sales 14.5% 12.9%
Equity 4 603 4 276 +7.6%
– as % of total assets 69.9% 71.1%
Average return on equity (ROE) 14.0% 12.3%

2005 was a record year for the Group in almost every respect, mainly in terms of sales, operating profit and net income. All Group
segments reported higher sales, and most of them improved their operating margins. The most substantial increase in sales and
operating profit occurred in the luxury watches segment, which continues to enjoy very strong demand. Group operating profit
achieved a record level of CHF 735 million, representing an operating profit margin of 17.1%.
In contrast to the last few years, the currency effect was slightly positive in 2005, due in particular to positive developments in
the second half of the year. Our very selective hedging strategy with regard to foreign currency risks proved to be the right
decision in 2005.
Total unit sales of watches, movements and stepping motors decreased from 127.2 million in 2004 to 107.5 million in the current
year. This development can be attributed to two main factors: on the one hand, to the planned and already announced reduction
in the amount of movements in the lowest price category manufactured and sold in the Far East, and on the other hand, to the
considerable fall in sales of stepping motors due to the decline in the US automobile market.

Restatements
The adoption of the new IFRS and revised IAS standards with effect from 1 January 2005 did not have a major impact on the
Group’s financial statements. The Group’s operating profit for 2004 decreased by CHF 6 million to CHF 645 million while the net
income remained unchanged at CHF 512 million. The preceding and following tables show the 2004 figures after the restate-
ments. All related details are described on page 131 of this annual report.
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Cash flow from
operating activities

Operating profit
Net income

Segment performance

Watches and Jewelry

(CHF million) 2005 2004 Change in %
in local currency Total

currency effect
Gross sales
– Third parties 3 437 3 140
– Group 0 1
– Total 3 437 3 141 +8.6% 0.8% +9.4%
Net sales 3 272 3 007 +8.8%
Operating profit 626 552 +13.4%
– in % of net sales 19.1% 18.4%

The Group’s core business grew more than the other Group divisions, with a sales growth of 9.4%. The luxury segment, particu-
larly the Breguet, Blancpain and Jaquet Droz brands as well as the Omega brand, saw substantial double-digit growth, with the
Group winning significant market shares and strengthening its already solid market position. The Group also achieved strong
growth in the premium and mid-price segment, particularly with the Longines, Rado and Tissot brands. In the mid-price segment,
Calvin Klein made pleasing progress. In the low price segment, headed up by the Swatch brand, the Group succeeded in
achieving its targeted increase in sales thanks to measures realized to scale down its range of products. This was bolstered by
pleasing developments in the jewelry division and good progress with the retail activities.
The operating margin in this segment increased remarkably to 19.1%, despite higher marketing expenses for some Group brands.
Asia, especially China, proved to be the major driver for growth. An encouraging trend is also underway in the US, Japan and the
Middle East. Overall, the targeted sales growth for 2006 should lead to a further rise in profitability in the segment. All brands of
the Group still possess significant growth potential.

Production

(CHF million) 2005 2004 Change in %
in local currency Total

currency effect
Gross sales
– Third parties 537 509
– Group 767 736
– Total 1 304 1 245 +4.7% 0.0% +4.7%
Net sales 1 229 1 164 +5.6%
Operating profit 47 49 –4.1%
– in % of net sales 3.8% 4.2%

(CHF million)
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The Production segment achieved a solid growth in sales of 4.7%. This positive result was achieved despite the reduction in the
activities in the lowest price category (movements manufactured and sold in the Far East) due to the closure of production facil-
ities in Malaysia and China. While this had a negative impact on sales and operating profit in 2005, it will positively influence the
results in 2006.
The Production segment should be able to further increase sales growth in 2006, provided the demand for watches and jewelry
remains at the current high level. The number of units sold however will further decrease, given the reduced activities in the
production of low-price watch movements. However, this strategy should lead to improved profitability of the segment. This is
supported by the first trends in 2006 which show a high order intake and a continuous trend towards more complex and more
expensive mechanical watch movements.

Electronic Systems

(CHF million) 2005 2004 Change in %
in local currency Total

currency effect
Gross sales
– Third parties 517 494
– Group 31 49
– Total 548 543 +0.9% +0.1% +1.0%
Net sales 542 536 +1.1%
Operating profit 78 74 +5.4%
– in % of net sales 14.4% 13.8%

This division of the Group saw an increase in sales particularly in the second half of 2005. In an environment characterized by
continued falling prices and relentless price pressure, the divisions Quartz with Micro Crystal (as supplier to the mobile phone
market) and EM Microelectronic (with its Radio Frequency Identification technology RFID) divisions posted particularly pleasing
growth. Rising demand for mobile phones in the second half of the year was the primary factor for the sales increase.
The Electronic Systems segment posted an operating margin of 14.4% compared to 13.8% in 2004. This positive trend should
continue, considering the strong demand in all activities of the Group in general and the recovering markets for microelectronics
and mobile phones in particular.

General Services

The General Services division includes the service, finance, research and real estate companies of the Group. Income recognized
as sales in this segment relates mainly to research contracts as well as real estate management and consulting fees.
Revenue from timekeeping activities for the Olympic Games and other sporting events is recognized in “Other operating income”
and not in sales.

Financial result
The positive performance of stock markets in 2005 led to significant profits on the marketable securities position. Besides that,
the general development and active management of foreign currencies produced strong foreign exchange profits. These two main
factors enabled the Group to achieve a positive net financial result of CHF 49 million which compares to a net financial loss of
CHF 27 million in 2004.

Income tax
An analysis of the income tax charge is set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements. The income tax charge as a
percentage of profit before tax was 20.7% in the current year compared to 17.1% in the previous year. The effective tax rate
increased mainly as a result of a change in the profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in the respective countries as well as
changes in applicable statutory tax rates.

Proposed dividends
At the General Meeting on 19 May 2006 a dividend for the financial year 2005 of CHF 0.50 (2004: CHF 0.35) for registered shares
and CHF 2.50 (2004: CHF 1.75) for bearer shares will be proposed. This dividend has not been recognized as a liability in the
consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2005.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share have increased in the current year by 23% to CHF 2.15 for registered shares and CHF 10.74 for bearer
shares respectively. The increase in net income compares to a reduced number of shares which is due to the shares bought back
in 2005. As in previous years, dilution of earnings is not material. Detailed information can be found in Note 8.
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2. Financial condition

3. Analysis of value
added

4. Outlook

Liquidity and financial resources
The Group further strengthened its financial position in 2005. The consolidated cash flow evidences an important increase in cash
and cash equivalents of CHF 490 million (2004: CHF 84 million). The main reason was once again a strong cash flow from
operating activities, driven by continued growth in EBITDA. Investing activities were considerably lower than in 2004, mainly due
to the sale of financial investments and reduced investments in property, plant and equipment. The increased share buyback was
the main factor in financing activities. Free cash flow further improved from CHF 306 million in 2004 to CHF 499 million in the
current year.

Asset and capital structure
The balance sheet continues to remain extremely solid, with an equity ratio of 69.9% (compared to 71.1% in 2004). Current liabil-
ities are covered by current assets by a factor of 4.3 (4.7 in 2004).

The breakdown of total operating revenues, more commonly referred to as total Group performance in calculations of value added
(using standard methods), is as follows:

(CHF million) 2005 2004
Overall Group performance 4 637 100.0% 4 336 100.0%
Material and services 2 317 50.0% 2 195 50.6%
Depreciation 199 4.3% 218 5.0%
Net added value 2 121 45.7% 1 923 44.4%
% change 10.3 3.1

The breakdown of value added between the different beneficiaries is as follows:

(CHF million) 2005 2004
Employees 1 315 62.0% 1 283 66.7%
Public authorities 163 7.7% 106 5.5%
Lenders 21 1.0% 25 1.3%
Shareholders 102 4.8% 85 4.4%
Company 520 24.5% 424 22.1%
Total 2 121 100.0% 1 923 100.0%

The Board of Directors and Group Management are confident that all the divisions of the Group will post further growth in 2006.
The recovery in the global economy in conjunction with improved consumer confidence should help increasing sales around the
globe. All brands will present new products at the 2006 Watch and Jewelry Show in Basel. This event will reveal market trends
that will impact the near future of the Group.
The Group’s strong net liquidity offers plenty of scope for organic growth via the launch of new products and the development of
new markets. External growth opportunities – mainly in the jewelry sector – will also be examined as and when they arise.
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4 497 104.8 4 152 104.3

–205 –4.8 –171 –4.3

(5) 4 292 100.0 3 981 100.0

57 1.3 125 3.1

84 2.0 146 3.7

28 0.7 30 0.8

–1 007 –23.5 –921 –23.1

(6a) –1 315 –30.6 –1 283 –32.2

(6b) –1 205 –28.1 –1 215 –30.5

–199 –4.7 –203 –5.2

0 0.0 –15 –0.4

735 17.1 645 16.2

(6d) 71 1.7 –4 –0.1

(6d) –22 –0.5 –23 –0.6

784 18.3 618 15.5

(7) –163 –3.8 –106 –2.6

621 14.5 512 12.9

614 506

7 6

(8)

2.15 1.74

2.13 1.74

10.74 8.72

10.66 8.70

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 

2005 2004

Notes CHF million % CHF million %

Gross sales

Sales reductions

Net sales

Other operating income

Changes in inventories and work in progress

Capitalized expenditures

Material purchases

Personnel expense

Other operating expenses

Depreciation, amortization and impairment charges

Amortization of goodwill

Operating profit

Financial income

Interest expense

Profit before taxes

Income taxes

Net income

Attributable to equity holders of The Swatch Group Ltd

Attributable to minority interests

Earnings per share (EPS) – expressed in CHF per share:

Registered shares

Basic EPS

Diluted EPS

Bearer shares

Basic EPS

Diluted EPS
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(10) 1 153 17.5 1 161 19.3

(11) 23 0.3 27 0.4

(12) 263 4.0 256 4.3

(13) 5 0.1 4 0.1

(15) 51 0.8 43 0.7

(7) 136 2.1 120 2.0

1 631 24.8 1 611 26.8

(16) 1 724 26.2 1 615 26.9

(17) 707 10.7 646 10.7

(18) 345 5.2 335 5.6

(7) 3 0.0 3 0.0

(19) 307 4.7 426 7.1

(20) 1 871 28.4 1 375 22.9

4 957 75.2 4 400 73.2

6 588 100.0 6 011 100.0

31.12.2005 31.12.2004

Assets Notes CHF million % CHF million %

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment property

Intangible assets

Investments in associated companies

Financial long-term assets

Deferred income tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Other receivables and prepayments

Current income tax assets

Marketable securitites

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
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(21) 4 580 69.5 4 261 70.9

23 0.4 15 0.2

4 603 69.9 4 276 71.1

(22) 396 6.0 395 6.6

(7) 344 5.2 344 5.7

(23) 32 0.5 30 0.5

(24) 49 0.7 34 0.6

821 12.4 803 13.4

240 3.7 209 3.5

(25) 405 6.1 381 6.4

(22) 329 5.0 224 3.7

(7) 140 2.1 56 0.9

(24) 50 0.8 62 1.0

1 164 17.7 932 15.5

1 985 30.1 1 735 28.9

6 588 100.0 6 011 100.0

31.12.2005 31.12.2004

Equity and liabilities Notes CHF million % CHF million %

Equity

Capital and reserves attributable

to Swatch Group shareholders

Minority interests

Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings

Deferred income tax liabilities

Retirement benefit obligations

Provisions

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued expenses

Borrowings

Current income tax liabilities

Provisions

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
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(28) 877 774

–19 –20

25 14

–93 –85

790 683

–187 –292

15 12

–19 –15

1 3

–15 –8

1 2

142 –93

–62 –391

–101 –85

–1 0

(21) –247 –148

–1 –3

96 27

–254 –209

16 1

490 84

1 373 1 289

(20) 1 863 490 1 373 84

2005 2004

Notes CHF million CHF million

Operating activities

Cash generated from operations

Interest paid

Interest received

Tax paid

Cash flow from operating activities

Investing activities

Investments in tangible assets

Proceeds from sale of tangible assets

Investments in intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of intangible assets

Investments in financial assets

Proceeds from sale of financial assets

Sale/purchase of marketable securities

Cash flow from investing activities

Financing activities

Dividend paid to shareholders

Dividend paid to minority interests

Purchase/sale of treasury shares

Change in non-current borrowings

Change in current borrowings

Cash flow from financing activities

Net impact of foreign exchange rate differences on cash

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Change in cash and cash equivalents

– At beginning of year

– At end of year

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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137 213 –369 –97 4 122 4 006 4 006

10 10

84 –84

137 213 –369 –13 4 038 4 006 10 4 016

506 506 6 512

–23 –23 –1 –24

–23 506 483 5 488

–85 –85 –85

5 5 5

1 1 1

–149 –149 –149

137 213 –518 –36 4 465 4 261 15 4 276

614 614 7 621

47 47 2 49

47 614 661 9 670

–101 –101 –1 –102

6 6 6

1 1 1

–248 –248 –248

–2 149 –147

135 213 –617 11 4 838 4 580 23 4 603

Attributable to The Swatch Group Ltd shareholders Minority Total

Share Capital Treasury Other Retained Total interest equity

capital reserves shares reserves earnings

(CHF million) (Note 21) (Note 21) (Note 21)

Balance at 01.01.2004/Published

Reclassification of minority interests

Restatement fair value reserve

Balance at 01.01.2004/Restated

Net income for the year

Translation differences and other changes

Total recognized income 2004

Dividends paid

Share-based compensation

– Value of employee services

– Proceeds from shares

Share buyback

Balance at 31.12.2004/Restated

Net income for the year

Translation differences and other changes

Total recognized income 2005

Dividends paid

Share-based compensation

– Value of employee services

– Proceeds from shares

Share buyback

Share capital reduction

Balance at 31.12.2005

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
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A. Basis of preparation

B. Consolidation policy

1. General information

The Swatch Group Ltd (the Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively the Group) is active worldwide and represented in the
finished watches and jewelry sector with 18 brands in all market and price brackets. In addition, it holds an outstanding indus-
trial position with a high degree of verticalization in the sector of watch movements and components production as well as in the
electronic systems sector. During the year, no major changes occurred in the Group structure.
The Company is a limited company incorporated and domiciled in Switzerland. Its registered office is located in Neuchâtel,
Faubourg de l’Hôpital 3. The administrative headquarters are in Biel, Seevorstadt 6.
The shares of The Swatch Group Ltd are listed in Switzerland, under the security numbers 1 225 514 (registered shares) and
1 225 515 (bearer shares), and traded on virt-x, an Exchange for pan-European blue chip stocks.
These consolidated financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2006 and will be
submitted to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for approval on 19 May 2006.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain items such as
assets held for sale and financial instruments, as disclosed in the accounting policies below. The consolidated financial state-
ments are presented in Swiss francs (CHF) and all values are rounded to the nearest million, unless otherwise stated.
The consolidated financial statements of the Swatch Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and its interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
The annual closing date for all the individual company accounts is 31 December. For all the companies consolidated, the finan-
cial year corresponds to the calendar year.

The subsidiaries are those entities controlled directly or indirectly by The Swatch Group Ltd, where control is defined as the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as to obtain benefits from its activities. This control is generally
evidenced by the holding of more than one half of the voting rights of a company’s share capital. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. Companies are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group, and subsidiaries to
be divested are included up to the date on which control ceases.
The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries of the Group. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognized directly in the income statement.
Minority interests in equity and net income are disclosed separately in the consolidated balance sheet and the consolidated
income statement.
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated in full.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. This is generally evidenced when the
Group owns 20% to 50% of the voting rights or potential voting rights of the company. Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method and are initially recognized at cost. Balances and transactions with associates that result in un-
realized income are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate.
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Interests in joint ventures are reported using the line-by-line proportionate consolidation method. At 31 December 2005, none of
the companies consolidated in the Group’s financial statements were classified as joint ventures (none in 2004).
At the end of 2005, the Group’s consolidated financial statements included 140 legal entities (compared with 135 in the previous
year), of which five were associates (five in 2004). A full list of consolidated companies is provided in Note 32.

The accounting policies used are consistent with those of the previous financial year except that the Group has adopted those
new/revised IAS/IFRS standards mandatory for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2005.

The main changes in accounting policies result from adoption of the following new or revised standards:

– IFRS 2 Share-based Payment
– IFRS 3 Business Combinations, IAS 36 (revised) Impairment of Assets and IAS 38 (revised) Intangible Assets
– IAS 1 (revised) Presentation of Financial Statements
– IAS 21 (revised) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
– IAS 39 (revised) Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

The principal effects of these changes in policies are discussed below. The overall impact on restated 2004 figures was 
not material. While the operating profit decreased by CHF 6 million to CHF 645 million, net income remained unchanged at 
CHF 512 million. Basic Earnings per Share for 2004 was restated from CHF 1.77 to CHF 1.74 for registered shares and from 
CHF 8.83 to CHF 8.72 for bearer shares.

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment
The new accounting policy for share-based payment transactions is described on page 137. The main impact of IFRS 2 on the
Group is the recognition of an expense and a corresponding entry to equity for employee stock option plans.
The Group has applied IFRS 2 retrospectively and has taken advantage of the transitional provisions of IFRS 2 in respect of equity-
settled awards. As a result, the Group has applied IFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had
not vested on 1 January 2005.
The effect of the revised policy has decreased consolidated current year profits by CHF 7 million (net of tax CHF 6 million), and in
2004 by CHF 6 million (net of tax CHF 5 million) due to an increase in the employee benefits expense with an equal increase in
equity.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations, IAS 36 Impairment of Assets and IAS 38 Intangible Assets
IFRS 3 has been applied for business combinations for which the date of acquisition is on or after 31 March 2004. The adoption
of IFRS 3 and IAS 36 (revised) has resulted in the Group ceasing annual goodwill amortization and commencing annual testing
for impairment at the cash-generating unit level as of 1 January 2005. The Group’s goodwill amortization amounted to 
CHF 15 million in 2004. No impairment of goodwill had to be recognized in the current year. For further information regarding the
impairment testing of goodwill refer to Note 12.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
The revised IAS 1 requires that minority interests are included in the Group’s equity instead of in a separate category in the
consolidated balance sheet, and that they are no longer deducted in arriving at the Group’s net income. The adoption of this
requirement resulted in the reclassification of CHF 15 million to equity in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2004. The Group’s
2004 net income increased by CHF 6 million.

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
From 1 January 2005, the Group classifies its investments in the new category “designated at fair value through profit or loss”.
All realized and unrealized gains and losses arising from fair value changes are recognized in the income statement.
Previously, financial assets were classified as available-for-sale investments. Unrealized gains and losses arising from fair value
changes were recorded in equity. When securities were sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments were included
in the income statement.
The 2004 figures have been restated accordingly. The fair value reserve as at 01.01.2004 has been reclassified to retained
earnings. The financial result for 2004 has been reduced by CHF 1 million due to the restatements.

C. Changes in 
accounting policies
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D. Segment reporting

E. Foreign currency
translation

IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
As of 1 January 2005, the Group adopted IAS 21 (revised). As a result, any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign opera-
tion and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated prospec-
tively as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
Furthermore, a small number of subsidiaries changed their functional currency in order to comply with the new requirements,
with no material effect on consolidated financial statements.

IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations not yet effective
The Group has not applied in these consolidated financial statements the IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have
been issued but were not yet effective on 31 December 2005.
The Group expects that adoption of these pronouncements will have no major impact on the Group’s financial statements in the
period of initial application. However, in certain areas (such as IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” and IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures”) disclosures will have to be expanded.

Restatement of the segments
In 2004, the company Nouvelle Lémania SA was merged with Montres Breguet SA. As of 1 January 2005 the activity of Nouvelle
Lémania SA is no longer consolidated within the Production segment but is now part of the Watches and Jewelry segment. The
resulting prior year changes do not have a material impact on the operating profit of the segments. At Group level, sales and
results are not affected by this restatement.

The Group’s primary format for segment reporting is business segments and the secondary format is geographical segments. The
risks and returns of the Group’s operations are primarily determined by the different products rather than their geographical
location. This is reflected by the Group’s divisional management and organizational structure and the Group’s internal financial
reporting systems.
The Group’s activities are organized into four separately reportable business segments:

– Watches and Jewelry Sale of finished watches and jewelry
– Production Manufacture of watches, watch movements and jewelry
– Electronic Systems Design, production and marketing of electronic components
– General Services Service, finance, research and real estate companies

Sales to third-party clients are presented separately from sales to other operating divisions, and internal Group sales are recog-
nized at fair value. Segment expenses are those that can be directly attributed to the segment.
The assets of the segments mainly consist of land and buildings, equipment and machinery, intangible assets, inventories, trade
accounts receivable and cash and cash equivalents. However, they exclude consolidated investments in subsidiaries. Segment
liabilities include operating commitments.
In line with common practice in the Watch segment, the geographical presentation of sales is broken down by continent. Turnover
is reported according to the destinations that appear on the invoices. Total third-party assets are broken down by location.

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Swiss francs, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Any gains and losses resulting from these transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the consolidated income statement.
Income statements of Group entities with a functional currency different from the Swiss franc are translated at average exchange
rates as an approximation of exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction; balance sheets are translated at the year-
end exchange rate. All resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component of equity.
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to share-
holders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognized in the income statement as part of
the gain or loss on the sale.
In the reporting periods, none of the Group entities has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the year-end rate.

CO
N

SO
LI

D
AT

ED
 F

IN
A

N
CI

A
L 

ST
AT

EM
EN

TS
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Swatch Group | Annual Report 2005



133

F. Revenue recognition

G. Property, plant and
equipment

The main exchange rates used are:

Average rates Prevailing rates Average rates Prevailing rates
2005 31.12.2005 2004 31.12.2004
CHF CHF CHF CHF

1 AUD 0.9525 0.9650 0.9151 0.8850
1 CNY 0.1536 0.1635 0.1506 0.1370
1 EUR 1.5498 1.5565 1.5463 1.5450
1 GBP 2.2702 2.2700 2.2786 2.1850
1 HKD 0.1614 0.1700 0.1599 0.1460

100 JPY 1.1335 1.1200 1.1573 1.1050
1 SEK 0.1665 0.1655 0.1693 0.1710
1 SGD 0.7523 0.7920 0.7370 0.6950

100 TWD 3.9063 4.0150 3.7608 3.6000
1 USD 1.2558 1.3190 1.2457 1.1350

Net sales comprise the fair value for the sale of goods and services, net of value-added tax, rebates and discounts. Intercompany
sales are eliminated on consolidation. Revenue is recognized as follows:

Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognized when a Group entity has delivered products to the customer and the collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured. Accruals for discounts granted to clients are established during the same period as the sales
which gave rise to the discounts under the terms of the contract.

Rendering of services
Revenue from services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered, by reference to completion of
the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual service provided.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the
asset, as follows:

– Furniture, office machinery, motor vehicles: 5 to 8 years
– IT equipment and software: 3 to 5 years
– Measuring instruments, tools, equipment for non-mechanical processing automation components: 5 to 9 years
– Machines and mechanical production systems, workshop equipment: 9 to 15 years
– Factories and workshop buildings: 30 years
– Administrative buildings: 40 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in the
income statement.
The position “construction in progress” includes buildings under construction, down payments on land and buildings as well as
attributable borrowing costs.
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H. Investment property

I. Intangible assets

J. Impairment of assets

K. Financial assets

Investment properties comprise mainly residential properties. They are held for long-term rental yields and are not occupied by
the Group. Some land reserves are held with undetermined use. Investment property is carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment in value. The useful life of residential properties is estimated at 50 years.
Fair values are disclosed in Note 11. They are determined by capitalization of rental income for rented buildings plus an estimated
market value of land reserves.

Intangible assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the acquisition price over the fair value of the Group’s share of net identifiable assets of the
acquired company at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and in addition, when indications of
impairment exist, and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (CGU) for the purpose of impairment testing. The CGU represents the lowest level
within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and is not larger than a business segment
(see Note 12).

Research and development costs
Costs linked to development projects are recognized as intangible assets provided future economic benefits are anticipated. Other
research and development costs are recognized as expenses. Once a product enters into commercial production, the capitalized
development costs are amortized over the period of anticipated earnings. The amortization period applied does not exceed five
years.

Software development costs
Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognized as an expense as incurred. Costs
that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Group, and that
will probably generate economic benefits extending beyond one year, are recognized as intangible assets. Direct costs include
software development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
Costs associated with improving software or extending its performance beyond the original specifications are capitalized as an
asset and added to the original cost of the software. The capitalized costs associated with the development of software are
amortized over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method over a period not exceeding five years.

In addition to the items mentioned separately, the heading intangible assets also includes:

– Licenses purchased granting rights to use new state-of-the-art technologies. Related lump-sum payments have been capital-
ized and amortized over a period of five years;

– Key money paid for strategically located retail shops. If their value can be demonstrated by the presence of a market, they are
not amortized but tested for impairment. Key money that is not refundable or refundable only upon certain conditions being
met is treated as prepaid rent.

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The latter
is calculated by estimating the future cash flows generated by the asset and discounting them with a risk-adjusted interest rate.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units).

The Group classifies its financial assets, principally investments, in the following categories: financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale investments. The classifi-
cation depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired.
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L. Inventories

M. Non-current assets
held for sale

N. Trade receivables

O. Cash and cash 
equivalents

P. Share capital and
treasury shares

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
All the Group’s current investments are classified in the category designated at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
classified as held for trading are included in this category. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated by management. Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. All realized and unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognized in the income statement.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receiv-
able.

Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities, not
designated at fair value through profit or loss, that the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. During the year, the Group did not hold any investments in this category.

Available-for-sale investments
Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the balance sheet date. As of 1 January 2005, the Group reclassified all investments from the category available-for-sale to the
category financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
market transactions.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average price method.
Some companies, particularly those in the Production segment, value their inventories using the standard cost method. As these
costs are regularly reviewed and adjusted, this method approximates the results of the weighted average price method. The
valuation of spare parts for customer service is confined to those units that are considered likely to be used, based on historical
demand.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
applicable variable selling expenses.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the
asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. Non-
current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of the assets’ previous carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.

Trade receivables are recognized and carried at the original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts,
which corresponds to their fair value. Provision is made when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
the receivables. Bad debts are written off when identified.

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise petty cash, cash at banks and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above, net of short-term bank overdrafts.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown
in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.
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Q. Borrowings

R. Taxes

S. Pensions and other
post-employment
benefits

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortized cost.
The fair value of the liability component of a convertible bond is determined using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortized cost basis until extinguished on conversion or maturity of
the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option. This is recognized and included in shareholders’
equity, net of income tax effects. Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convert-
ible bonds, based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments are first recognized.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substan-
tively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. If the deferred tax arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for.
Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred tax liability is settled.
Income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the income statement.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, tax loss carryforwards and tax credits to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Pension obligations
Group companies operate various pension schemes. The schemes are generally funded through payments to insurance compa-
nies or trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial calculations. The Group has both defined benefit and defined
contribution plans. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines the amount of pension benefit that an employee will
receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. Group pension plans in Switzerland are accounted for as defined
benefit plans.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or expense when the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses
for each individual plan at the end of the previous reporting year exceeded 10% of the higher of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets at that date. These gains or losses are recognized over the expected average remaining working
lives of the employees participating in the plans.
Past service costs are recognized immediately in income, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional on the
employees remaining in service for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past service costs are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.
The liability recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obliga-
tion at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or
losses and past service costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries, using the projected
unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows.
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T. Provisions

U. Share-based payment
transactions

V. Leases

W. Dividends

X. Comparatives

Other post-employment benefits
A small number of Group companies provide post-retirement medical care benefits to their employees. The entitlement to these
benefits is usually conditional on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of a minimum
service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment, similar to the accounting for
defined benefit plans.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to either terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal, or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling
due more than 12 months after the balance sheet date are discounted to present value.

Provisions are recognized:
– when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
– when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and
– when a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimburse-
ment is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provi-
sion is presented in the income statement, net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provi-
sions are discounted, using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a borrowing cost.

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan. Under the terms of this plan, managers are granted a
certain number of share options. The attribution of these options is based on assessments and proposals for managers and staff
who have distinguished themselves throughout the year by a particularly strong commitment to the company or an above-average
performance. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognized as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted (calculated using the “Black-Scholes” model), excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. At each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to become exercisable. It recognizes the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the income statement, and a corre-
sponding adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting period.
A tranche of treasury shares has been specifically reserved for this stock option plan. No new shares were issued under this plan.
Equity increases by the corresponding amounts over the vesting period.
The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per share (see
Note 8).

Finance leases
A finance lease is where the lessor transfers to the lessee substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
leased item. At the inception of the lease, finance leases are capitalized at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is apportioned between the finance charges and the reduc-
tion of the lease liability, so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are charged directly against income statement. Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
the estimated useful life of the asset.

Operating leases
An operating lease is where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor. Operating lease
payments are recognized as expenses in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Dividends are recorded in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which they are approved by the Group’s shareholders.

Certain prior year balances have been reclassified or extended from the previously reported results to take into account current
year presentational changes. The changes are mentioned in the respective notes.
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A. Financial risk factors

3. Financial risk management

In view of the global and varied nature of its activities, the Group is exposed to financial market risk (including foreign currency
risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.
The Group’s risk management is essentially focused on identifying and analyzing exchange rate risk, with the aim of minimizing
its impact on Group earnings before taxes and net income. In order to hedge exchange rate risk, the Group uses derivative
financial instruments such as forward currency contracts or currency hedging options.
Risk management is conducted by the central treasury department (Group Treasury), which follows the directives issued by the
Group’s management bodies. Risks are assessed in collaboration with the operating units and the hedging methods are decided
and implemented under supervision of the Finance Committee.

1. Market risk
The Group is exposed to market risk, primarily related to foreign exchange, interest rates and the market value of investments of
liquid funds. The Group actively monitors these exposures. To manage the volatility relating to these exposures, the Group uses
a variety of derivative financial instruments. The Group’s objective is to reduce, where it deems appropriate to do so, fluctuations
in earnings and cash flows associated with changes in interest rates, foreign currency rates and market rates of investments of
liquid funds. It is the Group’s policy and practice to use derivative financial instruments to manage exposures and to enhance the
yield on the investment of liquid funds.

1.1 Foreign exchange risk
The Group’s consolidated financial statements are published in Swiss francs and are therefore mainly exposed to fluctuations in
the euro, the US dollar and the Japanese yen. Consequently, it enters into various contracts that reflect the changes in the value
of foreign exchange rates to preserve the value of assets, commitments and anticipated transactions. The Group also uses
forward contracts and foreign currency option contracts to hedge certain anticipated net revenues in foreign currencies. Group
companies enter into special exchange rate contracts with the Group’s treasury department guaranteeing a standard exchange
rate for a term of one month. The treasury department, for its part, is responsible for hedging net positions in foreign currencies
with external counterparties.

1.2 Price risk
1.2.1 Commodities

The Group has a limited exposure to price risk related to anticipated purchases of certain commodities used such as gold,
platinum or gems. A change in those prices may alter the gross margin of a specific business, but generally below materiality
level. Accordingly, the Group does not enter into significant commodity futures, forward and option contracts to manage fluctu-
ations in prices of anticipated purchases.

1.2.2 Equity investment risk
The Group purchases equities as investments of its liquid funds. Potential investments are thoroughly analyzed in respect to their
past financial track record (mainly cash flow return on investment), their market potential, their management and their competi-
tors. Call options are written on equities that the Group owns, and put options are written on equities that the Group wants to
buy and for which cash has been reserved.

2. Credit risk
The Group’s client credit policy necessitates periodic reviews of the credit standing of our commercial partners.
In purchasing securities, the Group guards against the risk of default by implementing directives that impose minimum credit
ratings for investments in tradable securities. The Group’s management regularly monitors strict compliance with these directives.
Counterparty risk is also minimized by ensuring that all derivative financial instruments, money market investments and current
account deposits are placed with financial institutions whose credit standing has been verified by our treasury department
beforehand. Exposure to this type of risk is closely monitored by Group management and is contained within strict and pre-deter-
mined limits.
Given the very high standards of creditworthiness applied to our commercial and financial partners, the default risks to which the
Group is exposed are limited.

3. Liquidity risk
The close monitoring of liquidity at Group level and of the allocation of resources allows the Group’s treasury department to
maintain adequate levels of liquidity at all times. In order to meet any exceptional liquidity requirements, the Group maintains
lines of credit with a number of financial institutions.
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B. Accounting for 
derivative financial
instruments and 
hedging activities

C. Fair value estimation

A. Critical accounting
estimates and
assumptions

4. Interest rate risk
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group manages its net exposure to interest rate risk through the proportion of fixed rate
debt and variable rate debt in its total debt portfolio. In the current monetary environment, interest rate fluctuations do not have
a major impact on the Group’s financial results.
In the context of balance sheet liabilities management, the Group has not used interest rate swaps during the two years under
review, and there are no outstanding positions relating to interest rate swaps in the Group’s financial statements.

Derivatives are recognized at their cost at inception either as cash flow hedges or as fair value hedges, depending on the nature
of the underlying transaction. Any subsequent remeasurements to fair value are either taken to the income statement (fair value
hedges) or recognized in shareholders’ equity (cash flow hedges).
In the case of cash flow hedges, a distinction is made between time value and intrinsic value when calculating the premium and
the replacement value at a given date.
The time value paid is recognized as soon as the position is taken. When a contract is valued at a given date, the adjustment of
the time value is taken to the income statement while the adjustment in the intrinsic value is recognized in shareholders’ equity.
As soon as the hedge of the underlying asset becomes active, and may be considered effective, the time values of the hedged
item and the hedging transaction are determined. Any difference between the two values is taken to the income statement. In
the case of cash flow hedges, any value adjustment recorded in the previous period under shareholders’ equity will be transferred
to the income statement.
Details of hedging operations are disclosed in Note 27.

The fair value of quoted investments is deemed to be their corresponding stock market closing prices on the balance sheet date.
Derivatives and forward rate contracts are also recognized at their market value on the account closure date. The fair value of
financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by making assumptions that are based on prevailing
market conditions and on recent arm’s length market transactions.

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expec-
tations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill
The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
and therefore of the expected future cash flows of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Furthermore, a
suitable discount rate is chosen in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. More details are given in Note 12.

Income taxes and custom duties
The Group is subject to taxes, levies and duties in numerous jurisdictions. In this respect the Group and its subsidiary companies
are regularly exposed to audits by the various governmental bodies and authorities, where the outcome of findings particularly
in the area of transfer pricing depends very often on individual judgements. Considerable judgement is required in determining
tax provisions. Liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues are recognized based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. These estimates could prove to be too pessimistic, or in a negative scenario, additional tax liabilities would have to be
recorded in the future.
Furthermore, the capitalization of deferred tax assets is based on assumptions about the future profitability of certain Group
companies. There is an inherent risk that these estimates made by management turn out to be too optimistic.

Provision for bad debts
To cover any shortfalls from current trade receivables, the Group records a provision for bad debts based on historical informa-
tion and on estimates in regard to the solvency of customers. Unexpected financial problems of major customers could lead to
the situation where the recorded provision is insufficient.
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Warranty claims
The Group generally offers a two year warranty for watches. Management estimates the related provision for future warranty
claims mainly based on historical warranty claim information. Factors that could impact these estimates include the success of
the Group’s quality initiatives, parts and labour costs as well as customer behaviour. Any material change of these factors could
result in higher or lower warranty costs for the Group.

Legal claims
Some Group companies are involved in litigation arising from the ordinary course of their business. Management estimated the
outcome of these lawsuits and booked adequate provisions in line with IAS 37. However, there is an inherent risk that – against
all odds – these legal claims are successful and cause a significant outflow of economic benefits. Moreover the Group being listed
on the Swiss Stock Exchange market finds itself also under permanent review regarding the observation of all rules and regula-
tions. Despite the considerable effort to comply with the increasing number of laws, rules and regulations at all times and on all
levels in all countries in which the Group develops activities, there remains a certain risk of oversight which could impact future
earnings.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Inventory abatements
In determining net realizable values of inventory, management had to use judgement as to whether or not inventory abatements
are necessary. Especially for spare parts used in customer service, but also for some watch components and finished goods,
judgement calls were made in order to determine a realistic value for these inventory items. Unexpected changes in fashion,
technology and customer needs could lead to situations where the actual inventory abatements would need to be increased.

Impairment of assets
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Management determines the amount of impairment losses by applying judgement
in regard to the recoverable amount and the future use of an impaired asset. In 2005 the closure of a production line in the Far
East caused an impairment of assets. If external factors such as market, technology, etc. change in a way not anticipated by
management, there is a risk that additional impairment losses will have to be recorded.

B. Critical judgements in
applying the entity’s
accounting policies
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2005

3 437 537 517 6 4 497

767 31 2 –800 0

3 437 1 304 548 8 –800 4 497

3 272 503 511 6 4 292

727 31 2 –760 0

3 272 1 230 542 8 –760 4 292

626 47 78 –16 735

19.1 3.8 14.4 17.1

85.2 6.4 10.6 –2.2 100.0

3 140 509 494 9 4 152

1 736 49 2 –788 0

3 141 1 245 543 11 –788 4 152

3 006 479 487 9 3 981

1 685 49 2 –737 0

3 007 1 164 536 11 –737 3 981

552 49 74 –30 645

18.4 4.2 13.8 16.2

85.6 7.6 11.5 –4.7 100.0

A. Primary segment
information (by 
business segment) Watches & Production Electronic General Consolidation Total

(CHF million) jewelry systems services adjustment

– Third parties

– Group

Gross sales

– Third parties

– Group

Net sales

Operating profit

– As a % of net sales

– As a % of total

2004 Watches & Production Electronic General Consolidation Total

(CHF million) jewelry systems services adjustment

– Third parties

– Group

Gross sales

– Third parties

– Group

Net sales

Operating profit

– As a % of net sales

– As a % of total

5. Segment information and sales

Income statement
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2005

3 099 1 177 404 1 903 6 583

4 1 5

3 099 1 181 404 1 904 6 588

1 006 275 69 635 1 985

2 093 906 335 1 269 4 603

87 101 27 6 221

34 105 34 3 176

3 4 3 1 11

8 4 12

2004

2 775 1 198 412 1 622 6 007

3 1 4

2 775 1 201 412 1 623 6 011

804 261 70 600 1 735

1 971 940 342 1 023 4 276

208 79 20 8 315

31 107 43 3 184

14 6 4 4 28

2 4 6

2005 2004

Watches & Production Electronic General Total

(CHF million) jewelry systems services

Balance sheet

– Segment assets

– Equity in associated companies

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets

Other information

Investments (including capitalized expenditure)

Depreciation on tangible assets

Amortization on intangible assets

Impairment

Watches & Production Electronic General Total

(CHF million) jewelry systems services

Balance sheet

– Segment assets

– Equity in associated companies

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets

Other information

Investments (including capitalized expenditure)

Depreciation on tangible assets

Amortization on intangible assets

Impairment

Balance sheet and other information

Segment share of net sales

Electronic systems 12% Electronic systems 12%

General General
services 0% services 0%

Watches & jewelry 76% Watches & jewelry 76%
Production 12% Production 12%
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–100 0 200 100 300 400 500 700600

2005 2004

2005
2004

2005 2004
Net Total Invest- Net Total Invest-

(CHF million) sales assets ments sales assets ments
Europe 2 090 5 509 179 2 033 5 137 153
America 494 259 10 453 200 5
Asia 1 597 786 31 1 394 648 156
Oceania 68 34 1 63 26 1
Africa 43 38
Total 4 292 6 588 221 3 981 6 011 315

Europe 48% Europe 51%

Africa 1% Africa 1%
Oceania 2% Oceania 2%
America 12% America 11%
Asia 37% Asia 35%

CO
N

SO
LI

D
AT

ED
 F

IN
A

N
CI

A
L 

ST
AT

EM
EN

TS
 

CO
N

SO
LI

D
AT

ED
 F

IN
A

N
CI

A
L 

ST
AT

EM
EN

TS
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Swatch Group | Annual Report 2005

Watches & jewelry

General services

Electronic systems

Production

B. Secondary segment
information 
(by geographic area)

Segment share of operating profit

Net sales by geographic area

(CHF million)
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a. Personnel expense

b. Other operating
expenses

c. Research and
development costs

d. Net financial result

6. Revenues and expenses

(CHF million) 2005 2004
Wages and salaries 1 067 1 049
Social security costs 178 171
Share-based compensation (Note 29) 7 6
Pension costs – defined benefit plans (Note 23) 57 56
Pension costs – defined contribution plans (Note 23) 4 1
Other post-employment benefits (Note 23) 2 0
Total personnel expense 1 315 1 283

The development of the headcount is summarized in the following table:

2005 2004
Average annual headcount 20 730 20 831
Total headcount at 31 December 20 650 20 949

– Men 9 172 9 187
– Women 11 478 11 762
– Swiss contracts 10 830 10 832
– Non-Swiss contracts 9 820 10 117

Headcount is expressed as the number of employment contracts. The number of employees includes home workers, trainees and
auxiliary staff. The decrease in total headcount is mainly due to the closure of production facilities in Asia. Overall, 52% of
personnel had a Swiss employment contract (2004: 51%).

(CHF million) 2005 2004
Marketing, sales and administration 665 621
Subcontracting and other direct costs of sales 233 216
Maintenance, rents and energy 249 247
Other operating expenses 58 131
Total other operating expenses 1 205 1 215

Due to the structure of the income statement by nature, operating expenses only represent third-party costs. In 2004, other
operating expenses included the costs for the Olympic Games in Athens.

R&D costs diminished from CHF 153 million in 2004 to CHF 144 million in 2005, representing 3.4% of net sales (compared with
3.8% in 2004).

(CHF million) 2005 2004
Interest income 25 16
Income from marketable securities 22 16
Foreign exchange differences on financial transactions 24 –36
Financial income 71 –4

Interest on convertible bond –14 –14
Other interest –8 –9
Interest expense –22 –23

Net financial result 49 –27
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Income tax expenses

Reconciliation of the
Group’s effective tax rate

Current income tax

Deferred income tax

7. Income taxes

(CHF million) 2005 2004
Current income taxes 168 105
Adjustments recognized for current taxes of prior periods 5 0
Deferred income taxes –10 1
Total income taxes 163 106

Since the Group operates worldwide, it is subject to income taxes in many different tax jurisdictions. The Group calculates its
average expected tax rate as a weighted average of tax rates in the relevant tax jurisdictions. The increase of the average
expected tax rate from 18.3% in 2004 to 21.8% in 2005 is mainly caused by a change in the profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the respective countries as well as changes in applicable statutory tax rates.

2005 2004 1)

% %
Group’s average expected tax rate 21.8 18.3
Tax effect of

– Change in the applicable tax rate on temporary differences –1.4 0.3
– Capitalization of tax assets from previous years and utilization of tax losses/

unused tax credits 0.0 –0.7
– Non-taxable income/non-deductible expenses 0.3 0.5
– Items taxable at reduced rates –0.8 –0.9
– Other items 0.8 –0.4

Group’s effective tax rate 20.7 17.1

1) The prior year presentation has been adapted to include the effect of tax rate differences and tax privileges of holding companies within 
the average expected tax rate.

(CHF million) 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Current income tax assets 3 3
Current income tax liabilities –140 –56
Net current income tax liability –137 –53

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset within legal entities when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.
The deferred tax asset and liability amounts (shown in the following table) are calculated after set-offs and were presented on
the consolidated balance sheet as follows:

(CHF million) 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Deferred tax assets 136 120
Deferred tax liabilities –344 –344
Net total –208 –224

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

(CHF million) 2005 2004
Balance at 1 January –224 –221
Translation differences and other movements 6 –2
Income statement 10 –1
At 31 December –208 –224

Deferred tax assets resulting from deductible temporary differences, tax credits or tax loss carryforwards are recognized only to
the extent that realization of the related tax benefit is probable. The Group has unrecognized tax losses of CHF 97 million at 
31 December 2005 (CHF 113 million at 31 December 2004). In 2005, 35% of total recognized and unrecognized carryforward tax
losses expire within six years (33% in 2004). The remaining tax losses expire after six years or more.
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Basic

Diluted

The deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the following balance sheet items:

Deferred tax assets
Source (CHF million) 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Carryforward tax losses/tax credits 13 13
Non-current assets 31 35
Current assets 103 89
Short-term debt 20 13
Long-term debt 9 11
Total 176 161
Set-off –40 –41
Total deferred tax assets on the balance sheet 136 120

Deferred tax liabilities
Source (CHF million) 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Non-current assets –96 –111
Current assets –160 –167
Short-term debt –5 –3
Long-term debt –123 –104
Total –384 –385
Set-off 40 41
Total deferred tax liabilities on the balance sheet –344 –344

8. Earnings per share
2005 2004

Net income attributable to equity holders of The Swatch Group Ltd (CHF million) 614 506
Percentage of registered shares outstanding in comparison with 
the share capital outstanding 42.7% 42.7%
Percentage of bearer shares outstanding in comparison with 
the share capital oustanding 57.3% 57.3%

Registered shares
Net income attributable to registered share holders (CHF million) 262 216
Average number of shares outstanding 122 004 798 123 787 740
Basic earnings per share, in CHF 2.15 1.74

Bearer shares
Net income attributable to bearer share holders (CHF million) 352 290
Average number of shares outstanding 32 788 496 33 211 158
Basic earnings per share, in CHF 10.74 8.72

Net income attributable to equity holders of The Swatch Group Ltd (CHF million) 614 506
Interest expense on convertible debt (net of tax) (CHF million) 14 14
Net income used to determine diluted EPS (CHF million) 628 520
Percentage of diluted registered shares outstanding in comparison 
with the diluted share capital outstanding 44.3% 44.4%
Percentage of diluted bearer shares outstanding in comparison 
with the diluted share capital outstanding 55.7% 55.6%

Registered shares
Net income attributable to registered share holders (CHF million) 279 231
Average number of shares outstanding 130 646 179 132 447 448
Diluted earnings per share, in CHF 2.13 1.74

Bearer shares
Net income attributable to bearer share holders (CHF million) 349 289
Average number of shares outstanding 32 788 496 33 211 158
Diluted earnings per share, in CHF 10.66 8.70
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897 2 216 286 28 3 427 3 298

6 18 4 28 –17

0 1

14 89 37 24 164 274

21 1 22 17

–3 –80 –11 –94 –104

4 14 –6 –24 –12 –42

918 2 278 311 28 3 535 3 427

–420 –1 620 –203 –23 –2 266 –2 213

–1 –11 –3 –15 9

–17 –135 –23 –175 –183

–10 –10 –5

68 8 76 94

–2 –21 8 23 8 32

–440 –1 729 –213 0 –2 382 –2 266

478 549 98 28 1 153 1 161

9. Dividends paid and proposed

On 18 May 2005, the Annual General Meeting approved the distribution of a dividend of CHF 0.35 per registered share and 
CHF 1.75 per bearer share. The distribution to holders of outstanding shares totaled CHF 101 million (2004: CHF 85 million) and
has been recorded recording against retained earnings in 2005. 

At the Annual General Meeting on 19 May 2006, the payment of the following dividends for 2005 will be proposed:

Registered Bearer
Dividend per share CHF 0.50 CHF 2.50
Total dividend CHF 67 455 664 CHF 82 643 625

The financial statements ending 31 December 2005 do not take into account this proposed dividend. Dividends will be treated as
a distribution of available earnings during the financial year 2006.

10. Property, plant and equipment

Changes in tangible assets with reference to their relevant acquisition values are summarized in the following table:
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Land and Plant and Other Advances and Total 2005 Total 2004

buildings machinery fixtures and construction

(CHF million) fittings in progress

Historical cost, 1 January

Translation differences

Acquisitions

Investments

Capitalized expenditure

Disposals

Transfers

Historical cost, 31 December

Accumulated depreciation, 1 January

Translation differences

Annual depreciation

Impairment

Depreciation on disposals

Transfers

Accumulated depreciation, 31 December

Net book value, 31 December
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Fire insurance values

At 31 December 2005, total non-current assets pledged to guarantee the commitments of the Group companies represented 
CHF 3 million (CHF 3 million at end-2004).
At end-2005, fixed assets financed by leasing contracts and recognized as assets on the balance sheet amounted to less than
CHF 2 million (less than CHF 2 million at end-2004).
Impairment in the amount of CHF 10 million (CHF 5 million at end-2004) was charged on assets whose book value was greater
than their net recoverable value.

Tangible fixed assets were insured against fire for the following amounts:

(CHF million) 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Buildings 1 419 1 414
Equipment 3 104 3 052
Total 4 523 4 466

The net value of tangible fixed assets (including investment property and land) shown on the balance sheet at 31 December 2005
represented 26.0% (2004: 26.6%) of the insured value.

11. Investment property

Investment properties are valued at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in value. Gross and net values
as well as the movements during the year are disclosed in the following table, which also shows the amounts that have been
recognized in the income statement:

(CHF million) 2005 2004
Historical cost, 1 January 52 25
Investments 1 1
Disposals –1 0
Transfers –6 26
Historical cost, 31 December 46 52

Accumulated depreciation, 1 January –25 –9
Annual depreciation –1 –1
Impairment –1 –1
Depreciation on disposals 1 0
Transfers 3 –14
Accumulated depreciation, 31 December –23 –25

Net book value, 31 December 23 27

Rental income 3 3
Direct operating expenses arising from investment properties that did
generate rental income –2 –2
Direct operating expenses arising from investment properties that did not 
generate rental income 0 0

Based on capitalized rental income for rented buildings plus an estimated market value for land reserves, the fair value of the
investment properties is estimated at CHF 51 million at 31 December 2005 compared to CHF 57 million at 31 December 2004.
Given the relatively immaterial amounts of investment property, no external independent valuation has been performed.
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27 90 274 391 397

1 1 –1

1 13 14 2

5 5 13

–2 –2 –20

10 –67 –57 0

33 112 207 352 391

–18 –50 –67 –135 –125

–1 –1 1

–3 –8 –11 –28

1 1 17

–10 67 57 0

–21 –68 0 –89 –135

12 44 207 263 256

There are no accumulated impairment losses in goodwill. Within intangible assets, only goodwill is supposed to have an 
indefinite life.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs), which correspond to the profit centers for the segment
“Watches and Jewelry” and the reportable segments for the business segments “Production” and “Electronic Systems”.
A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented below:

(CHF million) 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Watches & jewelry 151 151
Production 22 22
Electronic systems 34 34
Total 207 207

The recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using conservatively estimated growth rates. The discount rates used (6.2% –7.5%) are derived from
a capital asset pricing model using data from Swiss capital markets and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.
This is then adjusted to a pre-tax rate (8.25% –10.1%).
No impairment charge for goodwill had to be recorded in 2005. Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of the key assumptions would not cause the carrying value of goodwill to exceed the recoverable amount.

13. Investments in associated companies

Investments in associated companies are essentially investments in other companies, resulting in the ownership of 20-50% of
their voting rights. In 2005, five such investments, Danyack SA, François Golay SA, Terbival SA, HiPoint Technology Inc., and S.I.
Les Corbes SA, were recognized using the equity method, since the Group exercised a significant influence over their activities.
The carrying value of investments in associates was CHF 5 million in 2005 (CHF 4 million in 2004). The Swatch Group’s share in
these companies generated after-tax income of CHF 1 million in 2005 (2004: less than CHF 1 million). This income is recognized
in the net financial result (Note 6d).

Goodwill impairment
testing

12. Intangible assets

Changes in intangible assets with reference to their relevant acquisition values are summarized in the following table:
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Capitalized Other Goodwill Total 2005 Total 2004

development intangible

(CHF million) costs assets

Historical cost, 1 January

Translation differences

Investments

Capitalized expenditure

Disposals

Transfers

Historical cost, 31 December

Accumulated amortization, 1 January

Translation differences

Annual amortization

Amortization on disposals

Transfers

Accumulated amortization, 31 December

Net book value, 31 December
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36 5 2 43 43

6 5 4 15 8

–1 –1 –2

–6 –6 –6

36 10 5 51 43

19 8 5 32 22

17 2 19 21

36 10 5 51 43

Key money that the Group pays when renting shops in strategic locations is recognized as prepaid rent when recovery at the end
of the contract is not certain. The long-term portion is recognized under “Financial long-term assets”, while the short-term compo-
nent is transferred to “Other receivables and prepayments”.

16. Inventories

(CHF million) 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Raw materials and components 528 535
Work in progress 507 465
Finished goods 565 477
Spare parts for customer service 124 138
Total 1 724 1 615

Inventories were 6.7% higher at 31 December 2005 than at end-2004. This increase resulted from exceptionally strong sales
growth in the luxury watches segment, notably Breguet and Omega. In addition, the expansion strategy pursued in the “retail”
arm has also raised the volumes of inventories.
Inventories with risk of obsolescence have been adjusted to their net realizable value. Adjustments of this nature accounted for
CHF 24 million in 2005 (CHF 19 million in 2004).

17. Trade receivables

(CHF million) 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Gross receivables 738 680
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts –31 –34
Net receivables 707 646

The allowance for bad and doubtful debts represents 4.2% (5.0% in 2004) of receivables outstanding and covers all risks identi-
fied at closing date. The average payment term for trade receivables was nearly unchanged in 2005. Calculated on the basis of
actual monthly gross sales, the corresponding figure decreased slightly from 49 days at end-2004 to 48 days at end-2005.

14. Business combinations

Effective as of 1 January 2004, the Swatch Group acquired the remaining 50% of the capital of Time Flagship SA in Lucerne, and
the remaining 46% of the capital of the real estate company S.I. L’Etang SA in Le Locle. Before this acquisition, Time Flagship SA
was proportionally consolidated as a joint venture. Goodwill resulting from these immaterial transactions was less than 
CHF 1 million. In 2005 no business combinations occurred.
In early 2006, the Group acquired two entities (refer to Note 31 Events after the balance sheet date for further information).
For information in respect of the existing goodwill from past acquisitions, refer to Note 12 Intangible assets.

15. Financial long-term assets
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Key money Guarantees, Other Total 2005 Total 2004

deposits financial

(CHF million) assets

Balance at 1 January

Investments

Disposals

Transfers to “Other receivables“

Balance at 31 December

Term 1– 5 years

Term > 5 years

Balance at 31 December
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18. Other receivables and prepayments

This heading covers numerous items and can be summarized as follows:

(CHF million) 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Advances 27 20
VAT to be refunded 125 134
Other taxes to be refunded 2 6
Accrued financial expenses 2 3
Prepaid advertising expenses 10 41
Assets held for sale 8 3
Key money 6 6
Sundry receivables and other accrued income 165 122
Total 345 335

Current income tax assets are reported on a separate balance sheet line and are also included in Note 7 Income taxes.

19. Marketable securities

Marketable securities amounted to a total value of CHF 307 million in 2005 (CHF 426 million in 2004). The decrease is due to the
sale of an important part of the shares portfolio.
As mentioned in changes in accounting policies, previously, financial assets were classified as available-for-sale investments.
Since the beginning of 2005, they have been entirely allocated to the category “financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss”. These assets have an active market, and all realized and unrealized gains and losses arising from fair value changes
are recognized in the income statement.
The Swatch Group holds only short-term financial assets (i.e. that can be liquidated within 12 months).

20. Cash and cash equivalents

(CHF million) 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Current accounts and liquid assets 627 353
Short-term deposits with financial institutions 1 244 1 022
Total 1 871 1 375

The average yield on short-term bank deposits corresponds to the average interest rate on an investment on the capital and
money markets with a term of up to three months.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include the following items:

(CHF million) 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Cash and cash equivalents 1 871 1 375
Bank overdrafts (Note 22) –8 –2
Total 1 863 1 373

21. Share capital and reserves

Over the past three years, the share capital of The Swatch Group Ltd has changed as follows:

Balance sheet date Registered shares Bearer shares Share capital in CHF
31.12.2002 137 051 327 at CHF 0.45 33 506 950 at CHF 2.25 137 063 734.65
31.12.2003 137 051 327 at CHF 0.45 33 506 950 at CHF 2.25 137 063 734.65
31.12.2004 137 051 327 at CHF 0.45 33 506 950 at CHF 2.25 137 063 734.65
31.12.2005 134 911 327 at CHF 0.451) 33 057 450 at CHF 2.251) 135 089 359.65

1) Buyback of shares on the Group’s 2nd trading line and cancellation following the decision of the AGM of 18 May 2005: 2 140 000 registered shares 
and 449 500 bearer shares.
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Convertible bond

At year-end 2005 as well as 2004, there was no authorized or conditional capital. All issued shares are fully paid.
Shares of The Swatch Group Ltd held by the Group are recognized in the consolidated financial statements at their historical cost.
The value of these shares is charged against consolidated shareholders’ equity.
In July 2005, the Swatch Group launched a new share buyback program. During the year ended 31 December 2005, the Group
acquired own shares representing a market value of CHF 248 million.
At the beginning of 2006, the Board of Directors of the Swatch Group Ltd approved a new share buyback program corresponding
to a market value of CHF 300 million.
Equity increased by CHF 7 million in 2005 (net of taxes) (2004: CHF 6 million), due the stock option plan. Details to the share
options issued in connection with the employee stock option plan are given in Note 29.
After the reclassification of fair value reserves at 1 January 2004, other reserves only include the equity component of the
convertible bond as well as cumulative translation differences. Other reserves can be summarized as follows:

(CHF million) 31.12.2005 31.12.2004 01.01.2004 (restated)
Equity component of convertible bond 16 16 16
Translation and other differences –5 –52 –29
Total other reserves 11 –36 –13

22. Borrowings

(CHF million) 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Long-term borrowings
Convertible loan 396 393
Other long-term debt 0 2
Total long-term borrowings 396 395

Short-term borrowings
Current account overdrafts 8 2
Short-term bank debt 321 222
Total short-term borrowings 329 224

6 months 7–12 1–5 more than
(CHF million) or less months years 5 years Total
At 31.12.2005 262 67 396 0 725
At 31.12.2004 157 67 2 393 619

At 31 December 2005, the weighted average interest rate on financial debt was below 2% (below 2% at end-2004) for maturities
of less than 12 months, and 3.5% (3.5% at end-2004) for long-term financial debt (i.e. more than one year).

On 15 October 2003, The Swatch Group Finance (Luxembourg) SA issued convertible bonds valid from 15 October 2003 to 
15 October 2010 and a coupon of 2.625%, for a total of CHF 411 600 000. During the conversion period, these bonds with a
nominal value of CHF 5 000 may be converted into registered shares of The Swatch Group Ltd at CHF 49.00 each.
The bond issue has been split into an equity and a liability component, recognized on the balance sheet under the corresponding
headings. The fair value of the liability component, recognized as long-term debt, was determined by reference to the market rate
(3.248% per year) of an equivalent non-convertible bond. The residual value (the conversion option) was recognized as share-
holders’ equity.
Until conversion or redemption of the bond issue, the liability component and all related adjustments will be accounted for using
the effective interest rate method. The equity portion was determined at the time of issue and will not be modified at a later date.

The convertible bond issue is recognized as follows:

(CHF million) 2005 2004
Liability component at 1 January 393 390
Coupon interest at market rate 14 14
Coupon interest at 2.625% –11 –11
Liability component at 31 December 396 393

At 31 December 2005, no bonds had been converted. The closing rate of the convertible bond on the Swiss Stock Exchange at
end-2005 was 109.00% (107.42% at end-2004).

CO
N

SO
LI

D
AT

ED
 F

IN
A

N
CI

A
L 

ST
AT

EM
EN

TS
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Swatch Group | Annual Report 2005



153

2005 2004

–2 994 –2 719

2 990 2 720

–4 1

27 21

–3 0

–1 1

–38 –39

–19 –16

–70 –67

–91 –100

111 106

–52 –12

–1 0

45 45

1 –28

–57 –56

–16 –17

–57 –56

54 57

–19 –16

111 106

210 43

321 149

3.25 3.75

4.00 4.00

1.00 1.00

0.00 0.00

Defined benefit plans

23. Retirement benefit obligations

The Group has numerous independent pension plans. Defined benefit pension plans cover a significant number of the Group’s
employees. The Group’s Swiss pension fund is also treated as a defined benefit pension plan. The defined benefit obligations and
related assets are reassessed annually by independent actuaries. The following is a summary of the status of the main pension
plans:
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CHF million CHF million

Present value of funded obligations

Fair value of plan assets

Liability/asset surplus at 31 December

Unrecognized actuarial difference

Present value of unfunded obligations

Unrecognized past-service cost

Unrecognized surplus due to IAS 19.58 B

Net liability in the balance sheet at 31 December

Amounts recognized in the income statement

Current service cost

Interest cost on obligations

Expected return on plan assets

Net actual losses recognized current year

Past service cost

Employee contributions

Impact of IAS 19.58 B

Total recognized in personnel expense

Change in the net liability recognized in the balance sheet

Net liability at 1 January

Net expense recognized in the income statement

Employer contributions paid

Net liability at 31 December

Actual return on plan assets

Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial difference on plan assets

Actual return on plan assets

Principal actuarial assumptions used 2005 2004

% %

Weighted average Weighted average

Discount rate

Expected return on plan assets

Salary increases due to inflation

Pension index
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In addition to the defined benefit pension plans, this heading includes liabilities for other post-employment benefit plans for
employees working abroad. The split of the balance sheet amount of retirement benefit obligations is as follows:

(CHF million) 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Net liability for defined benefit plans 19 16
Other post-employment benefit plans 13 14
Total retirement benefit obligations 32 30

Amounts recognized in the consolidated income statement relating to contributions to defined contribution plans represent the
employer’s future contributions and are calculated according to the regulations of various pension institutions. In 2005, these
contributions amounted to CHF 4 million (CHF 1 million in 2004).

24. Provisions

(CHF million) Warranties Litigation Other Total
At 31 December 2004 59 11 26 96
Translation differences 1 1 2
Additional provisions 60 4 13 77
Reversal of provisions –3 –4 –11 –18
Provisions used during the year –56 –1 –5 –62
Other movements 2 2 4
At 31 December 2005 61 13 25 99

Analysis of total provisions (CHF million) 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Provisions for more than one year 49 34
Current provisions 50 62
Total 99 96

In the majority of cases, the Group offers a two-year warranty covering the repairs or replacement of products that do not perform
to customers’ satisfaction. The provision made at year-end to cover future warranty costs is based on past experience with respect
to the volume of repairs and returns.

Provisions have been allocated to cover lawsuits against the Group arising from the normal conduct of business. It is the view of
Group Management, supported by appropriate legal advice, that none of the existing lawsuits will entail costs that significantly
exceed the amounts set aside at 31 December 2005.

Other provisions relate to various commitments of the Group companies toward third parties. The term and amount of payments
made from these provisions cannot be determined.

Defined contribution
plans

Warranty

Legal risks

Other
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Guarantees and sureties

Leasing, rental and other
commitments

Contingent liabilities

25. Other payables and accrued expenses

The position “Other payables and accrued expenses” rose by CHF 24 million to CHF 405 million. “Accrued expenses” includes all
charges relating to the period yet to be invoiced by third parties to Group companies. These liabilities include the following debt
and accruals:

(CHF million) 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Purchases of goods and services 24 27
Wages and social security costs 102 85
Sales reductions 24 21
Advertising 81 101
VAT due 31 27
Capital taxes 3 4
Advance payments 14 5
Other debt and accrued expenses 126 111
Total other payables and accrued expenses 405 381

Current income tax liabilities are reported on a separate balance sheet line and are also included in Note 7 Income taxes.

26. Commitments and contingencies

At 31 December 2005, guarantees to third parties as security for commitments of Group companies amounted to less than 
CHF 2 million (less than CHF 2 million at end-2004).
Total current assets pledged by Group companies to guarantee their commitments amounted to CHF 6 million at 31 December
2005 (CHF 5 million at end-2004).

Operating leasing commitments for the Group not recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:

(CHF million) 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Less than 1 year 71 54
Between 1 and 5 years 190 147
Over 5 years 127 107
Total 388 308

Proportion of contracts with renewal option (% of total amount) 71.9 56.4
Maximum risk (% of total amount) 90.3 90.7

The figures in the preceding table include all rental contracts for buildings, a major part of which relate to the Group’s retail
business, and to all other standard rental contracts existing at 31 December 2005. Leasing costs amounting to CHF 74 million
were recognized in the 2005 income statement (CHF 54 million in 2004). A sublease clause is included in a large number of rental
contracts for retail shops. Moreover, if the need arises, the Group may negotiate early termination of a lease contract with exit
terms considerably more favorable than the payment of the entire commitment specified in the initial contract.
Other commitments relating to investments in financial and tangible fixed assets entered into by the Group, and ongoing at 
31 December 2005, amounted to CHF 7 million (CHF 8 million in the previous year).

Some Group companies are involved in litigation arising from the ordinary course of business and they may be liable to pay
compensation. The effect of these lawsuits, not all of which are covered by insurance, on future operations and earnings is not
predictable. The Group’s best estimate of future payments for such commitments is CHF 5 million (2004: CHF 6 million).
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621 512

–1 0

163 106

176 184

11 28

12 9

3 –3

–22 –14

–25 –16

22 23

7 6

–86 –152

–27 12

22 67

0 8

1 4

877 774

27. Derivatives

The table below gives an overview of the contract and replacement values of derivative financial instruments on positions in
precious metals or denominated in foreign currency.
The notes to the financial statements of the Holding on page 171 set out the contract and replacement values of the parent
company’s financial derivatives. Only third-party values are used for the Group accounts.

Type Contract Positive Negative
(CHF million) value replacement value replacement value
Forward contracts 531 0 –1
Options 0 0 0
Total at 31.12.2005 531 0 –1
Total at 31.12.2004 528 1 –2

As in the prior year, the Group had no open option position and no cash-flow hedges outstanding in the current year. At 
31 December 2005, the contract value of open forward transactions increased by CHF 3 million versus the previous year.

28. Cash generated from operations
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2005 2004

Notes CHF million CHF million

Net income

Result from associated companies

Taxes (7)

Depreciation of tangible assets

Amortization of intangible assets

Impairment charge

Loss/profit on sale of fixed assets

Fair value gains on marketable securities

Interest income (6d)

Interest expense (6d)

Expenses for equity-settled equity compensation plan

Changes in working capital (without liquid funds):

– Inventories

– Trade and other receivables

– Trade payables and other current liabilities

Changes in provisions

Changes in pensions and other retirement benefits

Cash generated from operations
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29. Employee stock option plan

When the Hayek Pool acquired control of the Swatch Group, a block of shares was reserved in 1986 for a management stock
option plan.
Under the terms of this plan, managers have the right to subscribe, in the future, for registered shares at a preferential price. The
attribution of these option rights is based on assessments and proposals for managers and staff who have distinguished
themselves throughout the year by a particularly strong commitment to the company or an above-average performance. One-third
of the options attributed can be subscribed, paid up and disposed of immediately, another third in one year, and the remaining
third in two years. A tranche of treasury shares has been specifically reserved for this stock option plan. Equity increases by the
corresponding amounts over the vesting period.
At the end of 2005, this portfolio comprised 3 259 613 registered shares (3 499 632 at the end of 2004). In 2005, 240 019 regis-
tered shares were awarded at a preferential price of CHF 4.00 per registered share (see details below).

Year of award Number of Number of Year of subscription/
to employees options exercised beneficiaries payment
2003 76 760 183 2005
2004 83 156 207 2005
2005 80 103 196 2005
Total 240 019

In addition, eligible members of management were granted the following options to subscribe for further registered shares at a
preferential price in the future:

Year of award Number of Number of Year of subscription/
to employees options beneficiaries payment
2004 82 724 196 2006
2005 79 906 193 2006
2005 78 751 192 2007
Total outstanding 241 381

The movement in the number of options was:
2005 2004

Options outstanding at 1 January 259 707 245 135
Granted 238 760 273 094
Forfeited or lapsed –17 067 –15 954
Exercised –240 019 –242 568
Outstanding at 31 December 241 381 259 707

The fair value of the options granted during the period was determined by using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The
following table shows the assumptions on which the valuation of share options granted during the period was based:

Tranche exercisable in Tranche exercisable in
in 1 year in 2 years

Grant date 5 August 2005 5 August 2005
Expiration date 5 August 2006 5 August 2007
Closing share price on grant date CHF 37.75 CHF 37.75
Exercise price CHF 4.00 CHF 4.00
Volatility 25.7% 25.7%
Expected dividend yield CHF 0.35 CHF 0.35
Interest rate 0.9% 1.15%
Market value of option at grant date CHF 33.40 CHF 33.50

The personnel expense recorded in the 2005 income statement as a result of applying IFRS 2 calculation amounted to 
CHF 7 million (2004: CHF 6 million).
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Principal shareholders

Key management 
personnel

Share ownership

Loans to members of the
governing bodies

30. Related party transactions

On 31 December 2005, the Hayek Pool and its companies and related entities held 62 019 456 registered shares and 293 250
bearer shares, equivalent to 37.1% of the shares issued (previous year: 36.5%) of The Swatch Group Ltd, which is the parent
company of the Group.
In the context of the pool, the group of Mr N. G. Hayek and related parties controlled in total 36.4% of the shares issued compared
with 35.8% at the end of year 2004.
As of the same date, Mrs Esther Grether’s group controlled 6.7% of the shares issued (compared with 8.0% a year earlier).
In 2005, the Hayek Group, owned by a member of the Hayek Pool, invoiced an amount of CHF 8.7 million to the Swatch Group
(compared with CHF 12.4 million in 2004). This amount primarily covered support for Group Management in the following areas
of activity:

(CHF million) 2005 2004
– Audit, feasibility studies and process optimization 2.4 3.8
– Provision of managers and filling important, vacant functions 0.9 3.6
– Project management in the construction sector 2.6 1.7
– Introduction of cost accounting systems in manufacturing companies 0.5 0.6
– Support for projects in the materials and surface treatment technology sector 0.1 0.6
– Leasing a store in the centre of Cannes (France) in a building 

of a subsidiary of the Hayek Group 0.4 0.4
– Various services relating to the assessment of investment projects, 

cost control, IT consulting, etc. 1.8 1.7
Total 8.7 12.4

In addition to the executive members of the Board of Directors, the members of the Group Management Board and of the
Extended Management Board are considered as key management personnel (according to IAS 24.9).
The total compensation for key management personnel using IFRS 2 rules for accounting for share-based compensation was as
follows:

(CHF million) 2005 2004
Short-term employee benefits 18.6 17.7
– of which in salaries 7.6 7.4
– of which in bonus 11.0 10.3
Post-employment benefits 0 0
Termination benefits 0 0
Share-based compensation (Note 29) 4.3 3.2
Total 22.9 20.9

In 2005, CHF 0.8 million (2004: CHF 0.8 million) was paid to non-executive members of the Board of Directors (not including 
Mr N. G. Hayek, Chairman and Delegate of the Board of Directors).
No remuneration was paid to former members of management bodies.

At 31 December 2005, the executive members of the Board of Directors and the members of the Management Board of the
company as well as the persons close to them held directly or indirectly a total of 54 871 740 registered shares and 80 090 bearer
shares, representing 32.7% of the voting rights (previous year: 32.2%).
In addition, at 31 December 2005, all the non-executive members of the Board of Directors as well as the persons close to them
held 12 932 712 registered shares and 223 000 bearer shares, representing 7.8% of the voting rights (previous year: 9.1%).

The employees of the company may take out a mortgage loan with the Swatch Group Pension Fund for the construction or acqui-
sition of property in Switzerland (primary residence).
The conditions for these mortgage loans are set by the Swatch Group Pension Fund Foundation Board. These conditions are
applied in the same manner to all employees. At the end of 2005, two such loans had been granted to members of the Group
Management Board for a total of CHF 1.2 million (in 2004, three loans for a total of CHF 1.6 million).
At the end of 2004, Swatch Group USA Inc. granted a loan for USD 0.1 million to the managing director of the subsidiary. This
loan was fully repaid in 2005.
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Associated companies
and other related parties

The Group has transactions with associates and other related parties. A listing of the associated companies is included in the list
of the Swatch Group companies (Note 32). A Group of companies owned by a minority shareholder in Singapore are considered
as other related parties.

(CHF million) 2005 2004
Purchases Sales Purchases Sales

Associates 6 0 5 0
Other related parties 1 6 3 8

At the end of 2005, receivables from related parties amounted to CHF 1 million (2004: less than CHF 1 million), and payables to
related parties were CHF 1 million (2004: less than CHF 1 million).

31. Events after the balance sheet date

In February and March 2006, the Swatch Group acquired two companies (WIGE Data GmbH, Leipzig, and The Swatch Group
[RUS], Moscow). The total consideration paid amounted to CHF 23 million. At the time of preparing this annual report, the alloca-
tions of net assets and goodwill relating to these business combinations were not yet finalized.
Other than that, there were no significant events after the balance sheet date.
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CHF 135.09 �
CHF 0.10 100 � �
CHF 0.70 100 � �
CHF 0.10 100 � �
CHF 0.10 100 � �
CHF 0.50 100 � �
CHF 3.50 100 � �
CHF 0.10 100 � �
CHF 5.00 90 � �
CHF 7.86 100 � �
CHF 10.00 100 � �
CHF 0.06 29 � �
CHF 4.50 100 � �
CHF 10.00 100 � �
CHF 3.00 100 � �
CHF 0.10 100 � �
CHF 25.00 100 � �
CHF 2.00 100 � �
CHF 6.20 100 � �
CHF 2.00 100 � �
CHF 0.10 35 � �
CHF 0.30 100 � �
CHF 0.10 100 � �
CHF 3.00 100 � �
CHF 0.20 100 � �
CHF 0.10 100 � �
CHF 1.00 100 � �
CHF 0.10 100 � �
CHF 0.10 100 � �
CHF 0.05 100 � �
CHF 0.70 100 � �
CHF 0.60 100 � �
CHF 2.40 100 � �
CHF 0.48 100 � �
CHF 2.00 100 � �
CHF 14.00 100 � �
CHF 1.20 100 � �
CHF 10.00 100 � �
CHF 12.00 100 � �
CHF 4.00 100 � �
CHF 1.50 100 � �
CHF 50.00 100 � �
CHF 2.00 100 � �
CHF 2.00 100 � �
CHF 0.10 100 � �
CHF 0.50 100 � �
CHF 0.15 100 � �
CHF 0.12 100 � �
CHF 0.12 100 � �
CHF 0.10 34 � �
CHF 0.05 100 � �
CHF 0.24 100 � �
CHF 1.00 100 � �
CHF 0.05 100 � �
CHF 2.00 100 � �
CHF 0.10 100 � �
CHF 0.10 100 � �
CHF 6.00 100 � �
CHF 1.00 100 � �
CHF 0.50 80 � �
CHF 3.00 100 � �
CHF 0.05 100 � �
CHF 0.10 100 � �
CHF 0.10 45 � �
CHF 0.50 100 � �
CHF 5.00 100 � �
CHF 0.67 100 � �
CHF 0.05 100 � �

� �
� �

�
�
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SWITZERLAND
The Swatch Group SA, Neuchâtel Holding
Asulab SA, Marin-Epagnier Research and development
Atlantic Immobilien AG Bettlach, Bettlach Real estate
Blancpain SA, Le Chenit Watches
Blancpain Les Boutiques SA, Le Chenit Retailing
Breguet Les Boutiques SA, L’Abbaye Retailing
Certina SA, Le Locle Watches
Chronométrage Suisse SA, Corgémont Sports timing
cK Montres & Bijoux Co. SA, Bienne Watches
Comadur SA, Le Locle Products in hard materials
Compagnie des Montres Longines, Francillon SA, Saint-Imier Watches
Danyack SA, La Chaux-de-Fonds Real estate
Dernier Batz SA, Neuchâtel Real estate
Diantus Watch SA, Mendrisio Watches, movements
Distico SA, Torricella-Taverne Distribution
Dress your body SA, Bienne Jewelry
EM Microelectronic-Marin SA, Marin-Epagnier Microelectronics
Endura SA, Bienne Watches
ETA SA Manufacture Horlogère Suisse, Grenchen Watches, movements and components
Farco SA, Le Locle Real estate
François Golay SA, Le Chenit Manufacture of watch wheels
Frédéric Piguet SA, Le Chenit Movements
Groupe Habillage Haute Horlogerie SA, Saint-Imier Assembly
Hamilton International AG, Lengnau Watches
ICB Ingénieurs Conseils en Brevets SA, Marin-Epagnier Patents
Jaquet Droz Les Boutiques SA, La Chaux-de-Fonds Retailing
Lasag AG, Thun Lasers for industrial applications
Léon Hatot Les Boutiques SA, Bienne Retailing
Léon Hatot SA, Bienne Watches
Louis Jeanneret-Wespy SA, La Chaux-de-Fonds Real estate
Maeder-Leschot SA, Bienne Real estate
Manufacture Favre et Perret SA, La Chaux-de-Fonds Watch cases
Manufacture Ruedin SA, Bassecourt Watch cases
Meco SA, Grenchen Watch crowns
Meseltron, Corcelles-Cormondrèche Real estate
Microcomponents AG, Grenchen Components for the automobile industry
Mido SA, Le Locle Watches
Montres Breguet SA, L’Abbaye Watches
Montres Jaquet Droz SA, La Chaux-de-Fonds Watches
Nivarox-FAR SA, Le Locle Watch components and thin wires
Omega Electronics SA, Bienne Sports timing equipment, information display systems
Omega SA, Bienne Watches
Oscilloquartz SA, Neuchâtel High-stability frequency sources
Rado Uhren AG, Lengnau Watches
Record Watch Co. SA, Tramelan Inactive
Renata AG, Itingen Miniature batteries
Rubattel et Weyermann SA, La Chaux-de-Fonds Watch dials
S.I. Grand-Cernil 2, Les Brenets, SA, Les Brenets Real estate
S.I. Grand-Cernil 3, Les Brenets, SA, Les Brenets Real estate
S.I. Les Corbes SA, Savagnier Real estate
S.I. L’Etang SA, Les Brenets, Les Brenets Real estate
S.I. Rue de la Gare 2, Les Brenets, SA, Les Brenets Real estate
SMH Engineering AG, Grenchen Real estate
SSIH Management Services SA, Bienne Services and licences
Swatch SA, Bienne Watches
Swatch Telecom SA, Bienne Communication
Swatch Timing SA, Bienne Inactive
Technocorp Holding SA, Le Locle Holding
The Swatch Group Distribution SA, Bienne Logistics and distribution
The Swatch Group Immeubles SA, Neuchâtel Real estate project and property management
The Swatch Group Les Boutiques SA, Lausanne Retailing
The Swatch Group Management Services SA, Bienne Services and licences
The Swatch Group Recherche et Développement SA, Bienne Research and development
Terbival SA, Courchapoix Watch case polishing
Time Flagship AG, Luzern Retailing
Tissot SA, Le Locle Watches
Universo SA, La Chaux-de-Fonds Watch hands
Valdar SA, Le Chenit Watch components

Company name, Registered offices Field of Activity Capital Swatch Group Consoli- Segment
in millions Shareholdings dation

EUROPE %

32. THE SWATCH GROUP COMPANIES – as at 31.12.2005

Legend: Fully consolidated Watches & jewelry
Equity method Production

Electronic systems
General services
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EUR 0.03 95 � �
EUR 0.03 100 � �
EUR 0.51 100 � �
EUR 0.10 100 � �
EUR 0.08 100 � �
EUR 0.50 100 � �
EUR 1.28 100 � �

EUR 0.20 100 � �
EUR 0.05 100 � �

EUR 0.04 100 � �

EUR 1.75 100 � �

EUR 2.09 100 � �

EUR 0.45 100 � �

EUR 6.10 100 � �
EUR 0.29 100 � �
EUR 1.80 100 � �
EUR 0.67 100 � �

EUR 3.80 100 � �
EUR 2.47 100 � �

EUR 11.41 100 � �
EUR 0.28 100 � �

GBP 2.00 100 � �

EUR 0.06 100 � �
EUR 0.06 100 � �

EUR 1.00 100 � �
EUR 0.01 100 � �
EUR 23.00 100 � �

EUR 0.12 100 � �

CHF 0.03 100 � �

CHF 1000.00 100 � �
EUR 1.23 100 � �

EUR 0.02 100 � �
EUR 0.70 100 � �

PLN 5.00 100 � �

EUR 24.14 100 � �
EUR 0.10 100 � �

RUR 0.20 100 � �

SEK 0.50 100 � �

CZK 2.01 51 � �
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GERMANY
Altweiler Grundstücks-GmbH, Lörrach Real estate
ETA Uhrwerke GmbH, Pforzheim Tools
Glashütter Uhrenbetrieb GmbH, Glashütte Watches
Sokymat Automotive GmbH, Reichshof-Wehnrath Transponders
Swiss Prestige Uhren Handel GmbH, Eschborn Inactive
The Swatch Group Customer Service (Europe) GmbH, Glashütte After sales service
The Swatch Group (Deutschland) GmbH, Eschborn Distribution (Breguet, Blancpain, Omega, Rado, Longines, Tissot,

Certina, Hamilton, Pierre Balmain, cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak,
Lasag, Renata, EM Marin, Micro-Crystal)

The Swatch Group (Deutschland) Les Boutiques GmbH, Eschborn Retailing
Union Uhrenfabrik GmbH, Glashütte Watches

AUSTRIA
The Swatch Group (Oesterreich) GmbH, Wien Distribution (Breguet, Blancpain, Glashütte, Omega, Rado,

Longines, Tissot, Certina, cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak)

BELGIUM
The Swatch Group (Belgium) SA, Bruxelles Distribution (Breguet, Blancpain, Omega, Rado, Longines, 

Tissot, Certina, Hamilton, Pierre Balmain, cK Watch,
Swatch, Flik Flak, Omega Electronics)

The Swatch Group Participation SA, Bruxelles Holding

SPAIN
The Swatch Group (España) SA, Madrid Distribution (Breguet, Blancpain, Glashütte Jaquet Droz, Omega, 

Rado, Longines, Tissot, Certina, Hamilton, Pierre Balmain, 
cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak)

FRANCE
Breguet SA, Paris Distribution
Fabrique de Fournitures de Bonnétage FFB SAS, Villers-le-Lac Watch components and precision parts
Frésard Composants SAS, Charquemont Watch components
Société Européenne de Fabrication d’Ebauches d’Annemasse Watch components and electronic assembly
(SEFEA) SAS, Annemasse
Tech Airport SAS, Paris Retail
The Swatch Group (France) SAS, Paris Distribution (Breguet, Blancpain, Glashütte, Jaquet Droz,

Léon Hatot, Omega, Rado, Longines, Tissot, Hamilton,
Pierre Balmain, cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak, Endura, Renata)

The Swatch Group (France) Les Boutiques SAS, Paris Retailing
Universo France SARL, Besançon Watch hands

GREAT BRITAIN
The Swatch Group (UK) Ltd, Eastleigh Distribution (Breguet, Blancpain, Glashütte, Omega, Rado,

Longines, Tissot, Hamilton, cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak,
Omega Electronics)

GREECE
Alkioni SA, Athens Retailing
The Swatch Group (Greece) SA, Athens Distribution (Breguet, Glashütte, Omega, Rado, Longines, Tissot,

Certina, Hamilton, cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak)

ITALY
Lascor S.p.A, Sesto Calende Watch cases and bracelets
The Swatch Group Europe Services S.r.l., Milano Administration
The Swatch Group (Italia) S.p.A., Rozzano Distribution (Breguet, Blancpain, Glashütte, Jaquet Droz,

Léon Hatot, Omega, Rado, Longines, Tissot, Hamilton,
Pierre Balmain, cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak, Renata)

The Swatch Group (Italia) Les Boutiques S.p.A., Rozzano Retailing

LIECHTENSTEIN
Etablissement Voltax (in liquidation), Vaduz Inactive

LUXEMBOURG
The Swatch Group Finance (Luxembourg) SA, Alzingen Finance company
The Swatch Group Re (Luxembourg) SA, Alzingen Reinsurance

NETHERLANDS
Breguet Investments BV, Rotterdam Holding
The Swatch Group (Netherlands) BV, Maastricht Distribution (Omega, Rado, Longines, Tissot, Certina,

Pierre Balmain, cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak)

POLAND
The Swatch Group (Polska) Sp.z.o.o., Warszawa Distribution (Omega, Rado, Longines, Tissot, Certina, 

cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak)

PORTUGAL
The Swatch Group (Europa) – Sociedada Unipessoal SA, Funchal Distribution
The Swatch Group (Europa II) Retail – Sociedada Unipessoal SA, Retail
Funchal

RUSSIA
Swiss Watch Le Prestige OOO Russia, Moscow Distribution

SWEDEN
The Swatch Group (Nordic) AB, Stockholm Distribution (Breguet, Omega, Rado, Longines, Tissot, Certina,

cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak)

CZECH REPUBLIC
ASICentrum, Praha Microelectronics

Company name, Registered offices Field of Activity Capital Swatch Group Consoli- Segment
in millions Shareholdings dation

EUROPE %

32. THE SWATCH GROUP COMPANIES – as at 31.12.2005
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CHF 0.02 100 � �

BRL 4.93 100 � �
BRL 14.05 100 � �

CAD 4.50 100 � �

USD 0.04 100 � �
USD 0.00 100 � �
USD 0.17 20 � �
USD 168.90 100 � �

USD 0.00 100 � �
USD 0.13 100 � �

USD 0.01 100 � �

MXN 0.05 100 � �
MXN 43.65 100 � �

USD 0.07 100 � �
CNY 4.05 100 � �
CNY 3.50 100 � �
CNY 1.66 100 � �

CNY 4.14 100 � �
CNY 1.66 90 � �
HKD 0.00 100 � �
HKD 5.00 100 � �

TWD 28.00 100 � �

CNY 72.61 100 � �

KRW3300.00 100 � �

INR 0.47 100 � �

JPY 200.00 100 � �

MYR 35.00 100 � �
MYR 0.50 51 � �

SGD 4.00 51 � �

THB 504.50 100 � �
THB 6.00 49 � �

THB 3.06 49 � �

AUD 0.40 100 � �

� �
� �

�
�
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AMERICA
BERMUDA
The Swatch Group Finance (Bermuda) Ltd, Hamilton Finance company

BRAZIL
The Swatch Group do Amazonas SA, Manaus Assembly
The Swatch Group do Brasil Ltda, São Paulo Customer service

CANADA
The Swatch Group (Canada) Ltd, Toronto Distribution (Breguet, Blancpain, Glashütte, Omega, Rado,

Longines, Tissot, Hamilton, cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak)

UNITED STATES
EM Microelectronic-US Inc., Colorado Microelectronics
e-swatch-us Inc., Delaware e-Commerce
HiPoint Technology Inc. , Colorado Springs Microelectronics
The Swatch Group (U.S.) Inc., Dover, Delaware Distribution (Breguet, Blancpain, Glashütte, Jaquet Droz,

Léon Hatot, Omega, Rado, Longines, Tissot, Hamilton,
Pierre Balmain, cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak, Lasag, Micro-Crystal,
Renata, Oscilloquartz)

The Swatch Group Les Boutiques (U.S.) Inc., Dover, Delaware Retail
Unitime Industries Inc., Virgin Islands VI Inactive

BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS
Endura Services (Asia) Inc, British Virgin Islands Distribution

MEXICO
Prestadora de Servicios Relojeros SA de CV, Mexico DF Watch services
The Swatch Group (Mexico) SA de CV, Mexico DF Distribution (Breguet, Omega, Rado, Longines, Tissot,

Mido, cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak)
ASIA
GREATER CHINA
Lanco Watches Ltd, Hong Kong Inactive
Shanghai Rui Jing Retail Co., Ltd., Shanghai Retail
Shanghai SMH Watch Service Center Co. Ltd, Shanghai Customer service
SMH International Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd, Shanghai Distribution (Breguet, Blancpain, Glashütte, Omega, Rado,

Longines, Tissot, Mido, Hamilton, cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak)
SMH Les Boutiques (Shanghai) Co. Ltd, Shanghai Retail
SMH Swiss Watch Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd, Shanghai Distribution (Omega, Rado)
The Swatch Group (Asia) Inc. Ltd, Hong Kong Commercial services
The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Ltd, Hong Kong Distribution (Breguet, Blancpain, Glashütte, Jaquet Droz, 

Léon Hatot, Omega,Rado, Longines, Tissot, Mido, Hamilton, 
Pierre Balmain, cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak, ETA)

The Swatch Group (Taiwan) Ltd, Taipei Distribution (Breguet, Blancpain, Glashütte, Jaquet Droz,
Léon Hatot, Omega, Rado, Longines, Tissot, Hamilton, cK Watch,
Swatch, Flik Flak)

Zhuhai SMH Watchmaking Co. Ltd, Zhuhai Watches, movements, components

SOUTH KOREA
The Swatch Group (Korea) Ltd, Seoul Distribution (Breguet, Léon Hatot, Omega, Rado, Longines, 

Tissot, cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak)

INDIA
Swatch Group (India) Private Ltd, New Delhi Distribution (Breguet, Omega, Rado, Longines, Tissot, Swatch, 

Flik Flak)

JAPAN
The Swatch Group (Japan) KK, Tokyo Distribution (Breguet, Blancpain, Glashütte, Jaquet Droz,

Léon Hatot, Omega, Rado, Longines, Tissot, Hamilton,
cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak, Endura)

MALAYSIA
Micromechanics (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd, Ipoh Assembly, watch components
The Swatch Group (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd, Kuala Lumpur Distribution (Omega, Rado, Longines, Tissot, cK Watch,

Swatch, Flik Flak)

SINGAPORE
The Swatch Group S.E.A. (S) Pte Ltd, Singapore Distribution (Breguet, Blancpain, Glashütte, Omega, Rado,

Longines, Tissot, Hamilton, Pierre Balmain, cK Watch,
Swatch, Flik Flak)

THAILAND
ETA (Thailand) Co. Ltd, Bangkok Movements and components
The Swatch Group Trading (Thailand) Ltd, Bangkok Distribution (Breguet, Glashütte, Jaquet Droz, Omega, Rado, 

Longines, Tissot, cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak)
Wachirapani Co. Ltd, Bangkok Holding

OCEANIA
AUSTRALIA
The Swatch Group (Australia) Pty Ltd, Prahran Distribution (Breguet, Omega, Rado, Longines, Tissot, Certina, 

cK Watch, Swatch, Flik Flak, Omega Electronics, Renata)

Company name, Registered offices Field of Activity Capital Swatch Group Consoli- Segment
in millions Shareholdings dation

%

32. THE SWATCH GROUP COMPANIES – as at 31.12.2005

Legend: Fully consolidated Watches & jewelry
Equity method Production

Electronic systems
General services
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As auditors of the group, we have audited the consolidated financial statements (consolidated income statement, consolidated
balance sheet, consolidated statement of cash flows, consolidated statement of changes in equity and notes – pages 125 to 162)
of The Swatch Group Ltd for the year ended 31 December 2005.

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the board of directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We confirm that we meet the legal requirements concerning
professional qualification and independence.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with Swiss Auditing Standards and with the International Standards on Auditing, which
require that an audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial state-
ments are free from material misstatement. We have examined on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. We have also assessed the accounting principles used, significant estimates made and
the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position, the results of operations
and the cash flows in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and comply with Swiss law.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

PricewaterhouseCoopers AG

Th. Brüderlin G. Siegrist

Basel, 22 March 2006

CO
N

SO
LI

D
AT

ED
 F

IN
A

N
CI

A
L 

ST
AT

EM
EN

TS
 Swatch Group | Annual Report 2005

Report of the group auditors
to the general meeting of
The Swatch Group Ltd
Neuchâtel

REPORT OF THE GROUP AUDITORS 
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2005 2004

(1) 416 330

(2) 66 43

7 7

489 380

–35 –32

–12 –10

–7 –1

(3) –13 –14

(4) –21 –26

–3 –2

–91 –85

398 295

Notes CHF million CHF million

Income from investments in subsidiaries

Financial income

Other income

Total income

Personnel expense

General expense

Depreciation and impairment

Interest expense

Exchange differences and other financial expenses

Taxes

Total expenses

Net income
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10 0.4 10 0.4

51 1.9 51 1.9

(5) 1 770 65.6 1 738 65.8

1 831 67.9 1 799 68.1

264 9.8 369 14.0

5 0.2 6 0.2

(6) 356 13.2 431 16.3

239 8.9 37 1.4

864 32.1 843 31.9

2 695 100.0 2 642 100.0
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Assets 31.12.2005 31.12.2004

Notes CHF million % CHF million %

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Financial assets

– Long-term loans to Group companies

– Investments in subsidiaries

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Receivables from Group companies

Other receivables and accrued income

Marketable securities and precious metals

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets
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135 5.0 137 5.2

67 2.5 67 2.5

617 22.9 518 19.6

813 30.2 859 32.5

13 19

398 295

411 15.2 314 11.9

(7) 2 043 75.8 1 895 71.7

119 4.4 114 4.3

65 2.4 65 2.5

441 16.4 544 20.6

10 0.4 9 0.3

17 0.6 15 0.6

652 24.2 747 28.3

2 695 100.0 2 642 100.0
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Equity and liabilities 31.12.2005 31.12.2004

Notes CHF million % CHF million %

Equity

Share capital

General reserve

Reserve for treasury shares

Special reserve

– Profit brought forward

– Net profit for the year

Available earnings

Total equity

Liabilities

Provisions

Bank debts

Payables to Group companies

Other liabilities

Accrued expenses

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
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General

The financial statements of The Swatch Group Ltd comply with the requirements of the Swiss law for companies, the Code of
Obligations (SCO).

Valuation principles

On the balance sheet, assets and liabilities are recorded at net realizable values. Exceptions to this rule are investments in
subsidiaries, which are shown at their acquisition cost less appropriate write-downs, and treasury shares reserved for the
management stock option plan (valued “pro memoria”) as well as shares bought back by the company that are shown at the lower
of cost or market value.
All assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated according to the exchange rates applicable on the
balance sheet date. Income and expenses denominated in foreign currencies and all foreign exchange transactions are translated
at the exchange rates prevailing on their respective transaction dates. Resulting foreign exchange differences are recognized in
the income statement.

Details to specific items

(CHF million) 2005 2004
Dividends 374 291
Other income 42 39
Total 416 330

This item includes dividends from Group companies and other income from investments in associates as well as management
fees from Group companies.

(CHF million) 2005 2004
Interest income 11 9
Income and gains on securities 55 34
Total 66 43

The company recorded capital gains on its investment portfolio of CHF 55 million. This figure was partially offset by losses of 
CHF 16 million (see Note 4). The net result reflects the stronger performance of the financial markets in 2005.

In 2005, interest expense decreased by CHF 1 million compared with 2004. In general, the low interest expense reflects the low
interest rates prevailing in the capital markets during the year.

This item remained relatively stable compared with the previous year. Despite currency hedging contracts taken out to protect
the Group’s companies, the currency translation item was negative by CHF 5 million (2004: CHF 13 million). The significant
increase in the price of gold led to a reduction in the overall loss from exchange differences. The loss recorded on the securities
portfolio amounted to CHF 16 million (2004: CHF 13 million). However, this was more than offset by gains on marketable securi-
ties of CHF 55 million (see Note 2) (2004: CHF 34 million).

The list of 139 legal entities, including minority investments, held directly or indirectly by the company and consolidated at
Swatch Group level is published in Note 32 of the consolidated financial statements in this report.
Investments in subsidiaries accounted for 65.7% of total assets at 31 December 2005 versus 65.8% at end-2004. In absolute
terms, the value of investments in subsidiaries amounted to CHF 1 770 million at end-2005. This amount corresponds exclusively
to consolidated investments, and is CHF 32 million higher than in 2004. The main differences in 2005 relate to the set-up of new
Group companies, a number of capital increases of subsidiaries and internal transfers of participations.

1. Income from 
investments in 
subsidiaries

2. Financial income

3. Interest expense

4. Exchange differences
and other financial
expenses

5. Investments 
in subsidiaries
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6. Marketable securities
and precious metals

7. Equity

(CHF million) 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Marketable securities 80 239
Own shares 248 149
Precious metals 28 43
Total 356 431

Marketable securities decreased in 2005 by CHF 159 million, mainly due to the sale of a large proportion of shares in the portfolio.
There was a corresponding increase in cash and cash equivalents.
In the year under review, own shares that were bought back in 2004 amounting to CHF 149 million were cancelled. Furthermore,
in 2005 treasury shares amounting to CHF 248 million were bought back on a second trading line. Also included were the regis-
tered treasury shares destined for the special management stock option plan which, as in the previous year, were valued “pro
memoria”.
The precious metals item included gold and other precious metals intended to meet the industrial needs of the Group’s
subsidiaries. At 31 December 2005 this item represented a total value of CHF 28 million (CHF 43 million at end-2004).

The total value of treasury shares held by The Swatch Group Ltd and its subsidiaries at 31 December 2005 corresponded to 6.2%
(versus 5.4% at end-2004) of the nominal value of total share capital.
See table on page 170 showing changes in The Swatch Group Ltd’s treasury stock.
The table below shows the changes in equity:

(CHF million) Share General Reserve Special Available Total
capital reserve for treasury reserve earnings equity

shares
Balance at 31.12.2004 137 67 518 859 314 1 895
Allocated in 2005 200 –200 0
Dividend paid out –101 –101
Share capital reduction 
(cancelled shares) –2 –149 2 –149
Allocation to reserve for 
the buyback of own shares 248 –248 0
Net income for the year 398 398
Balance at 31.12.2005 135 67 617 813 411 2 043

Compared with end-2004, equity increased by CHF 148 million to CHF 2 043 million in 2005, accounting for 75.8% of total assets
at 31 December 2005 (versus 71.7% in the previous year).
In 2005, the Swatch Group cancelled the shares repurchased under its share buyback program which reduced share capital by
CHF 1 974 375. A new buyback program commenced on 1 July 2005.
In order to comply with Swiss legislation requiring that all the treasury shares held by a group be covered by an equivalent
reserve, a proportion of the special reserve was transferred to the treasury share reserve to make up the full required amount.

Share capital
At 31 December 2005, share capital consisted of 134 911 327 registered shares each with a nominal value of CHF 0.45, and of
33 057 450 bearer shares each with a nominal value of CHF 2.25. The decrease compared with the previous year relates to the
repurchased shares that were cancelled.

Balance sheet date Registered shares Bearer shares Share capital in CHF
31.12.2004 137 051 327 at CHF 0.45 33 506 950 at CHF 2.25 137 063 734.65
Shares cancelled 2 140 000 at CHF 0.45 449 500 at CHF 2.25 1 974 375.00
31.12.2005 134 911 327 at CHF 0.45 33 057 450 at CHF 2.25 135 089 359.65
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Principal shareholders at 31 December 2005
At 31 December 2005, the Hayek Pool, its companies and related entities held 62 019 456 registered shares and 293 250 bearer
shares, equivalent to 37.1% of the shares issued at this date (previous year: 36.5%). The Hayek Pool comprises the following
members:

Name/Company Location Beneficial owner
Mr. N. G. Hayek Meisterschwanden N. G. Hayek
WAT Holding AG Meisterschwanden N. G. Hayek
Ammann Group Holding SA c/o Ernst & Young AG, Bern J.N. Schneider-Ammann

(Chairman and Delegate)
U.A. Ammann (Board Member)

Swatch Group Pension Fund Neuchâtel –

The companies and institutions associated with the Hayek Pool, but which do not formally belong to the Hayek Pool are as
follows:

Name/Company Location Beneficial owner
Hayek Holding AG Meisterschwanden N. G. Hayek
Mr. N. G. Hayek and family members N. G. Hayek
Personalfürsorgestiftung der Meisterschwanden –
Hayek Engineering AG
Ammann families (pension funds, c/o Ernst & Young AG, Bern Represented by 
foundations and individuals, Madisa AG) J.N. Schneider-Ammann
Fondation d’Ébauches SA et des maisons affiliées Neuchâtel –
Caisse de pension des cadres du Swatch Group Neuchâtel –

In the context of the pool, the group of Mr. N. G. Hayek and related parties controlled in total 36.4% of the shares issued at end-
2005 (35.8% at end-2004), of which 3.9% were represented by the Hayek Pool (3.8% at end-2004).
At the same date, Mrs. Esther Grether’s group controlled 6.7% of the shares issued (compared with 8% a year earlier).
At 31 December 2005, the Swatch Group was not aware of any other group or individual shareholder having an interest of more
than 5% of the total share capital.
On 25 January 2006, The Capital Group Companies, Inc., Los Angeles and its subsidiaries notified of holdings of 6 150 596
registered shares and 2 335 548 bearer shares, equivalent to 5.05% of the shares issued as of this date.

Reserve for treasury shares
The reserve for treasury shares was valued using the weighted average purchase price method. On the Holding balance sheet, it
amounted to CHF 617 million on 31 December 2005 (previous year CHF 518 million), and thereby covers the treasury shares recog-
nized as assets on the balance sheets of Group companies at year-end.

The number of treasury shares held directly or indirectly by The Swatch Group Ltd changed in 2005 as shown in the table below:

Shares held by: Registered shares Bearer shares
Quantity* Quantity

The Swatch Group Ltd
Balance at 31.12.2004 5 654 471 449 500
Acquisitions in 2005 3 356 347 688 450
Disposals in 2005 –240 019 0
Cancellations in 2005 –2 140 000 –449 500
Balance at 31.12.2005 6 630 779 688 450

Other consolidated companies
Balance at 31.12.2004 8 405 714 44 000
Acquisitions in 2005 0 0
Disposals in 2005 0 0
Balance at 31.12.2005 8 405 714 44 000
Total balance at 31.12.2005 15 036 513 732 450

* of which 3 259 613 registered shares were reserved for the management stock option plan at 31 December 2005 (3 499 632 registered shares in 2004).
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Except for movements related to the special funds, all transactions involving treasury shares were recognized at fair value. The
average price per registered share exchanged in 2005 was CHF 36.98 and the average price per bearer share was CHF 179.99.

Available earnings
In compliance with the resolution approved at the Annual General Meeting of 18 May 2005, a dividend of CHF 0.35 per regis-
tered share and of CHF 1.75 per bearer share was appropriated from available earnings as at 31 December 2004. The total
dividend amount paid to shareholders in 2005 came to CHF 43 046 893 on the registered shares and CHF 57 773 537 on the bearer
shares. In accordance with the resolution relating to the use of available earnings approved by the above-mentioned AGM, no
dividends were paid on the treasury shares held by the Swatch Group. This amount, which would have totaled CHF 5 784 697,
thus constituted an integral part of shareholders’ equity at 31 December 2005. Finally, CHF 200 million was appropriated from
available earnings at 31 December 2004 and allocated to the special reserve.

Off-balance-sheet items

Contingent liabilities
At end-2005, guarantees provided by The Swatch Group Ltd amounted to CHF 466 530 500 (compared with CHF 477 301 000 a
year earlier). This item includes:
– A guarantee of CHF 465 622 500 (vs. CHF 476 427 000 in 2004) relating to the convertible bond of CHF 411 600 000 at 2.625%,

issued by The Swatch Group Finance (Luxembourg) SA on 15 October 2003 and maturing on 15 October 2010. At end-2005,
none of these bonds had been converted into shares;

– As in 2004, a guarantee of GBP 400 000 (equivalent to CHF 908 000 at 31 December 2005; CHF 874 000 at 31 December 2004)
to cover a commitment relating to a lease taken out by one of the Group’s companies.

Fire insurance values
At 31 December 2005, the fire insurance value of property, plant and equipment amounted to CHF 33 191 100 (CHF 32 069 100
at 31 December 2004).

Assets pledged
None of the company’s assets are pledged.

Commitments
Other commitments entered into by the company and open at 31 December 2005 amounted to CHF 5 million (vs. CHF 6 million in
the previous year), corresponding to investment commitments in financial assets.

Financial derivative instruments
The following table shows the contract and replacement values of derivative financial instruments at 31 December 2005.

Type Contract value Positive Negative 
replacement value replacement value

(CHF million) Third Group Total Third Group Total Third Group Total
party party party

Forward contracts 531 316 847 0 1 1 –1 –1 –2
Options 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total at 31.12.2005 531 316 847 0 1 1 –1 –1 –2
Total at 31.12.2004 528 384 912 1 1 2 –2 –2 –4

Derivative financial instruments are recognized at fair value. Positions outstanding at 31 December 2005 serve to hedge opera-
tions relating to exchange rate risk and market volatility. Forward contracts outstanding at 31 December 2005 relate to positions
held in precious metals and in 14 foreign currencies (previous year: 14). Intra-group contracts relate to agreements between 
The Swatch Group Ltd and Group companies for the hedging of risks associated with intra-group financial transactions. At 
31 December 2005, there were no options outstanding. Replacement values are recognized under accrued income and accrued
expenses.

Liabilities to pension plans

The balance sheet as at end-2005 contained pension liabilities for less than CHF 1 million to pension plans (no liability in 2004).
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398 050 766 294 688 643

13 267 505 19 399 292

411 318 271 314 087 935

– 250 000 000 – 200 000 000

– 47 967 964

– 58 637 163

– 67 455 664

– 82 643 625

5 784 697

11 218 982 13 267 505
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The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General Meeting that available earnings be appropriated as follows:

2005 2004

CHF CHF

Net income for the year

Profit brought forward from previous year

Available earnings

Allocation to special reserve

Dividend payment for 2004

on share capital of CHF 137 063 734.65:

– CHF 0.35 per registered share with a par value of CHF 0.45

– CHF 1.75 per bearer share with a par value of CHF 2.25

Payment on share capital of CHF 135 089 359.65 *)

of a 2005 dividend, i.e.:

– CHF 0.50 per registered share with a par value of CHF 0.45

– CHF 2.50 per bearer share with a par value of CHF 2.25

Dividends not paid out on own shares held by the Group **)

Balance carried forward

*) It is planned not to pay dividends on own shares held by the Group.

**) Based on the decision of the Annual General Meeting of 18 May 2005, the dividend due on own shares held by the Group was not paid out.

PROPOSED APPROPRIATION OF AVAILABLE EARNINGS
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As statutory auditors, we have audited the accounting records and the financial statements (income statement, balance sheet
and notes – pages 165 to 172) of The Swatch Group Ltd for the year ended 31 December 2005.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the board of directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. We confirm that we meet the legal requirements concerning professional qualification
and independence.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with Swiss Auditing Standards, which require that an audit be planned and performed
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. We have examined
on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. We have also assessed the
accounting principles used, significant estimates made and the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the accounting records and financial statements and the proposed appropriation of available earnings comply with
Swiss law and the company’s articles of incorporation.

We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved.

PricewaterhouseCoopers AG

Th. Brüderlin G. Siegrist

Basel, 22 March 2006

Report of the
statutory auditors to the
general meeting of
The Swatch Group Ltd
Neuchâtel



174

122 004 798 130 646 179 123 787 740 132 447 448 124 732 274 126 832 274 124 543 989 127 710 075
32 788 496 32 788 496 33 211 158 33 211 158 33 462 950 33 462 950 33 462 467 34 047 207

154 793 294 163 434 675 156 998 898 165 658 606 158 195 224 160 295 224 158 006 455 161 757 282

54 902 159 58 790 780 55 704 483 59 601 351 56 129 523 57 074 523 56 044 795 57 469 534
73 774 116 73 774 116 74 725 106 74 725 106 75 291 638 75 291 638 75 290 550 76 606 216

128 676 275 132 564 896 130 429 589 134 326 451 131 421 161 132 366 161 131 335 345 134 075 750

2005 2005 2004 2004 2003 2003 2002 2001
2.15 2.13 1.74 1.74 1.69 1.68 1.69 1.69
2.76 2.68 2.36 2.29 2.15 2.13 1.94 2.09

16.02 15.53 14.70 14.27 13.72 13.62 12.19 10.94
0.50 * 0.50 * 0.35 0.35 0.29 0.29 0.22 0.20

2005 2005 2004 2004 2003 2003 2002 2001
10.74 10.66 8.72 8.70 8.43 8.41 8.47 8.46
13.82 13.43 11.79 11.45 10.73 10.66 9.70 10.45
80.09 77.80 73.51 71.37 68.58 68.09 60.97 54.72
2.50 * 2.50 * 1.75 1.75 1.45 1.45 1.10 1.00

40.15 40.15 36.50 36.50 30.60 30.60 36.85 43.50
30.90 30.90 27.20 27.20 19.15 19.15 20.45 19.40
39.75 39.75 33.80 33.80 29.50 29.50 23.40 32.90

197.30 197.30 180.50 180.50 152.75 152.75 173.00 214.00
152.40 152.40 130.00 130.00 93.70 93.70 99.25 91.00
195.00 195.00 166.90 166.90 148.50 148.50 115.00 149.25

11 809 11 809 10 225 10 225 9 019 9 019 7 060 9 747

2005 2005 2004 2004 2003 2003 2002 2001
14.0 14.3 12.3 12.7 13.0 13.1 14.5 15.7
1.3 * 1.3 * 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.6
1.3 * 1.3 * 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.7

18.5 18.7 19.4 19.4 17.5 17.6 13.8 19.4
18.2 18.3 19.1 19.2 17.6 17.7 13.6 17.6

1 225 514 UHRN.VX
1 225 515 UHR.VX

THE SWATCH GROUP LTD SECURITIES

Average number of shares outstanding/ 2005 2005 2004 2004 2003 2003 2002 2001
Average share capital basic diluted basic diluted basic diluted basic/ basic/

diluted diluted

Number of registered shares of CHF 0.45
Number of bearer shares of CHF 2.25
Total average number of shares outstanding
Share capital registered shares 
of CHF 0.45
Share capital bearer shares of CHF 2.25
Total average share capital

Key data per registered share
(nom CHF 0.45) in CHF
Consolidated net income
Cash flow from operating activities
Consolidated shareholders’ equity
Dividend

Key data per bearer share
(nom CHF 2.25) in CHF
Consolidated net income
Cash flow from operating activities
Consolidated shareholders’ equity
Dividend
Stock price of registered shares
(adjusted) High

Low
End of year

Stock price of bearer shares
(adjusted) High

Low
End of year

Market capitalization
(CHF million) End of year

Key ratios (year-end)
Average return on equity %
Dividend yield registered shares %
Dividend yield bearer shares %
Price/earnings ratio – registered shares
Price/earnings ratio – bearer shares

Securities Securities no. Reuters Symbol
The Swatch Group Ltd registered shares
The Swatch Group Ltd bearer shares

The securities are listed on the Swiss Stock Exchange (SWX) and traded on the virt-x.
* Board of Directors’ proposal.
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The Swatch Group Ltd

Swiss Market Index

Evolution of the Swatch Group Ltd registered shares
and the Swiss Market Index

(indexed weekly from 01.07.1988 to 31.12.2005 – adjusted)

THE SWATCH GROUP LTD SECURITIES
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